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Financial Highlights
MBHEE

Revenue was approximately RMB1,102.8 million,
representing an increase of approximately 14.0% from

last year.

Gross profit was approximately RMB214.8 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 6.2% from

last year.

Profit attributable to owners of the parent was
approximately RMB98.6 million, representing an
increase of approximately 5.0% over last year.

Basic earnings per share amounted to RMBO0.11.

The Board proposed to declare a final dividend of
RMBO0.028 per share for the year ended 31 December
2018, which will be subject to shareholders’ approval
at the annual general meeting. This represented a total
distribution of RMB25.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2018.
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited (“Suchuang Gas” or
the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries collectively
refer to as the “Group”), | am pleased to present to you
the annual results for the year ended 31 December 2018
(“during the year”) of Suchuang Gas.

MARKET REVIEW AND BUSINESS REVIEW

2018 marks the 10th anniversary of the outbreak of the
international financial crisis. The changing global economic
situation, the unstable trade relations between China and
US, the faster rate increase by the US Federal Reserve,
the international oil price rebound followed by a sharp
decline, as well as geopolitics, pose challenges for the
world’s economy. The year marks the 40th anniversary of
the reform and opening up of China. Facing a number of
challenges, China’s overall economy “grew steadily”, due
to economic stimulus measures implemented by the PRC
government in due course: the macro economy was stable;
the quality and benefits were continuously improved;
and the retail consumption played a more significant role
in spurring economic growth. On the whole, facing the
complicated international environment and the arduous
tasks of reform, development and stability maintenance in
China, China has maintained a relatively rapid economic
growth and is still one of the biggest contributors to the
world’s economic growth. In 2019, the PRC government
clearly defined the important orientation of economic
development, with the top priorities being ensuring stable
employment, stable financial sector, stable foreign trade,
stable foreign investment, stable domestic investment and
stable expectation, so as to make progress towards the
target of comprehensively building a moderately prosperous

society.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFERE

The Group’s main businesses are located in Taicang City,
Jiangsu Province. In 2018, it proactively took actions,
actively took Shanghai as a benchmark, constructed a
technology innovation industrial park near Shanghai and
a gateway to Shanghai for Suzhou, and accelerated the
inclusion in the integration of the Yangtze River Delta,
in terms of urban transportation, industrial planning and
otherwise, based on the national strategy of economic
integration of the Yangtze River Delta. In recent years,
Taicang High-tech Zone has actively constructed a
technology innovation industrial park near Shanghai, a
riverside modern logistics and trade base, a modern garden
city model, and a Sino-German city model, under a grand
pattern and with significant investment, extensively carried
out in-depth open cooperation, continuously attracted high-
end innovative resources and vigorously promoted high-end
industrial development, so as to comprehensively build a
high-quality development demonstration zone. As at the end
of 2018, Taicang High-tech Zone has approximately 800
foreign-invested enterprises. Supported by newly established
foreign-invested enterprises, the macro economy of Taicang
in 2019 is expected to maintain a positive growth trend,
creating a strong driver for growth of the local energy market.

Continuous Increase in Demands for Natural Gas

In the natural gas industry in which the Group operated, the
national natural gas consumption accelerated significantly
during the year, driven by favorable policies frequently
published. In April 2018, National Development and
Reform Commission (“NDRC") published a circular to notify
that the perfection of the production, supply, marketing
and storage system in China shall be accelerated, and
infrastructure interconnection, natural gas reserve capacity
and other key projects shall be implemented under direct
supervision. In May, it published a document to determine
residential natural gas prices and non-residential natural
gas prices under the same price basis. At the beginning
of September, the General Office of the State Council
printed and distributed the Several Opinions on Promoting
the Coordinated and Stable Development of Natural Gas
(hereinafter referred to as the “Opinions”), which specially
sets out that the domestic natural gas production should
be rapidly increased in the next few years, and provides
guidance on all processes in the natural gas industry chain.
With the continuous implementation of domestic “coal-to-
gas” policies, continuous rationalization of all processes in
the natural gas industry and steady macroeconomic growth
of China, the data of NDRC show that in 2018, China’s
apparent consumption of natural gas reached 280.3 billion
m?, representing a year-on-year increase of 18.1%. The
natural gas consumption kept growing rapidly.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2018

AEBTEEEREMIHEART £
2018F XS BER=A—Btiz—HK
RERE - BiREE LS ITERERAIEXE
=i - BMNEE SN mEFR - MW
R EEXERESIFANMRBAR=A—E
b o iFR - KESM@ERITERER B
EXeH  BIRKYWEEM  RRKBEEK
MxRMPESERTHRE - BZRRRE
RFAMEE - HERSISWmEIFHER - K
HHEEESIHLER  2EHERXSLE2EER
R HE2018F KR KESFREINE
PHIT800K © E R IFHIFTILINE D E T 5
T - 2019 KB M ABLES B BEER
BATNERES - BEMERMISAER
TGRS -

RARRFRIFEIE M
AEBFENAARITE FAXERE
FBRRONZERE  2BRRXATEBHRE
IRIR-2018F47  BIXBERNNEZES
(ERBEHRE]) BCGRM - ERNRES
BINEHERBRESR  BHERKELHE
B RKARBEBEENSEZTITREFEAEH
SAHAEXH  BERRXARERMIEER
AAREERHFEN -9 ¥ - RSB P A EEL]
B(EARRERARBABTERENETE
AXTH(ER)) BRIERKBEAXARES
DHEMEFERNRER  WRARITEE
BENSEREELIEE - BEEBRA [ KK
RIBROBEHRE  XRR[EEXESEOT
BTIR)E - ARAPBEABLERISEBEER
BRIBEERENZNEIERET * 2018F2F -
PR RARKEEBE2,803B 2 H K [
LE3ER18.1% « RAREBEE R SR
ﬁ °



In mid-2018, Chinese Academy of Social Sciences published
China Energy Outlook 2018-2050, a research report, which
sets out that, driven by the PRC policies to reduce the use
of coal and increase the use of gas, the demand for natural
gas has increased at a rate faster than that for other energy
products in recent years. It is expected that the domestic
natural gas consumption demand will grow by more than
800 billion m* by 2050, when natural gas consumption will
increase to over 25% of the primary energy consumption.
Based on such demand prediction, it is believed in the
report that in the next 30 years, China’s main demands for
energy import will gradually shift from oil to natural gas,
and it is expected that by 2050, China’s natural gas import
will increase to over 630 billion m’, with the degree of
dependence on import reaching 78.5%.

In 2018, China’s natural gas imports increased significantly.
In 2018, China’s natural gas imports totaled 90.39 million
tons, representing an increase of 31.9% over the same
period in 2017. In 2018, China’s liquefied natural gas (LNG)
imports totaled 53.78 million tons, representing a year-on-
year increase of 41.2%. In 2018, the total unloading volume
of three LNG receiving stations of PetroChina in Tangshan,
Dalian and Jiangsu exceeded 15 million tons for the first
time, and the natural gas transportation volume exceeded
21 billion cubic meters. Among them, the annual unloading
volume of Jiangsu Rudong LNG receiving station exceeded
6.5 million tons; the total natural gas transportation volume
reached 9.2 billion cubic meters, representing an increase
of 49%, and the project design capacity has been fully
achieved; three indicators, i.e. annual unloading volume,
total transportation volume and capacity utilization rate
ranked first among the national LNG receiving stations.

Chairman’s Statement

EFERE
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Chairman’s Statement

EFERE

From 2017 to 2019, Taicang city gradually carried out
special rectification regionally on coal-fired boilers with a
capacity of 10 tons/hour and more in Taicang city stage by
stage over three years, through measures such as shutting
down boilers, centralized heating, clean energy substitution
and upgrading and reconstruction. In 2018, the special
action for the rectification of coal-fired boilers in Taicang
city entered into the second stage. Before the end of 2018,
Taicang city accelerated the construction of centralized
heating and natural gas pipeline network, further expanded
the scope of the pipeline network and basically covered
the areas where coal-fired boilers are located; 12 coal-fired
boilers with a capacity between 10 tons/hour and more
and 35 tons/hour and below were shut down or replaced
by clean energy boilers or realized centralized heating;
4 coal-fired boilers with a capacity of 65 tons/hour and
more realized ultra-low emission. Driven by this policy, the
natural gas consumption demand in Taicang city is expected
to achieve further growth.

Taicang Port in Taicang city is the intersection of the
Yangtze River Economic Belt and the Coastal Economic
Belt. In view of its advantageous geographical location
and the connection with major ports in Jiangsu, Taicang
Port is expected to develop into a large LNG storage and
transportation terminal in the district in future. By the end
of 2018, Taicang Port had opened 200 routes, including
25 near-sea direct routes, 52 domestic trade mainlines, 83
Yangtze River (inland river) branch lines and 40 Yangshan
branch lines. In addition, Taicang Port has completed and
operated 91 terminal berths. The ranking of Taicang Port
has jumped to the first in the province and the tenth in
China. It has become the largest foreign trade port in the
Yangtze River, the port with the most foreign trade routes
in the Yangtze River and the port with the largest number
of international voyage ships entering and leaving the port
in the province. Taicang Port will continue to be a major
inland river transport logistics centre and will also promote
the sustainable growth in demand for LNG and compressed
natural gas (“CNG”) of logistics industry.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2018
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As the back garden of Shanghai, the resident population
in Taicang city continues to grow as a result of the
geographical advantage, which has driven the vigorous
development of the local real estate development market.
According to statistics from the CRIC Research Center, the
transaction volume of commercial residential projects in
Taicang city in the first 11 months of 2018 reached 1.06
million square meters, representing a year-on-year increase
of 33%. The development of real estate in Taicang city
will also help to expand the demand for natural gas for

residential users.

Clear and Diversified development strategy

After 40 years of reform and opening up, China has become
the world’s second largest economy. At the same time, it
cannot be ignored that the high energy consumption and
high emission mode that supported high-speed development
is no longer sustainable. Today, China is the world’s largest
emitter of energy consumption and greenhouse gases,
consuming about 3.7 billion tons of coal per year and
emitting nearly 10 billion tons of carbon dioxide, accounting
for about 27% of global carbon emissions. All this is a
reminder of the imperative of China’s energy transition to
low carbon. The Chinese government has explicitly pointed
out that the country must speed up reform of the system
for developing an ecological civilization and building a
beautiful China. Following this spirit, China’s green and low-
carbon development will definitely raise China’s ecological

environment construction to a new level.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFERE

In order to respond to the call of our country to help
achieve China’s low-emission development strategic goal in
2050, the Group acquired 51% equity interest in Xinjiang
Dunhua Gas Engineering Technology Co., Ltd. (“Dunhua
Gas”) in 2017 and in April 2018, the Group acquired
9.16% equity interest of the enlarged issued share capital
in Xinjiang Dunhua Petroleum Technology Co., Ltd. (¥75&
HELREMRMBR2AR]) (“Dunhua Petroleum”) through
Suchuang Gas (Shanghai) Co. Ltd. (BEIMAR (L&) BRA
A]) (“Suchuang Shanghai”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, at a total consideration of RMB48 million.
Dunhua Petroleum is mainly engaged in promotion of and
provision of services in relation to petrochemical product
technology and software and information technology as well
as provision of auxiliary activities related to oil and natural
gas exploration. The Group is optimistic about the business
prospects and technical advantages of Dunhua Petroleum. It
is expected that it will invest in multiple follow-up projects
in the future, combining traditional clean energy business
with innovative technology to achieve the low-emission
development strategic goal.

In addition, in May 2018, the Group contributed RMB17.5
million to Beijing Beilun Energy Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Beijing Beilun”), which is principally engaged in natural
gas clean heating services and gas business. Upon
completion, the Group holds a 20% stake of Beijing Beilun.
The capital injection reflects the company’s transformation
into a comprehensive clean energy supplier. The Group
will strive to synergize and leverage the respective superior
resources of the Company and Beijing Beilun to achieve
strategic development of the diversity of integrated clean
energy business, enhance the Group’s comprehensive
strength in the energy industry, and provide strong support
in developing clean gas heating projects and distributed

energy sources projects in the city.
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PROSPECTS

Global economic growth is expected to slow down in 2019,
because major global economies have been challenged
in many aspects, such as tightening of monetary policy,
deceleration in corporate earnings growth and fluctuations
in international politics from a macro-economic perspective.
At the same time, the year 2019 will be a crucial year for
China’s victory in building a well-off society in an all-round
way and for China’s implementation of the Thirteenth Five-
year Plan, as well as the 70th anniversary of the founding of
New China, thus it is crucial to keep the economy growing
steadily. Although the China’s economy will operate stably
with slight changes in 2018, the macro-economic policy
in 2019 has been basically determined, in which focus on
the fiscal and monetary policies of stabilizing aggregate
demand will be more easing, and the complex international
issues such as Sino-US trade friction will be moderate
and more flexible. If the above policies and measures can
be implemented smoothly, China’s macro-economic and
financial market development is expected to gradually
pick up and achieve steady growth. Meanwhile, favorable
growth drivers for the development of China’s natural gas
industry will be provided by which the structural reform
of China’s one-off energy consumption will continue to be
carried out and the consumption scale of natural gas will
continue to achieve long-term steady growth in the future,
following the implementation of policies such as “shift from
coal to natural gas”, limit of coal and increasingly strict
environmental protection and ecological construction.

As China’s economy continues to grow and Taicang City
located in the economic hub of the Yangtze River Delta, the
industrial city adjacent to Shanghai, will further develop
its geographical advantages and promote the high-quality
development of the economy. With the rapid development
of major transportation infrastructure such as railways,
highways and waterways in the region, the comprehensive
transportation system of Taicang City will be increasingly
improved, and the city will become one of the few in the
Yangtze River Delta with the comprehensive transportation
system of “equally emphasizing highways, railways and
waterways, connecting rivers, seas and brook”, thereby
further transform geographical advantages into economic
power and create enormous growth potential for the energy
needs of local and surrounding cities.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFERE

In 2018, Taicang City developed and accelerated the
construction of major innovation industry, people’s
livelihood projects and infrastructure projects with up
to 100 key projects, and over RMB100 billion of total
investment. In 2019, with the continuous implementation
of the construction of major projects, the economic growth
of Taicang City is expected to maintain steady growth.
In 2019, the construction of Xi’an Jiaotong-Liverpool
University Taicang Campus and Northwestern Polytechnical
University Taicang Campus began successively in the east of
Taicang City. The Group will grasp the residential demand
and population growth opportunities brought by the two
excellent universities’ settlements in Taicang to further
promote the development of natural gas business.

In recent years, as the leading pipeline natural gas supplier
and operator in Taicang City, Jiangsu Province, China,
the Group has leveraged its geographical location and
gas pipeline network advantages to expand its gas sales
and distribution business to the surrounding Kunshan City
and Changshu City. The Group has acquired 51% equity
interest in Xinjiang Dunhua Gas Engineering Technology
and expanded its business into fields of carbon capture,
storage and utilization. It is expected that such business
will be at the beginning of the period of investment return
in 2019, thus bringing about new drivers of business
growth of the Group. The Company will also enter into
strategic cooperation with Taicang Port and will be the first
to cooperate in the construction of LNG refueling stations
within Taicang Port.

The year of 2019 is also a challenging year: the price
regulation of urban gas distribution links has been further
strengthened; the pace of natural gas price marketization
has been accelerated; the establishment of the National
Petroleum and Natural Gas Pipeline Network Company
has been included in the national plan for 2019; and the
implementation of the new LNG contract has entered
into window period. All of the above factors will bring
uncertainty to the development of the Group. However,
challenges and opportunities coexist. In the future, the
Group will further strategically develop markets with good
growth potential outside East China, and plan to achieve
regional and domain expansion through equity acquisition
or various types of cooperation models to expand business
scale.
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On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt
gratitude to our Shareholders, customers and partners for
their long-term support for the Group and would also like
to extend my gratitude to the Board, the management and
all employees for their hard work and contributions over
the past year. In 2019, let’s work hard together to achieve
further sound business development and generate greater

returns for our investors.

Su Aping
Chairman
Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EERGAEEEREBRE

DIRECTORS

Our Board currently consists of nine Directors, comprising
four executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. The following
table sets out certain information about our Directors as at

the date of this annual report:

=X
BFNEZSRKANRESEN  B8EN
FRITEF MAFRTESR=RBIF
WITES - TRINBEBARBESTNAF
HERNEDER

Name Age Roles and responsibilities

e Fie BULEME

Executive Directors

BITES

Mr. Su Aping (Chairman) 70 Overall strategic planning and business direction and
overseeing the overall execution of the Group's strategy

ERPF AL (EF) BRI REBTT RN EE NS BIREH
ERNITHER

Ms. Su Yi (Executive Vice Chairman) 46 Assisting the chairman in formulating the overall strategic

planning and business direction of the Group and
overseeing the overall execution of the Group’s strategy

XL (BHRIER) BHEFHEASEREREAE MEXH M
AREEREBRBENBENITER

Ms. Zhu Yaying 72 Implementation and monitoring of the Group’s strategic
plans and inter-departmental coordination within
our Group

ENCHE S S BEITRERARENRRE S RAREB A%

Mr. Du Shaozhou 66 Managing the day-to-day operations of the Group

HEEERE EEAEENBREER

Non-executive Directors

FUTES

Mr. Xu Lei 50 Performing roles as a non-executive Director

MERLE BITIEMITE SR

Mr. Jin Bo 48 Performing roles as a non-executive Director

BREE FBITIEAITEF RS

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYFITES

Mr. Zhou Qingzu 86 Performing roles as an independent non-executive
Director

FERTE EITB IFMITE SRS

Mr. Zhu Tong 50 Performing roles as an independent non-executive
Director

R FE [BITE IR TE R AR

Mr. Luk Wai Keung 54 Performing roles as an independent non-executive

PEERELE
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Executive Directors

Mr. Su Aping (&P ), aged 70, was appointed as a Director
on 26 February 2014 and was re-designated as the chairman
and an executive Director on 12 September 2014 and is
responsible for the overall strategic planning and business
direction of the Group and overseeing the overall execution
of the Group’s strategy. Mr. Su has approximately 30 years of
experience in the management of gas enterprises. Mr. Su has
been the director and general manager of Taicang Natural
Gas Co., Ltd. (“Taicang Natural Gas”) since its incorporation
in May 2002, responsible for its business development
and operation, strategic planning and investment. Mr. Su
has been the chairman and general manager of Suzhou
Suchuang Industrial Group Company (8N & &I E E & E R
A]) (now known as Suzhou City Suchuang Group Company
Limited (“Suchuang Group”)) since its incorporation in 1992
and is responsible for its overall management and business
development. From 1984 to 1992, Mr. Su worked at Taicang
Enterprise Liquified Gas Institute (KB ZERILEFT) under
Taicang Fabric Factory (KEH/&) (later renamed as Taicang
County Liquified Gas Company (K& & /&{LR A F]), Taicang
County Gas Company (KEHHERAF]) and Taicang City
Gas Company (KETHERZAA]) and held various positions
including manager and legal representative, responsible for
sales and development of business and overall management.

Mr. Su is also the chairman and legal representative of each
of Suzhou PetroChina Kunlun Suchuang Gas Company
Limited (“Kunlun Suchuang Gas”) and Suzhou PetroChina
Kunlun Suchuang Natural Gas Usage Company Limited. Mr.
Su is the spouse of Ms. Zhu Yaying and a parent of Ms. Su
Yi, both executive Directors of the Company.

Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEERE

Ms. Zhu Yaying ((REZ3), aged 72, was appointed as a Director
on 4 July 2013 and was redesignated as an executive
Director on 12 September 2014. In addition to assisting the
Board and our chairman to formulate the Group’s strategic
plans, Ms. Zhu is also responsible for the implementation
and monitoring of those plans as well as inter-departmental
coordination within the Group. Ms. Zhu has over 20 years of
experience in the management of gas enterprises. Ms. Zhu
joined Taicang Natural Gas since its incorporation in May
2002 where she was appointed as a director since December
2004, responsible for managing the financial resources
of the Company. Ms. Zhu joined Suzhou City Suchuang
Industrial Group Company (#RMTEEIEZEEE LA (now
known as Suchuang Group) as deputy general manager on
its incorporation in December 1992, responsible for the
financial operations and human resources management.
Prior to joining Suchuang Group, Ms. Zhu was the head of
the labour department of Taicang County Gas Company (X
BBE R E]) (later renamed as Taicang City Gas Company
(KETE R AA])) from March 1988 to December 1992,
responsible for supervising and managing human resources.

Ms. Zhu is a director of Kunlun Suchuang Gas and a director
of Fung Yu Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder
of the Company. Ms. Zhu is the spouse of Mr. Su Aping
and a parent of Ms. Su Yi, both executive Directors of the
Company.

Mr. Du Shaozhou (##8/8), aged 66, is the chief executive
officer of the Company and was appointed as an executive
Director on 12 September 2014. Mr. Du is responsible for
managing the day-to-day operations of the Group. He has
over 45 years of experience in the oil and gas industry.
Mr. Du has been a director of Taicang Natural Gas since
12 February 2015, responsible for the management of its
operation. From September 2008 to August 2012, Mr. Du
served at PetroChina Kunlun Natural Gas Usage Company
Limited (F A M E® AR R FMA B R A A) as deputy
general manager, deputy secretary to the Communist Party
Committee, secretary to the Disciplinary Committee and
chairman of the labour union. From April 1995 to September
2008, Mr. Du held various senior positions in Shenzhen
Petroleum Industrial Co., Ltd. (X I A HE Z G R A 7))
such as deputy general manager, deputy secretary to the

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2018
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Communist Party Committee, secretary to the Disciplinary
Committee and chairman of the labour union. From June
1978 to April 1995, he worked at the Ministry of Petroleum
Industry of the PRC (FREIA )M T2 EP) (later known as China
National Petroleum Company and China National Petroleum
Corporation) where he held various positions including
secretary and secretary (deputy division chief level) (&5 &%
). From December 1975 to June 1978, Mr. Du worked
at the Locomotive Team of Daging Oilfield Construction
Headquarter (KB hHBHEEEIHEAEEK). From October
1969 to December 1975, Mr. Du worked at the Liaohe
Oilfield Geophysical Exploration (A i H %) 8 &&). Mr.
Du obtained a diploma in Public Administration from Staff
University of Continuing Education of the Party School of
the Central Committee of the CPC (H AR R E AR, T 387K
2 in the PRC in July 1990.

Ms. Su Yi (88Z), aged 46, was appointed as an executive
Director on 30 June 2016 and the Executive Vice Chairman
of the Board on 21 February 2017. Ms. Su joined the Group
in May 2015 as the assistant to the chairman of the board of
directors of Taicang Natural Gas. Ms. Su is responsible for
assisting the Chairman in formulating the business strategies
of the Group, and enhancing and implementing the internal
procedures of the Group. Ms. Su has more than 10 years’
experience in computer software and project management.
She worked at the New York City Housing Authority of
the United States of America (the “US”) from May 2005 to
May 2015 and served various positions including computer
specialist (software). She worked on human resources
administration for the City of New York of the US from
November 2002 to May 2005.

Ms. Su obtained a master degree in science from Pace
University in January 2003. She has been certified as a
Project Management Professional (PMP) by the Project
Management Institute since July 2006. She also obtained a
certification for people program at the TOGAF 9 certified
level in December 2015. Ms. Su is a daughter of Mr. Su
Aping and Ms. Zhu Yaying, both executive Directors of the
Company.
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EEREREEERE

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Lei (FF&), aged 50, was appointed as a Director on
27 February 2014 and was re-designated as a non-executive
Director on 12 September 2014. He has over 15 years of
experience in investment and business advisory in the PRC.
Mr. Xu joined Prax Capital Equity Management Co., Ltd.
(e REREER(LBARAT) in August 2003 and is
currently a managing partner of Prax Capital, responsible for
leading and conducting the fund’s investment activities in
the PRC.

Mr. Xu obtained a Master of Business Administration from
the Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania in
the United States in May 2001 and a Bachelor of Law from
Ningbo University in the PRC in July 1991.

Mr. Jin Bo (£K), aged 48, was appointed as a non-executive

Director on 3 September 2018. Mr. Jin has been the vice
president and secretary of the board of the directors of
Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities (Group) Co., Ltd. (L
BARAAEEREE)RMDER DA (“Shanghai Dazhong
Public Utilities”) since May 2017 and February 2017,
respectively. Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities is a
company listed on both the Shanghai Stock Exchange with
stock code 600635 and the Stock Exchange with stock
code 1635 and is a substantial shareholder of the Company
through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Dazhong (Hong Kong)
International Corporation Limited. Mr. Jin joined Shanghai
Dazhong Public Utilities in May 2010 as the investment
director and served as a director and the general manager
of Shanghai Dazhong Group Capital Equity Investment Co.,
Ltd. (EBRBEBEEARREIREBRAR]), a subsidiary of
Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities, until September 2015.
From June 2016 to September 2016, Mr. Jin served as the
secretary to the board of directors and assistant to the
president of China Grand Automotive Services Co., Ltd. (F&
)T B AR ARD A7), a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange with stock code 600297. Mr. Jin rejoined
Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities in October 2016 as the
investment director. Mr. Jin has been an executive director
and the general manager of Shanghai Dazhong Municipal
Development Co., Ltd. (EBARTEHERBRAF]) since
August 2017. He has also been an executive director and
the general manager of Shanghai Xiangyin Road Tunnel
Construction Development Co., Ltd. (L8P ERERZRE
BABBRAF]) since August 2017.
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Mr. Jin obtained a bachelor degree in industrial management
engineering from Shanghai Institute of Building Materials
(EBEEMEITEEP) (now known as Tongji University)
in July 1993 and a master of business administration from
China Europe International Business School in September
2008.

Mr. Jin was granted the title of senior economist by Shanghai
Expertise Qualification Review Committee, Economics Series
(Sphere of Urban Construction and Transportation) (/& 4¢
BRI ERBZBRI)EREERMBBERERETE
ZB8%) in May 2005.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Zhou Qingzu (AEE#H), aged 86, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 16 February 2015.
He has over 60 years of experience in the oil and gas
industry. From October 1996 to October 2000, Mr. Zhou
was a member of the Senior Technical Council of Economic
Advisers (@AM BEREMZE®) at China Petroleum and
Petrochemical Engineering Institute (B A BT A T2
). From July 1994 to July 1997, he was a member of
the Advisory Committee (2%X % 8®&) of China International
Engineering Consulting Corporation (FEIEE TRZHAA
a)). From 1988 to 1993, Mr. Zhou worked at China National
Petroleum Company (F BIAMRARLL AR (now known as
China National Petroleum Corporation) as chief economist.
Prior to joining China National Petroleum Corporation,
Mr. Zhou was the head of the planning department of the
Ministry of Petroleum Industry of the PRC from 1979 to
1987. From 1954 to 1979, Mr. Zhou held multiple positions
within Xinjiang Petroleum Administration Bureau (#7588
EI2/D), including chief economist and head of the planning
division and deputy head of Xinjiang Petroleum Bureau,
head of the planning division of Karamay Mining Bureau
(R RFBKTET /D), and head of Urumgi Petrochemical Plant
(BEARBA(ERE). From 1952 to 1954, Mr. Zhou worked at
Shaanxi Yanchang Oil Field (FREGRERIHHE) as an accounting

clerk and secretary.
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EEREREEERE

Mr. Zhou obtained a bachelor’s degree in financial
management from Shanghai Institute of Finance and
Economics (now known as Shanghai University of Finance
and Economics) in the PRC in August 1952 and was awarded
professor-level senior economist in September 1989 by
China National Petroleum Company.

Mr. Zhu Tong (KF¥), aged 50, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 13 July 2017. He is currently a
professor and doctoral advisor at the Research Institute of Thermal
and Environmental Engineering (B\BEERIRIE TARHFFUPM), School
of Mechanical Engineering (# ## #2 52 JR T 12 2 %) of Tongji
University (R AZ2). Mr. Zhu has co-authored teaching materials
relating to engineering thermodynamics and heat transfer. His
fields of research include distributed energy resources and high
efficiency energy utilization, and he is currently involved in
research projects relating to natural gas, renewable energy and
low emission micro-turbine technology (i & %A &8 #¢ K B AR
#REE). Mr. Zhu obtained a bachelor degree, a master degree,
and a doctorate in thermal engineering from Harbin Institute of
Technology (\EE LEAZ) in July 1991, March 1994 and July
1997 respectively. Mr. Zhu was also a visiting scholar at Helmut
Schmidt University in Hamburg, Germany, from November
2001 to November 2002. Mr. Zhu currently serves as a council
member of each of the Chinese Society of Power Engineering
(“CSPE”) (FEE) I TIEE®) and the China Electronic Energy-
Saving Technology Association (FBIZE FERRERIITHE). Mr. Zhu
is also a member of both the Boiler Professional Committee of
CSPE (FEE N TEE22HMEFZXZ B ) and the Cogeneration
Professional Committee of the Chinese Society for Electrical
Engineering (FEIEM T IRR@REHEXEE D).
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Mr. Luk Wai Keung (PE{#3&), aged 54, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 16 February
2015. Mr. Luk has over 20 years of working experience in
the accounting and held senior positions in a number of
listed companies in Hong Kong. He has been an executive
director of Imperium Group Global Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 776) from 1 August 2016. Mr. Luk was the executive
director of Sun International Resources Limited (Stock
Code: 8029) from December 2015 to July 2016. He was
the chief financial officer of Fu Shou Yuan International
Group Limited (Stock Code: 1448) from November 2013 to
April 2015. Mr. Luk was the chief financial officer of Larry
Jewelry International Company Limited (Stock Code: 8351)
from July 2011 to October 2013, responsible for its overall
financial control and management. From 1996 to 2010, Mr.
Luk worked at several companies in accounting and finance

area.

Mr. Luk graduated from the University of Hong Kong with
a Bachelor of Science in Engineering in Hong Kong in
November 1986 and obtained a Master Degree in Business
Administration from the Australian Graduate School of
Management of the University of New South Wales in
Australia in May 1994. He has been a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January
2014 and, a Chartered Financial Analyst at the Association
for Investment Management and Research since September
1999.
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EEREREEERE

The Directors’

interests in shares of the Company or any

underlying shares and debentures” section of the Report of ~ #iF&

the Directors on pages 62 to 65 of this Annual Report.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
The following table sets out certain information about our TRZIEHEEALAE

BREEE

senior management personnel as at the date of this annual ~ HiFJEEHER :

report:

Name Age Current Position

e FiR AR

Mr. Xu Xihua 63 Deputy general manager of Taicang Natural Gas

fRIGELE RERAREBRE

Mr. Yuan Qing 44 Deputy general manager of Taicang Natural Gas

rRELELE KB RAREBIBERE

Mr. Ng Chi Kit 45 Chief financial officer and company secretary of
the Company

REGTE ARG BREFRATWE

Mr. Zhou Jihui 56 Deputy general manager of the Company

[E M AR S ZAUNSIE b $e ]
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Senior Management

Mr. Xu Xihua (##5%), aged 63, joined the Group in May
2002 and is a deputy general manager of Taicang Natural
Gas, responsible for sales and marketing of our Group.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Xu gained experience in
operational management of natural gas enterprise from his
employment at Taicang Suchuang Pipeline Liquified Gas
Engineering Company Limited (K& & 8| BRI T L2
BB 7A), where he was a manager from January 1999
to April 2002, responsible for the overall management of
operations, safety, infrastructures and the supply of piped
liquified gas. From August 1992 to October 1997, Mr. Xu
was the chief officer of the enterprise safety division and
the infrastructures division (&R & & & & &) of Suzhou
Suchuang Industrial Group Company (& /I 71 & B B % &
B~ 7]) (now known as Suchuang Group), where he was
responsible for the internal management and security,
infrastructure and property maintenance of the company. Mr.
Xu was employed as a telecommunications worker and later
promoted to the foreman at Lanzhou Railway Bureau from
December 1972 to December 1986.

Mr. Xu graduated from the Correspondence Institute
Affiliated to the Party School of the Central Committee of
the CPC (F H AP RERR K ER) in the PRC through its
distance learning programme in June 1990 specializing in
economics management. He has been a certified technician
of Suzhou Human Resources Bureau since December 2002
and a certified assistant government relations advisor (BB
T M) of the Ministry of Railway of the PRC since July 1991.
In addition, Mr. Xu received the Advanced Productivity
Worker award (Jt# 4 & (I{E)3) from the Lanzhou Railway
Bureau in March 1990 and the Taicang Outstanding
Communist Party Member award in June 1999.
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Mr. Yuan Qing (£%), aged 44, joined the Group in August
2004 and is a deputy general manager of Taicang Natural
Gas, responsible for overseeing the operation of the
production department. Mr. Yuan has extensive management
experience. He joined Taicang Natural Gas in August 2004
as a manager of the production division, responsible for gas
supply service and scheduling, manufacturing operations
and safety management, and was promoted to deputy
general manager in July 2006. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Yuan was head of general office of Suchuang Group
from January to July 2004, responsible for internal operation,
regulatory compliance and external relationships. From
1993 to 2004, Mr. Yuan served in the People’s Liberation
Army in Beijing Military Region (It ’RE[&) and retried from
the People’s Liberation Army with the rank of captain. He
graduated from China People’s Liberation Army International
Relations College (TEIARBMEBRBREBMAEZE) in July
1999 specialising in Optic Intelligence Terminal Processing
(tBIEWREMEEIE) and from Correspondence Institute of
the Party School of the Central Committee of the CPC (# 3t
PRERHFZER) in the PRC specialising in law through
its distance learning programme in December 2001. He was
awarded the qualification of engineer in June 2009.

Mr. Ng Chi Kit (RE#), aged 45, is the chief financial
officer and the company secretary of the Company,
responsible for the oversight of the Group’s financial and
accounting operations, as well as company secretarial
and internal control function. Mr. Ng has over 17 years of
experience in accounting and auditing. Mr. Ng has been
an independent non-executive director of Great Wall Motor
Company Limited (Stock Code: 2333) since 11 May 2017.
Since December 2010, Mr. Ng has been a non-executive
director and a member of the audit committee of Chaowei
Power Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 951), responsible
for oversight of the financial management and reporting.
From December 2010 to October 2013, Mr. Ng served as
the chief financial officer of a private company which is
engaged in wholesale agricultural produce markets in the
PRC. From January 2010 to December 2010, he served
as the chief financial officer and the company secretary
of Chaowei Power Holdings Limited, responsible for
oversight of financial and accounting operations, company
secretarial and internal control function. From March 2000
to December 2009, Mr. Ng worked in the Assurance and
Advisory Business Services Department of Ernst & Young.
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Mr. Ng graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy in
November 1997. Mr. Ng has been an associate member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
January 2003 and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants since June 2006.

Mr. Zhou Jihui (F#18), aged 56, joined the Group in April
2014 and is the deputy general manager of the Company,
responsible for the Group’s strategic development planning
and managing the Group’s construction projects. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Zhou has gained extensive
experience in the field of urban gas. From July 1985 to
March 2009, Mr. Zhou worked at Southwest Municipal
Engineering Design & Research Institute of China (BT
TR R AR AR BRAR) where he held various
positions including assistant engineer, engineer, senior
engineer and chief gas engineer, responsible for urban gas
design, consultation and technology management. From
March 2009 to August 2012, Mr. Zhou was at PetroChina
Kunlun Natural Gas Usage Company Limited (A H 2
BAARFMABMRAF) where he held various positions
including CNG chief technology officer responsible for
CNG engineering and technology management, the director
of the engineering technology department responsible for
the overall management of engineering and technology
operations, and the director of the information technology
department responsible for technology and information
technology management. Mr. Zhou obtained a bachelor’s
degree in urban gas energy supply engineering (¥ T #A R &
BEMLETF2) from Chongging Institute of Architecture and
Engineering (EERZE T2 ) (now known as Chongqing
University (BB A2)) in the PRC in July 1985. Mr. Zhou
has been a certified senior engineer from December 1997
and a member of the Subcommittee of High Pressure Fuel
Gas Cylinders for Automobile of the National Gas Cylinder
Standardisation Technical Committee (& BRIMZ (LR IlT
ZECHEARERHRMORNEZRS)
Committee of Compressed Natural Gas of the China Gas
Society (PTHIT AT REBENRAOIGERBANREXZES)
since September 2011 and October 2011, respectively.

and the Professional
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Industry Overview

In 2018, the world’s economy kept growing, but the strength
of the recovery varied. Accelerated accumulation of risks
— changing relations between China and U.S., increased
risks of global debt crisis, continuous fluctuations in
international oil prices, as well as geopolitics, presented
significant challenges for the world’s economic growth.
China saw a relatively rapid economic growth last year, but
trade frictions between China and the United States had
put significant pressure on the export trade and negatively
affected various industries in China. However, with the
reduction in the reserve-deposit ratio by the People’s Bank of
China at the end of last year and the adoption of measures
to encourage domestic consumption, we believe that this
will be beneficial for the sustainable growth of China’s
macro economy in the future. The year 2018 marks the 40th
anniversary of the reform and opening up of China. Facing
a number of challenges, China’s overall economy “grew
steadily”, due to economic stimulus measures implemented
by the PRC government in due course: the macro economy
was stable; the quality and benefits were continuously
improved; and the retail consumption played a more
significant role in spurring economic growth. Driven by the
national economic situation which was stable and moving
in a positive direction, stricter environmental protection
policies, increased prices of alternate energy and other
favorable factors, the apparent consumption of natural gas
in China hit a new high, and the industry grew explosively,
in 2018. According to the statistical data of the NDRC, the
natural gas consumption in 2018 reached 280.3 billion m?,
representing an increase of 43 billion m* or a year-on-year
growth of 18.1%.
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The energy profile of China is in a comprehensive
adjustment period, and promoting green economy
transformation is one of key national development strategies.
Pollution control was thoroughly conducted, and the task
of three major structure adjustments was tougher, but
the state confirmedly carried out the transformation to a
green economy, with unabated efforts. In June 2018, the
Three-year Plan on Defending the Blue Sky, described as
a “timetable” and “roadmap” for the next 3 years, was
published. Based on 4.7 million households which used
gas and electricity in lieu of coal in 2017 and the total
reduction of over 10 million tons of scattered coal, the
work for clean energy heating continued to be enhanced in
2018. According to the Three-year Plan on Defending the
Blue Sky, scattered coal shall be basically replaced in daily
and winter heating in Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei, the “2+26”
surrounding cities, Fenwei plain and other key regions,
subject to the assurance of energy supply, before the heating
season of 2020. In 2018, the reform focused more on the
adaptation to local conditions and compliance with the law
of economic development. The principle of “determining
the change with assurance of supply and creating a new

I//

model before abandoning the old model” was mentioned
repeatedly. “Coal-to-gas” and “coal-to-gas electricity” were
not the sole orientation emphasized. “Gas, electricity,
coal or heat can be used where appropriate” in line with
the local conditions, so as to promote the reconstruction
step by step. In 2018, China further deepened the national
energy orientation of “coal-to-gas” and restated the strategic

orientation of natural gas in future energy policies.
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In 2018, in order to promote the construction of beautiful
China and defending the blue sky, there were more
natural gas reform actions in China, as compared with
the past. In April, NDRC published a circular to notify
that the perfection of the production, supply, marketing
and storage system in China shall be accelerated, and
infrastructure interconnection, natural gas reserve capacity
and other key projects shall be implemented under direct
supervision. In May, it published a document to determine
residential natural gas prices and non-residential natural
gas prices under the same price basis. At the beginning
of September, the General Office of the State Council
printed and distributed the Several Opinions on Promoting
the Coordinated and Stable Development of Natural
Gas (hereinafter referred to as the “Opinions”), which
specially sets out that the domestic natural gas production
should be rapidly increased in the next few years, and
provides guidance on all processes in the natural gas
industry chain. With the continuous implementation of
domestic “coal-to-gas” policies, continuous rationalization
of all processes in the natural gas industry and steady
macroeconomic growth of China, the data of NDRC show
that during the year of 2018, China’s apparent consumption
of natural gas reached should be 280.3 billion m?,
representing a year-on-year increase of 18.2%. The natural

gas consumption kept growing rapidly.

Energy is a source of driving force for economic
development as well as a driver for social civilization and
progress. When the macro economy is facing a significant
challenge of transformation and upgrade, the energy
transition has become an important topic at the national
strategy level. The natural gas, as the sole low-carbon
and clean energy among fossil energies, is becoming an
important driver for global energy transformation. In the
World and China Energy Outlook 2050, it is predicted that
China will experience a period of rapid growth in demand
for natural gas by 2040, with the newly increased demands
mainly from industry, resident, electricity and other sectors,
and from 2040 to 2050, China will experience a period of
steady growth in the natural gas demand.
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Business Overview

As at 31 December 2018, as the leading piped natural gas
supplier and operator in Taicang City, Jiangsu Province,
China, the Group had a natural gas pipeline network totaling
614 km covering all major regions in Taicang City and over
90% (in terms of length) of the natural gas pipeline network
in Taicang City.

In 2018, the government of Taicang proactively took actions,
actively reviewing and re-planning the future transportation
development of the whole city, based on the national
strategy of economic integration of the Yangtze River Delta,
and put forward the concept of developing the city into
an important access from Jiangsu to Shanghai, for the first
time. The data in the Government Work Report of Taicang
City 2019 show that, in 2018, Taicang City recorded the
gross regional product of RMB124 billion (estimated,
similarly hereinafter), representing a year-on-year increase
of 7.2%; the general public budget revenue of RMB14.07
billion, representing an increase of 10.2%; total investment
of RMB46.5 billion in fixed assets; and ranked sixth in
China’s Top 100 Counties (Cities) in terms of comprehensive

economic competitiveness.

For Taicang, the nearest county-level city to Shanghai,
constructing roads which are “accessible and connected to
the Yangtze River Delta” is an important method of using
the advantage of traffic location to promote the high-quality
economic development. According to the Multimodal
Transport Corridor Planning of Yangtze River Economic Zone
of Jiangsu Province (2018-2035), it is planned that there
will be 3 new high speed railway projects, 1 interurban
railway project and 1 port railway construction project in
Taicang, and the Taicang Station in the Shanghai-Nantong
Railway is planned to be a comprehensive junction station,
which is conductive to integrate Taicang into the group of
cities in the Yangtze River Delta. In addition, the Taicang
Port is an important part of Shanghai International Shipping
Center as designated by the state, the main container port,
the transshipment hub for transport by river and sea, as well
as the sole riverside natural harbor in Jiangsu. As at the end

of 2018, Taicang was ranked first in the province and tenth
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in China, and became the No.1 foreign trade port along the
Yangtze River, the port with the biggest number of foreign
trade routes along the Yangtze River, and the port with the
largest number of incoming and outgoing international
navigation ships in the province. Taicang, the sole riverside
city near Shanghai in Jiangsu, boasted uniquely built-in
advantages. At present, the government of Taicang is
planning the construction of “two regions and two cities”
— a technology innovation industrial park near Shanghai, a
riverside modern logistics and trade base, a modern garden
city model, and a Sino-German city model, under a grand
pattern and with significant investment. The favorable
macroeconomic environment and great growth potential of
Taicang City provides the Group with an excellent business
environment and strong support for business development,
which is conducive to steady growth of the Group.

In order to align with the development direction of
future energy technologies, the Group was committed
to developing itself into a comprehensive energy and
environmental protection enterprise, developed diversified
energy businesses and further expanded businesses into
distributed energy resource, low-carbon and environmental
protection fields. In April 2018, the Group acquired 9.16%
of the enlarged issued share capital of Dunhua Petroleum
at a total consideration of RMB48 million. Dunhua
Petroleum is mainly engaged in promotion and provision
of relevant petrochemicals technology and software as
well as information technology services, and relevant
businesses of oil and natural gas exploration. The Group
is optimistic about the business prospects and technical
advantages of Dunhua Petroleum, and expects that it will
invest in a number of subsequent projects in the future, and
integrate traditional clean energy business with innovative
technologies to achieve the strategic target of low emissions.
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After that, in May 2018, the Group injected RMB17.5
million into Beijing Beilun, which is mainly engaged in
natural gas heating services and gas business. Upon the
completion, the Group held 20% of the equity interest in of
Beijing Beilun. The capital injection represents the process
of transforming the Company into a comprehensive clean
energy supplier. The Group is committed to synergizing
and leveraging the resource advantages of the Company
and Beijing Beilun to achieve strategic development of
diversification of integrated clean energy businesses, enhance
the Group’s comprehensive strength in the energy industry,
and provide strong support for the development of clean gas
heating projects and distributed energy projects in the city.

ADJUSTMENT OF NATURAL GAS PRICE

The Group has been in good strategic relation with
PetroChina Company Limited for more than 10 years,
and put into operation the city gateway station which is
connected with Sichuan-East Transmission Pipeline of
Sinopec in November 2015, further ensuring sufficient
gas-supply resources in areas where the Group carries
out main businesses. The purchase price of natural gas of
the Group is determined by NDRC according to the type
of end users and gateway station prices. During the year,
the Group’s average unit purchase price for natural gas
(exclusive of VAT) (which is calculated by dividing the
total natural gas purchase cost by the total natural gas
purchase volume for the relevant period) was RMB1.98/
m>. The maximum end-user price at which the Group
could sell piped natural gas to the end-users is determined
by the Taicang Price Bureau. The prices for industrial and
commercial end-users are generally higher than those
for residential users and other users. During the year, the
Group’s average unit selling price for natural gas (exclusive
of VAT) was RMB2.53/m?>.

Natural Gas Sale and Transmission Business

Taicang City, our main operating area, is a major industrial
county-level city in Jiangsu Province, and is adjacent to
affluent cities in Eastern China, such as Suzhou, Kunshan,
Changshu and Shanghai, with remarkable geographic
advantages available, creating the Shanghai-Taicang one-city
effect together with Shanghai. The dynamic economic
and industrial development has brought unceasingly
increasing industrial and commercial users of natural gas
to the Group. As at 31 December 2018, the Group has 584
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commercial and industrial users, and approximately 240,000
residential users in Taicang, representing a net decrease
of 1 commercial and industrial user and an increase of
approximately 20,000 residential users as compared to those
in 31 December 2017. During the year, revenue generated
from our sale and transmission of natural gas business was
approximately RMB1,019.3 million, up 19.8% compared
with the same period in 2017, accounting for 92.4% of the
Group’s total revenue. Such increase was primarily due to

an increase the volume of natural gas sold during the year.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 5 CNG/
LNG filling stations,
Sichuan, 1 station in Taicang, 1 station in Suzhou. 1 LNG/

including 3 stations in Guangyuan,

CNG filling station in each of Sichuan and Taicang are under
preparation and will be completed by the end of 2019.

Natural Gas Pipeline Construction and
Connection Business

The Group’s natural gas pipeline construction and
connection business includes the construction and
installation of urban gas pipeline networks, as well as the
connection of the networks to the end-user pipelines for
property developers and new industrial and commercial
users. During the year, revenue generated from natural
gas pipeline construction amounted to RMB76.9 million,
representing a decrease of 30.4% compared to RMB110.6
million for the corresponding period of last year, which
accounted for 7.0% of total revenue during the year. Such
decrease was mainly attributable to more construction
projects completed during the year related to reconstructing
old residential area of which the revenue received was

lower than commercial and new real estate projects.
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Developing into a Comprehensive Energy and
Environmental Protection Enterprise

Distributed energy resource, low-carbon and energy-saving
technologies are core elements of global energy reform.
At present, natural-gas distributed energy resource and
environmental protection industries of China are still in their
infancy. In order to gain an advantage in the market, on
24 October 2017, the Group, through Suchuang Shanghai,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
an acquisition agreement with Xinjiang Dunhua Green
Oil Technology Co., Ltd. T BHEZEAMBMKRERA
Al) (“Dunhua Technology”) and Xinjiang Dunhua Gas
Engineering Technology Co., Ltd. FTIEH ERE T &
it B R A 7)) (“Dunhua Gas”), for acquiring 51% equity
interest in Dunhua Gas from Dunhua Technology for a total
consideration of RMB22.3 million. Meanwhile, Dunhua
Gas became an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group with 51% of equity interest held by the Group.
The main businesses of Dunhua Gas include capturing
carbon dioxide and nitrogen from industrial waste gas from
oil refineries, gas-fired power stations, chemical fertilizer
plants, etc., through self-owned technologies, and storing
and utilizing them.

Such acquisition supports the Group in expanding
businesses into low-carbon and environmental protection
fields, strengthening the Group’s strategic orientation of
commitment to developing into a comprehensive energy and
environmental protection enterprise. At present, the project
of Dunhua Gas is at the construction and investment stage.
It is expected that such project will be at the beginning of
the period of investment return in 2019 and lead the Group
to make progress toward the development direction of

diversified energy service.

Significant Events During the Year

On 9 April 2018, Suchuang Shanghai subscribed for 8
million shares of Dunhua Petroleum at a total consideration
of RMB48 million, representing 9.16% of the enlarged issued
share capital of Dunhua Petroleum. Dunhua Petroleum is
mainly engaged in, among others, promotion and provision
of relevant petrochemicals technology and software as well
as information technology services, and provision of relevant
businesses of oil and natural gas exploration.
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On 8 May 2018, Suchuang Shanghai, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a capital increase
agreement with the Beijing Beilun and Ms. Ma Jingyun and
Mr. Yu Xiang, pursuant to which Suchuang Shanghai agreed
to contribute RMB17.5 million to subscribe for a registered
capital of RMB5 million in Beijing Beilun. Beijing Beilun
is principally engaged in natural gas clean heating services
(not involving heat production using coal and oil as fuel)
and gas business (limited to sale of natural gas).

During the year, the Group has invested in unlisted
equity investment of RMB97.3 million in relation to the
construction and operation of LNG export terminal in the
US and has invested in the listed equity investment of
RMB65.8 million with the fair value gain of RMB2.1 million
as at the balance sheet date. The Company expects that the
equity investments could facilitate the sale and development
of natural gas business in the future.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

Revenue

Our total revenue increased by 14.0% from RMB967.3
million in 2017 to RMB1,102.8 million in 2018. The
increase was mainly attributable to the net effect of an
increase in revenue from sales and transmission of natural
gas business and decrease in revenue from construction
and connection of gas pipeline business as a result of an

increase in volume of natural gas sold during the year.

Gross profit

Our gross profit decreased by 6.2% from RMB229.0 million
in 2017 to RMB214.8 million in 2018. The decrease was
primarily due to the net effect of increase in gross profit
from sale and transmission of natural gas businesses and
decrease in gross profit from construction and connection
of gas pipelines business. The decrease in the Group’s gross
profit margin from 23.7% to 19.5% was primarily due to the
decrease in gross profit margin of sale and transmission of
natural gas business as a result of slight increase in average

unit purchase price of natural gas during the year.
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Other income and gains

Other income and gains increased by 63.0% from RMB16.7
million in 2017 to RMB27.2 million in 2018, primarily due
to the increase in foreign exchange gain and fair value gains
of financial assets and equity investments recognised in
2018.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses increased by 23.9% from
RMB68.7 million in 2017 to RMB85.1 million in 2018,
which was mainly due to the increase in staff costs and
share options expenses, such increase was in line with the

Group’s business expansion.

Finance costs

Our finance costs decreased by 12.5% from RMB6.3 million
in 2017 to RMB5.5 million in 2018. The decrease was
primarily due to the decrease in weighted average borrowing
balances in 2018.

Share of profits of associates

Our share of profits of associates increased by 271.5% from
RMB1.9 million in 2017 to RMB7.1 million in 2018. The
significant increase was mainly attributable to the significant
increase in sales of pipeline natural gas business of our
associated company in 2018.

Income tax expense

Our income tax expense decreased by 11.5% from RMB48.1
million in 2017 to RMB42.5 million in 2018, primarily
attributable to our increased taxable income for the year
2017. Our effective tax rate remained stable at 32.4% and
29.1% in 2017 and 2018 respectively.

Profit attributable to owners of the parent

In 2018, profit attributable to owners of the parent amounted
to approximately RMB98.6 million, representing an increase
of approximately 5.0% from approximately RMB93.9 million
for 2017.
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Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had net current assets
of approximately RMB389,766,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB561,934,000 ) of which cash and cash equivalents
were approximately RMB413,374,000 (31 December 2017:
approximately RMB569,991,000). Total borrowings were
approximately RMB158,010,000 (31 December 2017:
approximately RMB90,000,000). The amount of bank
borrowings as at 31 December 2018 were denominated in
RMB and Hong Kong dollar, and bore interest ranging from
4.29% to 8.22% per annum. Except for RMB80.0 million
which are repayable within one year, the rest of balances
are not repayable within one year.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s current ratio (current
assets/current liabilities) was 2.04 (31 December 2017:
2.72) and gearing ratio (total borrowings/total assets) was
approximately 7.7% (31 December 2017: approximately
4.8%). The Group has sufficient cash and available banking
facilities to meet its commitments and working capital
requirements. This strong cash position enables the Group
to explore potential investment and business development

opportunities to expand its business in China.

Exchange rate fluctuation risk

As all of the Group’s businesses are situated in the PRC,
substantially all of its income and expenses are denominated
in RMB. The exchange fluctuation during the year mainly
arised from appreciation of RMB against the US dollar kept
in Hong Kong, and such cash was generated from the fund
raising activities of the Group in the past few years. The
Group will closely monitor the interest rate and exchange
rate of the market and make appropriate responses when
necessary. Please refer to note 44 of the financial statements
on foreign currency risk.
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Contingent liabilities
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities
as at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: nil).

Charge on assets

At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group’s
assets were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to
the Group. The aggregate carrying amounts of the assets
of the Group pledged at the end of each of the reporting
periods are as follows:
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PROSPECTS

Looking back to 2018, in the complicated and changeable
international and domestic environment, China’s economy
grew steadily as a whole. As the energy transformation has
become an important issue at the national strategic level,
the natural gas industry has ushered in a golden period
of development. According to the statistical data of the
National Energy Administration, the apparent consumption
of natural gas in China in 2018 reached 280.3 billion m?,
representing an increase of 43 billion m® or a year-on-year
growth of 18.1%. The increase in consumption was mainly
attributable to continuous growth in foreign trade in
Mainland China, demand for gas driven by industrial growth
and demand of residential and industrial users for natural
gas further bolstered by comprehensive implementation by
the central government of the “shift from coal to natural gas”
project in Beijing, Tianjin, and Hebei region, the Yangtze
River Delta and the Pearl River Delta.

The energy consumption was effectively controlled, with the
continuous deepening of the energy consumption revolution,
continuous change of energy use, gradual acceleration of
the China’s process of using clean and low-carbon energy,
continuous optimization of the product type mix, and a
larger proportion of clean energy consumption with high
efficiency and low pollution. As China ushered in a new
era for economic development, it entered a new stage of
energy development, but there was a long way to go for
energy transformation and reform, with the prominent
problem of structural overcapacity in production of
traditional energy, the more arduous task of substitution of
clean energy and more pressure on energy conservation
and consumption reduction. It takes considerable efforts
to achieve high-quality economic development, further
improve the efficiency of energy resources development
and utilization, effectively control the total energy
consumption and accomplish the target of reducing the
energy consumption per unit of GDP by more than 15%
under the “13th Five-Year Plan”. In order to seize business
opportunities arising out of energy revolution, the Group has
gradually shifted its business focus to develop from a piped
gas company to a comprehensive energy and environmental
protection enterprise. In addition to continuing to strengthen
its core natural gas business, the Group will further develop
distributed energy and energy conservation and emission
reduction services and explore energy businesses in different
fields.
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2019 is the key year for comprehensively building a
moderately prosperous society and implementing the
“13th Five-Year Plan”, as well as the year marking the 70th
anniversary of the founding of the People’s Republic of
China, when keeping stable economic growth is crucial.
Looking forward to 2019, the keynote of China’s macro
policy is basically set for looser fiscal and monetary policies
which focus on stabilizing the overall demand, so as to
handle complex international problems including trade
frictions between China and the United States in a more
moderate and flexible manner, and it is expected that
China’s macro economy will continue to move in a positive
direction. Driven by environmental protection factors, the
domestic natural gas demand will keep growing rapidly. It
is believed that, supported by favorable national policies,
China’s natural gas industry is poised for better times.

The Group will seize opportunities to actively expand
and extend the industry chain. It will endeavor to realize
upstream and downstream integration in long-term planning
and will accelerate its development into a comprehensive
energy and environmental protection enterprise. The Group
has made extensive arrangement in cities around Taicang
City, such that businesses of distribution and transmission of
piped gas and natural gas have covered Kunshan City and
Changshu City. In last year, it carried out vehicle fueling
station businesses in Guangyuan, Sichuan. In the future, the
Group will further develop businesses in East China and
strategically develop markets with high growth potential
outside East China. It plans to realize expansion into regions
and fields through acquisition of equity interest or various
cooperation models, so as to expand the business size.
Meanwhile, the Group will capitalize on business networks
and superior resources to provide more diversified energy
and environmental protection solutions; expand the gas
source structure including imported LNG; investigate the
coverage of pipelines along the Yangtze River which are
connected to Changshu, Zhangjiagang, Jiangyin and other
developed areas in the Yangtze River Delta; establish a
user-centered big data service platform and continuously
explore opportunities for further expanding the business

coverage.
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Human resources and employees’ remuneration

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed a total of
371 (31 December 2017: 316) staff members in the PRC and
Hong Kong.

During the year under review, the total cost of employees
amounted to approximately RMB61.2 million. The Group
sought to further strengthen staff training by offering focused
training programmes and study tours to management and
professional technical personnel, and disseminating the
latest information of government policy on the distribution
and sale of piped natural gas business to its staff. The Group
continued to strive for the enhancement of professional
standards and overall qualities of its staff. The Group
also provided competitive salary packages to its staff,
encouraging them to be fully dedicated to their work and to
leverage their capabilities in serving customers.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a Dividend Policy (the “Dividend
Policy”). Under the Dividend Policy, the Board may from
time to time pay to the Shareholders interim dividends,
half-yearly or at other suitable intervals to be settled by the
Board any dividend which may be payable at a fixed rate
or special dividends as appear to the Board to be justified
by the financial conditions and the profits of the Company.
The declaration and payment of dividends is subject to the
discretion of the Board and must be approved at a general
meeting of the Shareholders. In addition, no dividends shall

exceed the amount recommended by the Board.

In accordance with the applicable requirements of the
Articles of Association and the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, no dividend shall be declared or paid
otherwise than out of profits. No distribution or dividend
may be paid to the Shareholders out of the share premium
account unless immediately following the date on which
the distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the
Company shall be able to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.
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The Board shall consider, including but not limited to, the

following factors before the declaration and payment of
dividends:

(a)

(h)

the Group’s actual and expected financial performance
and conditions and liquidity position;

the Shareholder’s interests;

the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the

Company and each of the members of the Group;

any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by the Group’s lenders;

the Group’s expected working capital requirements and

future expansion plans;

statutory and regulatory restrictions;

general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have any impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the

Company; and

any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Board endeavours to maintain a balance between

meeting the Shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital

management with a sustainable dividend policy. The Board

will continue to review the Dividend Policy and reserve the

right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend

and/or modify the Dividend Policy from time to time.
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SEEAREE

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability. The Company has been in compliance with
the mandatory code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) since
the listing of the shares of the Company (the “Shares”) (the
“Listing”) on the Stock Exchange on 11 March 2015 (the
“Listing Date”). The key corporate governance principles and
practices of the Company are outlined later in this annual
report.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the
Group, oversees the Group's strategic decisions and monitors
business and performance. The Board has delegated the
authority and responsibility for day-to-day management
and operation of the Group to the senior management of
the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs, the Board has established three Board committees,
namely the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”), (together, the “Board Committees”). The Board
has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as
set out in their respective terms of reference.
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Board composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
nine members, consisting of four executive Directors,
two non-executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors as set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Su Aping (Chairman)

Ms. Su Yi (Executive Vice Chairman)
Ms. Zhu Yaying

Mr. Du Shaozhou

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Xu Lei
Mr. Jin Bo

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhou Qingzu

Mr. Zhu Tong

Mr. Luk Wai Keung

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages
14 to 25 of this annual report. Save as disclosed in the
biographies of the Directors and that Mr. Su Aping and
Ms. Zhu Yaying have jointly own and operate a number of
companies and Ms. Su Yi is daughter of Mr. Su Aping and
Ms. Zhu Yaying, the Board members do not have any family,
financial, business or other material/relevant relationship
among themselves, and between the chairman and the chief

executive.

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to
the date of this annual report, the Company has been in
compliance with the requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive Directors with at
least one independent non-executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or

related financial management expertise.
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The Company has also complied with the requirement of
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of independent non-executive Directors representing at least
one-third of the Board.

The Company has received the annual confirmation from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors on his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and

the Company considers each of them to be independent.

Board meeting

The Board intends to hold board meetings regularly at
least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals.
Notices of not less than fourteen days will be given for all
regular board meetings to provide all Directors with an
opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda for
regular board meetings.

For other Board and Board Committee meetings, reasonable
notice will generally be given. The agenda and accompanying
board papers are dispatched to the Directors or Board
Committee members at least three days before the meetings
to ensure that they have sufficient time to review the
papers and be adequately prepared for the meetings. When
Directors or Board Committee members are unable to
attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be
discussed and given an opportunity to make their views
known to the chairman prior to the meeting.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee
meetings are/will be recorded in sufficient detail to
include the matters considered by the Board and the Board
Committee and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each
Board meeting and Board Committee meeting are/will be
sent to the Directors for comments within a reasonable time

after the date on which the meeting is held.

During the year, the Board held four Board meetings.
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Attendance at Board and Board Committee

Meetings

Attendance of each Director at all the Board meetings and
Board Committee meetings held up during the year is set out
as follows. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the

Company convened an annual general meeting.
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Audit ~ Nomination Remuneration Annual
Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee general
meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting
Exe® EnRZEe R4AZEE HMZES KR
Name of directors S B B o3 B BEAE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Su Aping (Chairman) BOTEE (2E) 44 NA TER 22 NATER 11
Ms. Zhu Yaying RBpRTL 44 NATER  NANER 212 0/1
Mr. Du Shaozhou HRARE 44 NATER  NATER  NATER 0/1
Ms. Su Yi gkt
(Executive Vice Chairman) (EHEEE) 34 N/ATERB N/A RN N/A TNEFB 0/1
Non-executive Directors FHTEE
Mr. Xu Lei AELE 3/4 22 NATER  NATER 0/1
Mr. Zhuang Jianhao (resigned — HEEEE (K2018%
on 3 September 2018) 953 H#E) 34 NATER NATER NATER 0/1
M. Jin Bo (appointed on SREE (R2018F
3 September 2018) 9IH3IFEZ(T) 04  NAMNER NAMER NADER  NATER
Independent Non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
Mr. Zhou Qingzu BERLE 3/4 12 12 12 0/1
Mr. Luk Wai Keung et bk 3/4 212 22 212 0N
Mr. Zhu Tong K xE 34 NATER NATER NATER NATER
Mr. He Junjie (resigned s EE (R2018F
on 1 February 2018) 2R1H#(E) 0/4 02 0/2 02  N/ATER
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Audit Committee

During the year, the Audit Committee comprises four
members, three of them are independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Zhou Qingzu, Mr. Zhu Tong and Mr.
Luk Wai Keung (replacing Mr. He Junjie since 1 February
2018), and one of them is a non-executive Director, namely
Mr. Xu Lei. Mr. Zhou Qingzu, the Company’s independent
non-executive Director, has been appointed as the chairman
of the Audit Committee. Mr. Luk Wai Keung possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications required under the
Listing Rules.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board of the appointment
and removal of the external auditors, review financial
statements and review and supervise the financial reporting
system and internal control procedures of the Group. The
Audit Committee has access to independent professional
advice, if required, and is provided with sufficient resources

to perform its duties.

During the year, the Audit Committee held two meetings.
The Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal audit function, and with the senior
management and auditors of the Company reviewed the
accounting policies and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, the risk management and internal control
system and financial reporting matters. It also reviewed
the financial statements of the Company, the Company’s
interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2018 and
the Company’s annual report for year ended 31 December
2018.

The attendance of the Audit Committee members at the

above meeting is set out in the above section headed

“Attendance at Board and Board Committee Meetings”.
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Remuneration Committee

During the year, the Remuneration Committee comprises
three members, two of them are independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Luk Wai Keung (replacing Mr. He
Junjie since 1 February 2018) and Mr. Zhou Qingzu, and
one of them is an executive Director, namely, Ms. Zhu
Yaying. Mr. Luk Wai Keung (replacing Mr. He Junjie since 1
February 2018), the Company’s independent non-executive
Director, has been appointed as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee has
access to independent professional advice, if required, and
is provided with sufficient resources to perform its duties.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board as to the Company’s
policy and structure of the remuneration for the Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy to ensure that no Director or any of
his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, in which remuneration will be determined
by reference to the performance of the individual and the

Company as well as market practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee will consult with chairman
of the Board about the remuneration proposals for the other

executive Directors.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held two
meetings. The Remuneration Committee reviewed the
remuneration policy of the Company and the remuneration
of Directors and senior management and made

recommendation to the Board.

The attendance of the Remuneration Committee members
at the above meeting is set out in the above section headed
“Attendance at Board and Board Committee Meetings”.
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Nomination Committee

During the year, the Nomination Committee consists of three
members, one of them is an executive Director, namely
Mr. Su Aping, and two of them are independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Luk Wai Keung (replacing
Mr. He Junjie since 1 February 2018) and Mr. Zhou Qingzu.
Mr. Su Aping has been appointed as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee has
access to professional advice, if required, and is provided

with sufficient resources to perform its duties.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board,
assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors and to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and removal of Directors of the Company.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee would take into account various aspects set
out in the Board Diversity Policy, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry
and regional experience. The Nomination Committee would
discuss and agree on measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend
them to the Board for adoption.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held two
meetings. The Nomination Committee reviewed the
composition of the Board and made recommendation to the
Board.

The attendance of the Nomination Committee members at

the above meeting is set out in the above section headed
“Attendance at Board and Board Committee Meetings”.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2018

REEEE

FR - REEZEGEE=EKE  Hh—(U
RATES  BEHMFELE  REFRUS
BIMIFITESE - AIERBREE (B2018F
2ATBE BRI ELESRLE) RABHRSLL
MO FELAERZIRBERZESER - 18
HLBQRENEXER (WARE) Wk
RHACERABITERES -

REZEENIZEBREARITESTENR
B RERAEK - FHEBLIERTESHNIE
Vi ANERRERERBRARREERAES
SELERER -

RAZESEENE  REAZESEEES
EZTUERRAANZIHER - BERET
RIVMER - i XMERBEER  EXE
& B MBRITEMEELER - ZE2R
BefamhliheNSEFELTILIEE
AR (ML E) AEESHRE TIARM -

FR REBZBECETMAERE - BEZ
B EFemNERYREESFELHE

RAZBEKEHF LASHNBERERN L
X EZGghEFZBEERNEFERBRL]
— 8 e



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION
The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company shall
establish comprehensive corporate governance practices and

procedures. During the year, the Board has:

(1) established and reviewed the corporate governance
policies and practices of the Company as well as made
relevant recommendations;

(2) reviewed and monitored the training and continuous
development of the Directors and senior management;

(3) reviewed and monitored the policies and practices of
the Company regarding the compliance of relevant
legal and regulatory requirements;

(4) established, reviewed and monitored code of conduct
for Directors and employees; and

(5) reviewed as to whether the Company has complied
with the CG Code and made necessary disclosures in
the annual report.

This corporate governance report has been reviewed by the
Board in discharge of its corporate governance function.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

As required by code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separated
and performed by different individuals. The chairman of the
Board and the chief executive officer of the Company are
currently two separate positions held by Mr. Su Aping and
Mr. Du Shaozhou respectively with distinct responsibilities.
The chairman of the Board is responsible for overall strategic
planning and overseeing the general corporate, financial and
compliance affairs of the Group. The chief executive officer
is primarily responsible for the strategic decision making
and the management of the Group.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS - TERM OF
APPOINTMENT

The non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) are not appointed for a specific term of
more than three years.

NOMINATION, APPOINTMENT, RETIREMENT
AND RE-ELECTION

In accordance with the Articles of Association, at least one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to, but not less than, one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation and shall be eligible for re-election and re-
appointment at every annual general meeting provided that
each Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and any new Director appointed
to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall
submit himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the
next annual general meeting after appointment.

DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
(the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuer”

code of conduct regarding dealings in the securities of
the Company by the Directors and the Group’s senior
management who, because of his/her office or employment,
is likely to possess inside information in relation to the
Group or the Company’s securities.

Upon specific enquiry, all the Directors confirmed that
they had complied with the Model Code during the year. In
addition, the Company is not aware of any non-compliance
of the Model Code by the senior management of the Group
up to the date of annual report.
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DIRECTORS” CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities
and participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. The Company updates the Directors
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements from time to time,
to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices.

According to the records provided by the Directors, a
summary of training received by the Directors during the
year is as follows:
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Type of Continuous
Professional
Development

Programmes
Name of Directors BEMA BEIEERTEIER
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Su Aping BRI S A, B
Ms. Su Yi e A B
Ms. Zhu Yaying RERLL A B
Mr. Du Shaozhou AR L E A B
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Xu Lei FELE A, B
Mr. Zhuang Jianhao (resigned on it E (201859 A3 B EHE) A, B
3 September 2018)
Mr. Jin Bo (appointed on ©FEE (R2018F9A3HEERT) A, B
3 September 2018)
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Mr. Zhou Qingzu BEELE A B
Mr. He Junjie (resigned on B ELE (7R2018F2 A1HEFHT) A, B
1 February 2018)
Mr. Zhu Tong F Nl A, B
Mr. Luk Wai Keung PEfRSE s A B

Notes:

A:  attending training sessions and/or seminars

B: reviewing materials and updates relating to the latest
development of the Listing Rules and other applicable

regulatory requirements

fa -
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REMUNERATION OF THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2018, except for a
member of senior management whose remuneration fell
within the ranging from HK$3.5 million to HK$4.0 million,
the remuneration of the rest of the members of senior
management were below HK$1.5 million.

Further details of the remuneration of Directors and five
highest paid employees have been set out in notes 9 and 10

to the financial statements.

AUDITORS” REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration paid or payable to Ernst
& Young for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out
below:

=R EE B 5N
HZE2018F12A31HEFE B—F&afk
EREEKENTHN N T3 588 ETE408
EETHNEEI HRSREEEKENH
B LM S EBETT

FREZFMA OB RSFMEENE P
FHECHIIR B B wRM TR0 -

RE &
HE2018F12A31BIEFE  BEEE M=
B L XKEEREKABNEE 2y 0
B

Amount

(RMB)

Iltems of auditors’ services e R S 1E B (ARE)

Audit services FAZ R 1,950,000
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL EEFEMBHRENTBRESE

REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility
to prepare accounts of the Group and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and the
Company’s management will provide information and
explanation to the Board to enable it to make informed
assessments of the financial and other decisions.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concern.

The statement of the auditors of the Company in respect of
their reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set
out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” contained in this

annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of
the Board to maintain an internal audit function and an
adequate risk management and internal control system to
safeguard shareholder investments and the Company’s assets
and to review the effectiveness of such system on an annual
basis.

The main features of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group are to provide a clear
governance structure, policies and procedures, as well as
a reporting mechanism to facilitate the Group to manage it
risks across business operations.

The Group has established a risk management framework,
which consists of the senior management of the Company.
The Board determines the nature and extent of risks that
shall be taken in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives,
and has the overall responsibility for monitoring design,
implementation and control of the risk management and
internal control systems, so as to ensure the Group has set
up and maintained a suitable and effective risk management
and internal control systems. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group has formulated and adopted a Corporate Risk
Management Policy in providing direction in identifying,
evaluating and managing significant risks. At least on an
annual basis, the senior management identifies risks that
would affect the achievement of the Group’s objectives,
and assesses and prioritizes the identified risks according
to a set of standard criteria. Risk mitigation plans and risk
owners are then established for those risks considered to be
significant.

Risk management report and internal control report are
submitted to the audit committee and the Board at least
once a year. The Board had performed an annual review
on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, including but not limited to the
Group’s ability to cope with its business transformation
and changing external environment; the scope and quality
of management’s review on risk management and internal
control systems; result of internal audit work and status of
compliance with the Listing Rules. The Board considers the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
effective.
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PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR
THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF
INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group strictly follows the requirements of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) (the “SFO”) and the
Listing Rules and ensures that inside information is disclosed
to the public as soon as reasonably practicable unless the
information falls within any of the safe harbours of the SFO.
Before inside information is fully disclosed to the public,
such information is kept strictly confidential. In addition, the
Group adopted the policy of disclosing relevant information
only to appropriate staff within the Group.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ng Chi Kit, the Company Secretary, reports to the
chairman of the Board. The details of his biography is set
out in the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report. Mr. Ng also confirmed
that he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 December
2018.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on
requisition by shareholders

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles of Association,
shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company having the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) to be
called by the Board. The written requisition must specify the
business to be transacted on the meeting, which shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.

If within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the
requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene an
EGM, the shareholder(s) concerned may themselves
convene an EGM, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the shareholder(s) making the requisition as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to such
shareholder(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to
the Board

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company
Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Address: 30th Floor, One Taikoo Place, 979 King’s Road,
Hong Kong

Email: ir@taicanggas.com

The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholder(s)’

enquiries and concerns to the Board and/or relevant board

committees of the Company, where appropriate, to respond
to the shareholder(s)’ questions.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by shareholders

Any shareholder of the Company who wish to put forward
proposals at general meetings of the Company shall
submit such proposals to the Board in writing for the
Board’s consideration not less than 7 days prior to the
date of a general meeting through the Company Secretary
whose contact details are set out in the paragraph headed
“Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board” under the section headed “Shareholders Rights”
above.

NOMINATION POLICY

The company secretary of the Company shall call a meeting
of the Nomination Committee, and invite nominations
of candidates from Board members for consideration by
the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
may also put forward candidates who are not nominated
by Board members. The factors which would be used as
reference by the Nomination Committee in assessing the
suitability of a proposed candidate for director include, inter
alia, reputation for integrity, professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy, willingness
to devote adequate time to discharge duties as Board
member, diversity of the Board, and such other perspectives
appropriate to the Company’s business. The Nomination
Committee shall make recommendations for the Board’s
consideration and approval.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that effective and proper investor
relations play a vital role in creating Shareholders’ value,
enhancing the corporate transparency as well as establishing
market confidence. The Company discloses information in
compliance with the Listing Rules, and publishes periodic
reports and announcements to the public in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus of
the Company is to ensure information disclosure is timely,
fair, accurate and complete, thereby enabling Shareholders,
investors as well as the public to make rational and
informed decisions. Updated key information and business
development of the Group are also available on the
Company’s website to enable Shareholders and investors to
have timely access to information about the Group.

The Company also endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with Shareholders and in particular, through
general meetings which provide a forum for Shareholders
to provide comments and exchange views with the Board.
Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) will be available
at the annual general meetings of the Company to address

Shareholders” queries.

The Company will continue to take measures to ensure

effective Shareholders’ communication and transparency.

There has been no change to the Articles of Association
since the Listing Date and up to date version of the Articles
of Association is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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Report of the Directors

The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal business activities of the Group include
distribution and sale of piped natural gas, provision of
natural gas transmission and acting as the main contractor
of construction and installation of gas pipelines in the PRC.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the year.

Results and dividends

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2018
and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at
that date are set out in the financial statements on pages
122 to 127.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a
final dividend of RMB0.028 (equivalent to HK$0.033) per
ordinary Share for shareholders whose names appear on
the Register of Members of the Company on Monday, 3
June 2019. Subject to approval by the shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting of the Company
to be held on Friday, 24 May 2019, the proposed final
dividend is expected to be paid on Tuesday, 18 June 2019
to the shareholders of the Company. This represented a
total distribution of RMB25.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2018.

There is no arrangement that a shareholder of the Company
has waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

Summary financial information

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements, is set out on page 280. This summary does not

form part of the audited financial statements.
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Property, plant and equipment
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the

financial statements, respectively.

Share capital
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the law of Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing Shareholders.

Purchase, redemption or sale of listed securities of
the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year 31 December 2018 to the date of this annual

report.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year are set out in note 36 to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of

changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable reserves

At 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law (as revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
RMB710,233,000, of which RMB0.028 per Share has been
proposed as a final dividend for the year (which represented
a total distribution of RMB25.3 million).
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Major customers and suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 38.8% of the total sales for the
year and sales to the largest customer for the year amounted
to 22.8% of the total sales for the year. Purchases from
the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 99.6%
of the total purchases for the year and purchase from the
largest supplier for the year amounted to 47.8% of the total
purchases for the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the five largest
customers or five largest suppliers of the Group during the
year.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to this
report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Su Aping (Chairman)
Ms. Zhu Yaying
Mr. Du Shaozhou (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Su Yi (Executive Vice Chairman)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Xu Lei
Mr. Zhuang Jianhao (Resigned on
3 September 2018)
(Appointed on

3 September 2018)

Mr. Jin Bo

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Zhou Qingzu
Mr. Luk Wai Keung
Mr. Zhu Tong
Mr. He Junjie (Resigned on

1 February 2018)
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Pursuant to the provisions in the Articles of Association, Mr.
Xu Lei, Mr. Zhou Qingzu and Mr. Luk Wai Keung will retire
from office as Director by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

Further, in accordance with Article 112 of the Articles
of Association, Mr. Jin Bo will hold office only until the
forthcoming annual general meeting, and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Mr. Zhou Qingzu, Mr. Zhu Tong and
Mr. Luk Wai Keung, and as at the date of this report still
considers them to be independent.

Directors’ and senior management’s biographies
Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 14 to
25 of this annual report.

Directors’ service contracts

Each of the executive Directors entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years which
may only be terminated in accordance with the provisions
of the service contract by either party giving to the other not
less than three to six months’ prior notice in writing.

The Company has entered into an appointment letter with
each of the non-executive Directors and the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company for a term of three
years which may only be terminated by either party giving to
the other not less than three months, prior notice in writing.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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Directors’ and controlling shareholders’ interests in
contracts

Save as disclosed under the headings “Connected
Transactions” below and “Related Party Transactions” in
note 41 to the financial statements, no Director, entity
connected with a director, controlling shareholders or any
of their subsidiaries had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

During the year, no contract of significance for the provision
of service to the Group by a controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries was made.

Management contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group were entered into or in existence as at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares and
debentures

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions
of the directors and chief executive of the Company in
the shares, and underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO, as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

EERFETHRAERKRS - HER®H
REEFENERRAR

2018128318 ARAREERE BT
BABRARRISHEEEZE (TERFSH
REAEIEBIEXVED) R - BRERGHO RE
EEPHEES  WETZRARFREES KB
EGRPIEINKEETHFENEZMA - R
BEMBITAZESETRESFRZINZETH
HERITAE AR R R AT RS RIAA I

AANY

-

Percentage of
the Company’s

Through issued share
controlled capital
corporation TEARAR]
BRRE BREIRA
Name of Directors S Nature of interest EwItE HERE BRL
Mr. Su Aping (1) BRI (1) Interest in a controlled  AEIEEEEL -
corporation, interest fi@BEs
of spouse 321,456,000 (L) 35.6
Ms. Zhu Yaying (2) RERLL (2) Interest of spouse BB
settlor and beneficiary ~ 2EEEETAR
of a discretionary trust %z A 321,456,000 (L) 35.6
Ms. Su'Yi (3) HELL (3) Beneficiary of a PRETREA
discretionary trust 123,138,000 (L) 13.64
Mr. Du Shaozhou HaEALE Beneficial owner EEEBEA 100,000 (L) 0.01

(L) denotes long position
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Notes:

198,318,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Fung Yu
Holdings Limited, which in turn is owned by Mr. Su Aping.
123,138,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Total Honest
International Investment Ltd which is wholly-owned by
Ridge Glorious Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by
BOS Trustee Limited as trustee for a discretionary trust of
which Ms. Zhu Yaying is the settlor, and Ms. Zhu Yaying and
Ms. Su Yi are two of the several eligible beneficiaries. Mr.
Su Aping is deemed to be interested in all the shares of the
Company held by Fung Yu Holdings Limited pursuant to the
SFO. Besides, Mr. Su Aping is the spouse of Ms. Zhu Yaying.
Under the SFO, Mr. Su Aping is deemed to be interested
in the same number of Shares in which Ms. Zhu Yaying is
interested.

123,138,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Total Honest
International Investment Ltd which is wholly owned by
Ridge Glorious Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by
BOS Trustee Limited as trustee for a discretionary trust of
which Ms. Zhu Yaying is the settlor, and Ms. Zhu Yaying
and Ms. Su Yi are two of the several eligible beneficiaries.
Besides, Ms. Zhu Yaying is the spouse of Mr. Su Aping.
Under the SFO, Ms. Zhu Yaying is deemed to be interested
in the same number of Shares in which Mr. Su Aping is
interested.

123,138,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Total Honest
International Investment Ltd which is wholly owned by
Ridge Glorious Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by
BOS Trustee Limited as trustee for a discretionary trust of
which Ms. Zhu Yaying is the settlor, and Ms. Zhu Yaying and
Ms. Su Yi are two of the several eligible beneficiaries.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none

of the Directors and chief executive had registered an

interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares

or debentures of the Company or any of its associated

corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant

to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model

Code

for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers.
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RARBRBERAD RS — AR AHE

Interests in underlying shares of the Company - equity

derivatives of the Company: HmPTETIA -
Number of
underlying shares
in respect of the Percentage
share options of the
granted under the Company’s
Scheme issued share
REZ BR capital
BRERSR ERNFE#T
Name of directors B=pg Nature of Interest ERtE WHEEROEE RENEDL
Mr. Su Aping"! FAR Beneficial owner, ERBEEA 4,350,000 0.48%
interest of spouse Gz
Ms. Zhu Yaying® Rep L Beneficial owner, ERBEA 4,350,000 0.48%
interest of spouse B
Ms. SuYi FXLL Beneficial owner ESBAA 2,150,000 0.24%
Mr. Du Shaozhou HARRE Beneficial owner ERBEA 2,200,000 0.24%
Mr. Xu Lei HELE Beneficial owner BERBEAA 300,000 0.03%
Mr. Zhou Qingzu BERLE Beneficial owner ERBAA 300,000 0.03%
Mr. He Junjie (resigned on &5 £ (7020184 Beneficial owner ERBEAA 300,000 0.03%
1 February 2018) 2R BEHE)

Mr. Luk Wai Keung Befgia ik Beneficial owner ERHEEA 300,000 0.03%
Mr. Zhuang Jianhao TS (720184 Beneficial owner ERBEBEA 200,000 0.02%

(resigned on 9A3HET)
3 September 2018)

Mr. Su Aping is the beneficial owner of the share options
granted under the Company’s share option scheme in
respect of 2,200,000 shares of the Company issuable
under such share options. Ms. Zhu Yaying is the beneficial
owner of the share options granted under the Company’s
share option scheme in respect of 2,150,000 shares of the
Company issuable under such share options. Mr. Su Aping is
the spouse of Ms. Zhu Yaying. Under the SFO, Mr. Su Aping
is deemed to be interested in the same number of share
options in which Ms. Zhu Yaying is interested.

Ms. Zhu Yaying is the beneficial owner of the share options
granted under the Company’s share option scheme in
respect of 2,150,000 shares of the Company issuable under
such share options. Mr. Su Aping is the beneficial owner of
the share options granted under the Company’s share option
scheme in respect of 2,200,000 shares of the Company
issuable under such share options. Ms. Zhu Yaying is the
spouse of Mr. Su Aping. Under the SFO, Ms. Zhu Yaying
is deemed to be interested in the same number of share
options in which Mr. Su Aping is interested.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none
of the Directors and chief executive had registered an
interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

Substantial shareholders’ and other persons’ interests
and short positions in shares and underlying shares
As at 31 December 2018, so far as is known to the
directors or chief executive of the Company, the following
shareholders (excluding directors and chief executive of the
Company) had interests and short positions of 5% or more
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:
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Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share

Number of capital
ordinary HERF
shares held BRITRAN
Name £ Nature of interest MY FREERHA Epagsd
Fung Yu Holdings Fung Yu Holdings  Beneficial owner EEBA 198,318,000 (L) 21.96
Limited (1) Limited (1)
Dazhong (Hong Kong) AR (BB)EE  Beneficial owner ExBEA 178,352,000 (L) 19.75
International Corporation  HRAF] (2)
Limited (2)
Shanghai Dazhong Public ~ FEABRAMEE  Interest of a controlled  RREZEREZ 178,352,000 (L) 19.75
Utilities (Group) Co., (%E) & corporation
Limited (2) BRAF ()
Action East International ~ BIZE % Beneficial owner ERfBA 165,540,000 (L) 18.33
Limited (3) BRAT ()
Prax Capital China Prax Capital China  Interest of a controlled ~ RZZEZEEMER 165,540,000 (L) 18.33
Growth Fund IlI, Growth Fund 111, corporation
L.P.(3) L.P. (3)
Prax Capital China Prax Capital China Interest of a controlled ~ REZEZEMER 165,540,000 (L) 18.33
Growth Fund Il Growth Fund Il corporation
GP, Ltd. (3) GP, Ltd. (3)
Total Honest International — &|BIE Beneficial owner EREEA 123,138,000 (L) 13.64
Investment Ltd. (4) BREBRRA (4)
Ridge Glorious Limited (4)  Ridge Glorious Interest of a controlled ~ RIEEERIEZS 123,138,000 (L) 13.64
Limited (4) corporation
BOS Trustee Limited (4) BOS Trustee Interest of a controlled ~ RIEEERIEZS 123,138,000 (L) 13.64
Limited (4) corporation
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denotes long position

Fung Yu Holdings Limited is 100% held by Mr. Su Aping.

Dazhong (Hong Kong) International Corporation Limited
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shanghai Dazhong Public
Utilities (Group) Co., Limited, the A shares of which are
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with Stock Code
600635 and the H shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange with Stock Code 1635. Shanghai Dazhong Public
Utilities (Group) Co., Limited is deemed to be interested in
the same number of shares in which Dazhong (Hong Kong)
International Corporation Limited is interested.

Action East International Limited is wholly-owned by
Prax Capital China Growth Fund Ill, L.P.. Under the SFO,
Prax Capital China Growth Fund I, L.P. is deemed to be
interested in the same number of shares in which Action
East International Limited is interested.

Prax Capital China Growth Fund IlI, L.P. is a limited
partnership established in the Cayman lIslands whose sole
general partner is Prax Capital China Growth Fund Il GP,
Ltd., a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands.

Total Honest International Investment Ltd is wholly-owned
by Ridge Glorious Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned
by BOS Trustee Limited as trustee for a discretionary trust of
which Ms. Zhu Yaying is the settlor, and Ms. Zhu Yaying and
Ms. Su Yi are two of the several eligible beneficiaries.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, no

person, other than the Directors and chief executive of

the Company, whose interests are set out in the section

“Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions

in shares and underlying shares and debentures” above,

had registered an interest or short position in the shares or

underlying shares of the Company that was required to be

recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option schemes (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of
the Scheme include the Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors), other employees of the Group,
consultants and advisers of the Group. The Scheme became
effective on 11 March 2015 and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from 11
March 2015. The scheme mandate limit was refreshed on 12
September 2017.

Principal terms of the Scheme

A summary of the principal terms of the Scheme is set out
below pursuant to the requirements as contained in Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules:

(a) Purpose
The purposes of the Scheme are to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional
incentive to employees, directors, consultants and
advisers of the Group and to promote the success of
the business of the Group.

(b)  Participants
Eligible participants of the Scheme include any
employee (whether full-time or part-time), Director,
consultant or adviser of the Group (the “Eligible

Person”).

(c) Total number of shares available for issue under the
scheme and percentage of issued share capital as at
29 March 2019

The number of shares available for issue under the
Scheme was 75,292,400 Shares, representing 8.34%
of the issued share of the Company as at 29 March
2019.
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(d)

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the
scheme

Unless approved by the Shareholders in a general
meeting (with such Eligible Person and his close
associates (or his associates if the Eligible Person is a
connected person) abstaining from voting), the total
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon the
exercise of the options granted to each Eligible Person
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1%
of the relevant class of securities of the Company in

issue.

Any options granted to an Eligible Person who is
a Substantial Shareholder, or independent non-
executive Director, or their respective associates,
which will result in the total number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all the
options granted and to be granted (including options
whether exercised, cancelled or still outstanding) to
such person in the period of 12 months up to and
including the date of such grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% (or such
other percentage as may from time to time be
specified by the Stock Exchange) of the issued
share capital of the Company; and

(i) ~ having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the Shares at the date of each
grant, in excess of HK$5,000,000 (or such
other amount as may from time to time be
specified by the Stock Exchange).

Such further grant of options must be approved by the

shareholders in a general meeting of the Company.
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(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

(i)

The period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

The exercise period of any option granted under the
Scheme shall be determined by the Board but such
period must not exceed 10 years from the date of
grant of the relevant option.

The minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised

The Scheme does not specify any minimum holding
period before the option can be exercised but the
Board has the authority to determine the minimum

holding period when the options are granted.

The amount payable upon acceptance of option
HK$1.00 is payable by each eligible participant to
the Company on acceptance of options within 21
days from the date of the making of such offer.

Basis of determining the exercise price
The exercise price shall not be less than the greater
of:

(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant of such option;

(ii)  the average closing prices of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant of such option; and

(iii)  the nominal value of the share.
The remaining life of the scheme

The Scheme is effective for a period of 10 years
commencing from 11 March 2015.

(e)

(1)

g

(h)

()

Report of the Directors
EEERE

BIRIZFE R 1B IB IR 7 19 BIR

RIFZ A8 R BT T fE
HRAMEZSET - BEZHMRIE
HEAREREREL ZBE0
ﬁz o

PBIRHE ] ETT (€ I S BT B B IR 1
ZRITHIR

A% AT B 8 5T AR B AOME R JE 1T (E AT Y
REFAHR  HEETSHENKE
BRERETREFEHR -

FEANB R IER FE( 35
BEREHHEN2IBRN S5 EK
SEEZMNBERERBERARALZN
1.00/8 7T °

ETEiTEERE
TEENMFERATERSE -

(i) MEROZBEEEERBRIAE
B #®mE R LR RO KRS

R

iy HERHIZEREASSHLAE
BEABMISEREBRLA
TR FHWRTE &

(i) MHHEE -

Z et BB TR F A

ZrTEIMABMHA10F - B201543
A11B & o

2018 FFH | FHAIMRRODERD A

69



70

Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

Movements of share options
Movements of the share options granted to the participants

pursuant to the Scheme during the year are as follows:

BRERE
REZABE BT 2RALZBRIERER
BB

Number of ordinary shares

subject to share options granted under the Scheme

REZTERLNERESRNEERYE

Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed as at
Category and Date of grant of Exercise 1 January during the during the during during 31 December
Name of participant share options price 2018 Year Year the Year the Year 2018
20185 20185
1A18 NEER NEER NEEE 12A318
SRERRIRAL RuBRERS | HAGE  RAEERM i B RES: GESHL
Directors
g2
Mr. Su Aping 29 January 2016* 2.000 2,200,000 - - - - 2,200,000
Ry %3 201651 A29R*
Ms. Zhu Yaying 29 January 2016* 2.000 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000
rEEft 2016517298
24 January 2017° 2280 150,000 - - - - 150,000
201741 R24B
Ms. SuYi 29 January 2016* 2.000 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000
Brat 201651 A29R*
24 January 2017° 2280 150,000 - - - - 150,000
201741 R24B
Mr. Du Shaozhou 29 January 2016* 2.000 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000
HaREE 2016517298
24 January 2017° 2280 200,000 - - - - 200,000
201741 R24B
Mr. Xu Lei 29 January 2016* 2.000 200,000 - - - - 200,000
HELE 201651 A29R*
24 January 2017° 2280 100,000 - - - - 100,000
201741 R24B
Mr. Zhou Qingzu
(resigned on 1 February
2018) 29 January 2016* 2.000 200,000 - - - - 200,000
REELE
(R01852R1ABHE) 201651 A20R
24 January 2017° 2280 100,000 - - - - 100,000
201741 R24B
Mr. He Junjie 29 January 2016* 2.000 200,000 - - - - 200,000
iy 201651 A29R*
24 January 2017° 2280 100,000 - - - - 100,000
201741 R24B
Mr. Luk Wai Keung 29 January 2016* 2.000 200,000 - - - - 200,000
ERELL 2016517298
24 January 2017° 2280 100,000 - - - - 100,000
201741 R24B
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EBRHE
Number of ordinary shares
subject to share options granted under the Scheme
REZTERLORRESRNEEREE
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed as at
Category and Date of grant of Exercise 1 January during the during the during during 31 December
Name of participant share options price 2018 Year Year the Year the Year 2018
e ItES
1818 NAEE NEFR WEEE 12838
SREFARLA RABRERS 1R MATE  REFERA fif )i ] BAN HATTE
Mr. Zhuang Jianhao
(resigned on 3 September
2018) 24 January 2017° 2280 200,000 - - - - 200,000
i3y id
(R01659R3BRE) 201751 AR
Other employees 29 January 2016* 2,000 11,000,000 = = = = 11,000,000
RS 201651 A29R*
24 January 2017° 2280 4,900,000 - - - - 4,900,000
2017%1 A48
25 October 2017° 3.00 15,000,000 - - - - 15,000,000
2017510A25R°
Other eligible participants 24 January 2017* 2280 14,000,000 - - - - 14,000,000
HteERSRE 2017518248
25 May 2017° 2466 40,000,000 - - - - 40,000,000
2017%5A25R"
95,000,000 - - - - 95,000,000

The exercise period is from 28 February 2017 to 28 January
2024. The vesting period is as follows: (a) 20% of the
options granted to each grantee shall vest on 28 February
2017; (b) 20% of the options granted to each grantee shall
vest on 28 February 2018; (c) 20% of the options granted to
each grantee shall vest on 28 February 2019; (d) 20% of the
options granted to each grantee shall vest on 28 February
2020; and (e) 20% of the options granted to each grantee
shall vest on 28 February 2021.

The exercise period is from 28 February 2018 to 23 January
2025. The vesting period is as follows: (a) 20% of the
Options granted to each grantee shall vest on 28 February
2018; (b) 20% of the options granted to each Grantee shall
vest on 28 February 2019; (c) 20% of the options granted to
each grantee shall vest on 28 February 2020; (d) 20% of the
options granted to each grantee shall vest on 28 February
2021; and (e) 20% of the options granted to each grantee
shall vest on 28 February 2022.

17 1 B /201752288 £202441 428
HeBBEOT: @BTSARABREZ
20%1% 2017628288 BB b)E ¥ &
FR NI 220% K 7201852 A28 5
B OB TFSERABREZ20%1712019
F2A28ABE  ETEEABRABREZ
20%#5 20202 A28HERE k@R T&
FRANBIRRE 220% K 7202162 4280 %
E °

17 1 Hi /20184F2H28H £202591A23
HeBBEOT: @EBTSARABREZ
20%1% A2018F2A28H BB h)E ¥ &
FAR NI 220% K 7201962 4280 5%
B OB TFSERABREZ20%572020
F2A8ABE  ETEEABRABREZ
20%#5R2021F2 A28HEE kR T&
FR NI 220%K 72022462 4280 %
E °
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4 The exercise period is from 24 May 2018 to 24 May 2021.
The vesting period is as follows: (a) 33% of the options
granted to each grantee shall vest on 24 May 2018; (b) 33%
of the options granted to each grantee shall vest on 24 May
2019; (c) 34% of the options granted to each grantee shall
vest on 24 May 2020.

© The exercise period is from 24 October 2018 to 24 October
2025. The vesting period is as follows: (a) 20% of the
options granted to each grantee shall vest on 24 October
2018; (b) 20% of the options granted to each grantee shall
vest on 24 October 2019; (c) 20% of the options granted to
each grantee shall vest on 24 October 2020; (d) 20% of the
options granted to each grantee shall vest on 24 October
2021; and (e) 20% of the options granted to each grantee
shall vest on 24 October 2022.

The closing prices of the shares of the Company on 28
January 2016, 23 January 2017, 24 May 2017 and 25
October 2017 being the dates immediately before the date
of the Share Options were granted, were HK$1.99, HK$2.28,
HK$2.45 and HK$3.06 per share, respectively.

At the end of year, the Company had 95,000,000 share
options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in
full of the outstanding share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 95,000,000 additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional issued capital of HK$950,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB832,000) and share
premium of HK$229,870,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB201,412,000) (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of this annual report, the Company
had 95,000,000 share options outstanding under the
Scheme, which represented approximately 10.5% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

Connected transactions

During the year, the Group has entered into the following
continuing connected transactions.
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Continuing connected transactions

Suzhou Suling Automobile Service operates gasoline and
diesel refilling stations as well as CNG and LNG refuelling
stations in Taicang City and sells diesel fuel, gasoline, CNG
and LNG to customers in the ordinary and usual course of
its business. Its customers during the year included certain

members of the Group.

Suchuang Group, as licensor, has entered into a trademark
licensing agreement with the Group, as licensee, on 1
August 2014, pursuant to which Suchuang Group agreed
to grant to the Group the right to use the trademarks “%&k
8l and "@ " in the PRC in connection with the Company’s
business on a perpetual and non-exclusive basis at a
nominal consideration of RMB1.00.

Suchuang Group further entered into a tenancy agreement
with the Group, pursuant to which Suchuang Group agreed
to lease from the Group an office premise of 1,082 square
meters on 5th Floor, 116 Loujiang South Road, Taicang City,
Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, the PRC for an annual rental of
RMB346,500 (inclusive of tax and management fee) for a
period from 21 October 2016 to 20 October 2019. During
the year, the rental paid by Suchuang Group under the
aforesaid tenancy agreements amounted to RMB346,500.
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Taicang Suchuang Dangerous Goods Transportation Co.,
Ltd. entered into a vehicle leasing agreement with the
Group on 31 December 2018, pursuant to which the Group
agreed to lease from Taicang Suchuang Dangerous Goods
Transportation Co., Ltd. 10 vehicles for an annual fee of
RMB650,000 (inclusive of tax) for a period from 1 January
2019 to 31 December 2021.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company
have reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out
above and have confirmed that these continuing connected
transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial
terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than
terms available to or from independent third parties; and (iii)
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Details of related party transactions undertaken in the

normal course of business of the Group are provided under
note 41 to the financial statements.
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Certain related party transactions set out in Note 41(b) to the
financial statements (rental income received from Suchuang
Group, purchase of motor vehicle fuels from Suzhou
Suling Automobile Service, sale of natural gas to Suzhou
Suling Automobile Service and provision of motor vehicle
rental services by Taicang Suchuang Dangerous Goods
Transportation Co., Ltd.), are regarded as exempt continuing
connected transactions of the Group and were exempt from
the reporting, annual review, announcement, circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements contained
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules as at 29 March 2019, being the date of this

annual report.

Directors’ interests in a competing business

During the year and up to the date of this report, the
following directors are considered to have interests in a
business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, as

defined in the Listing Rules, as set out below:
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Ms. Zhu Yaying, an executive Director, and Mr. Su Aping's
and Ms. Zhu Yaying’s associates are indirectly interested
in Suzhou Suling Automobile Service which is principally
engaged in the operation of diesel and gasoline refuelling
stations, as well as CNG and LNG refuelling stations (the
CNG and LNG refuelling station business operated by
Suzhou Suling Automobile Service is referred to as “CNG/
LNG Business”).

On 23 February 2015, Suzhou Suling Automobile Service
and the Company entered into a deed of first offer (the
“Deed of First Offer”), pursuant to which Suzhou Suling
Automobile Service granted to the Company an irrevocable
right exercisable after rectification of the non-compliance
matters in relation to the CNG/LNG Business, for acquiring
at one or more than one time, within a period of three years
from the Deed of First Offer (extendable at the Company’s
sole discretion), all or part of the CNG/LNG Business at
the Company’s sole and absolute discretion, at the lower of
their set-up cost or fair market value to be determined by
an internationally reputable firm of accountants or valuers,
subject to the applicable governmental approvals, board
approval and shareholders’ approval of the Company (as
may be required under the Listing Rules).

Up to the date of this annual report, the Company has not
exercised its right under the Deed of First Offer.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Mr. Su Aping, Ms. Zhu Yaying and Fung Yu Holdings
Limited has confirmed to the Company of his/her/its
compliance with the non-competition undertakings provided
to the Company under a deed of non-competition dated 23
February 2015. There has not been any opportunity in any
restricted business (being business which competes or is
likely to compete with the business of the Group from time
to time) being referred by Mr. Su Aping, Ms. Zhu Yaying and
Fung Yu Holdings Limited to the Company during the year.
The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings
under the deed of non-competition have been complied
with by Mr. Su Aping, Ms. Zhu Yaying and Fung Yu Holdings
Limited and duly enforced during the year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MATTERS

The Company places great emphasis on its own environmental
and social performance by increasing its support on green
economy, low-carbon economy and recycling economy
and strictly controlling high-pollution and high-energy-
consumption. We have implemented policies and procedures
to ensure compliance of the regulatory requirements and our
production safety and environmental protection. Policies and
procedures are implemented to our employees, customers
and suppliers to enhance health and safety awareness during

production.

For detailed information, please refer to the Environmental,
Social, Government Report set out from pages 82 to 112 of
this annual report.

ACCOUNT OF KEY RELATIONSHIPS FROM
EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group upholds the highest standards of business ethics
that govern how we maintain our relationships with our key
stakeholders. We regularly engage and communicate with
our employees, customers and suppliers and provide rapid
and effective responses to address their needs and concerns.

Employees

Employees are considered to be one of the most important
and valuable assets of the Group. The Group has always
adhered to the principle of “people first”. We emphasise
individual development of employees and understood
targets and requirements of employees in different stages
of career. We wish to give full play to the expertise of each
employees and explore the individual potential of employees
through setting appropriate positions and regular training
activities. In addition, we wish to provide employees with
a sound remuneration package system to offer guarantee
to employees in all aspects, thus achieving the target of
retaining employees and the final target of sustainable
development of the Group, and enabling employees to work
in a confident, happy and safe manner.

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors
-

Customers

The Group endeavours to provide safe, reliable and
thoughtful services to fulfil our customers’ expectations
and cater to their needs. The Group has established a 24h
customer service call center to provide service information
for customers, and guarantee a quick response to customer
feedback. During the year, the customer service center
received a total of 300 complaints mainly about the attitude
of workers, equipment and other matters. All complaints
were handled in a timely manner and recorded properly.
The Group will regularly review previous complaints and
continuously make improvement. The Group observes and
respects all customer data privacy and intellectual property
rights by strictly complying with all relevant laws and
regulations.

Suppliers

Maintaining good relationships with the suppliers is essential
to the Group in respect of the supply chain and when facing
business challenges and regulatory requirements. It can
achieve cost efficiency and promote long term commercial
benefits. For the gas pipeline construction and connection
business, the Group regularly updates our database of
approved suppliers and carries out performance reviews to
assess the quality of our suppliers’ services. For the sales of
natural gas business, the Group has been in good strategic
relation with our principal natural gas supplier for more
than 10 years. Such relation further safeguards the reliable,
stable and sufficient supply of natural gas.
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COMPLIANCE STATUS WITH RELEVANT
LAWS AND REGULATIONS THAT HAVE A
SIGNIFICANT IMPACT ON THE BUSINESS

During the year, the Group received no reported cases
of non-compliance with applicable standards, laws
and regulations on the environment, labour standards,
occupational health and safety, anti-corruption, customer
privacy and intellectual property in China and Hong Kong.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR

On 9 April 2018, Suchuang Shanghai subscribed for 8
million shares of Dunhua Petroleum at a total consideration
of RMB48 million, representing 9.16% of the enlarged issued
share capital of Dunhua Petroleum. Dunhua Petroleum is
mainly engaged in, among others, promotion and provision
of relevant petrochemicals technology and software as well
as information technology services, and provision of relevant
businesses of oil and natural gas exploration.

On 8 May 2018, Suchuang Shanghai, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a capital increase
agreement with the Beijing Beilun and Ms. Ma Jingyun and
Mr. Yu Xiang, pursuant to which Suchuang Shanghai agreed
to contribute RMB17.5 million to subscribe for a registered
capital of RMB5 million in Beijing Beilun. Beijing Beilun
is principally engaged in natural gas clean heating services
(not involving heat production using coal and oil as fuel)

and gas business (limited to sale of natural gas).

RISKS AND PROSPECTS OF THE COMPANY

The principal risk and uncertainties facing the Company
are set out in the “Financial Overview” on pages 34 to 37
and note 44 to the consolidated financial statements on
pages 271 to 277. The future development of the Company’s
business is set out on pages 38 to 39 of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors
-

USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange since 11 March 2015. Net proceeds
from the global offering received by the Company were
approximately RMB347.5 million after deducting the
underwriting commission and relevant expenses. The net
proceeds have been applied for the purpose in accordance
with the future plans and use of proceeds as set out in
the Prospectus. As at 31 December 2018, the unutilised
proceeds were deposited in licensed banks in Hong Kong
and China.

FrBRERE
ARARIRRMDBE2015F3 B11 BRI ZFTE
REM - EMBRBHAE REERST - A2
AIREIMEIRBEMBRIBEFENABARE
347 5AB L FISHREFHECRBIEBERIRE
EREARRTEI RIS HIEREEANE
Bk o R2018F12831H ' MAEBAME
REFEREBRPBEMNFEIRIT -

As at 31 December 2018

R20185F12A318
Percentage
of total Net Utilised Unutilised
Purpose amount proceeds amount amount
(Fka s EBA i AE) A
i BAL TOEFE T8 k]
RMB'million RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBEET ARBAERT AR¥AESER
Acquiring and constructing REEERERR 25% 86.9 60.3 26.6
CNG and LNG refuelling stations K% & / INGKE &
for the sale of CNG/LNG for BREBERAIKR
vehicular use LNG &
Expanding our pipeline hERMNEESRR 35% 121.6 109.8 11.8
network and sale of piped MEMRETEES
natural gas to customers in HETBRAR
our existing market
Acquiring controlling interests in WA AR SN 30% 104.2 104.2 -
natural gas operators outside AAREEE
Taicang RS
Working capital and other general ~ 28& & L H A 10% 34.8 34.8 -
corporate purposes —MREERR
Total mBat 347.5 309.1 38.4

As at the date of this report, the Directors do not anticipate
any change to the plan as to the use of proceeds.

On 10 March 2017, the Company issued 40,000,000 new
shares (“Placing”) at a placing price of HK$2.20 per share.
The net proceeds raised from placing was approximately
HK$86.5 million which were fully utilised as general working
capital.
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Auditors

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Chairman

Hong Kong
29 March 2019
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIG - HENREREHSE

About the Report

The Group is pleased to present the third Environmental,
Social and Governance Report to report sustainable
development policies and performance for the year ended
31 December 2018. The report is prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Group’s corporate
governance practice is published in the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report. In
order to implement the Group’s sustainability strategy, the
Board of Directors of the Group (the “Board”) is ultimately
responsible for ensuring the effectiveness of the Group’s
environmental, social and governance policies. Meanwhile,
the Board has the responsibility to supervise the Group’s
risk management activities and to monitor significant
risks, including those related to environment, society and
governance. Our internal audit team and management will
regularly assess the existing and emerging risks of the Group
and at the same time review the effectiveness of the Group’s

current control measures in risk treatment.
Reporting Period and Scope

This report only covers the Group’s key businesses, namely
piped natural gas sales and transmission businesses
of Taicang Natural Gas Company Limited and the gas
technology business to be put into operation by Dunhua Gas
in Kuga, Xinjiang. The revenues from businesses of Taicang
Natural Gas Company Limited and Dunhua Gas accounted
for approximately 85.5% of the total revenue of the Group.
In 2018, there was a newly added business, namely the gas
technology business to be put into operation by Dunhua
gas in Kuqga, Xinjiang, compared with last year. Except as
otherwise indicated, the reporting period commenced on 1
January 2018 to 31 December 2018.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Sustainable Development Philosophy and Strategy

As a participant in the clean energy industry, the Group
promotes green, low-carbon, recycling and sustainable
operations and is committed to maximizing value for
shareholders, customers, employees, business partners
and social stakeholders. The Group has always complied
with national development policies, improved operational
efficiency, continuously expanded new businesses which
are beneficial to the Group in the long run, and provided
shareholders with sustained and stable investment income.
As climate change has obviously and gradually become
one of the biggest challenges facing the human race in
modern times, replacing traditional high-emission energy
with clean and low-carbon energy is gradually becoming a
general trend. In recent years, the state has accelerated the
use of natural gas in various fields. From the adjustment of
natural gas prices to the publication of the “Opinions on
Accelerating the Use of Natural Gas”, it can be seen that
China will increase the proportion of natural gas in the
national energy consumption structure from various aspects
such as pricing mechanism, infrastructure construction and
environmental protection policy.

We maintain long-term and good cooperative relationships
with natural gas suppliers, follow the orientation of national
clean energy development, improve the level of terminal
management, and expand our businesses beyond Taicang
City, so as to further strengthen our competitive advantage
and provide strong support for the sustainable development
for the Group.
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BRIE - HERERRE

In addition to strengthening the Group’s core business
of natural gas sales and transmission, the Group further
extends its businesses to fields of high-tech development,
application and solution optimization in green industries
such as energy conservation, environmental protection
and circular economy, through the acquisition of Dunhua
Gas. Dunhua Gas is making efforts in taking forward its
construction projects and is expected to provide professional
technical services of purification, emission reduction and
environmental protection in 2019. The main technologies
involved are “Carbon Capture, Utilization and Storage
(CCUS)”. The CO: capture device of the project will be
capable of capturing carbon in the waste gas emitted from
oil fields, and producing liquid carbon dioxide, nitrogen and
other products, which are sold to oil fields for enhanced oil
recovery (EOR) in oil exploitation, thus achieving a circular

economy.
Stakeholder Participation and Feedback

We have always attached importance to the participation of
stakeholders and communicated with stakeholders through
daily operations and different communication channels, so
as to build a mutual trust relationship. The Group constantly
hears internal opinions and opinions of external stakeholders
through different channels set out in the following table.
This ensures that they understand the development and
operation policies of the Group, and that the Group hears
their valuable opinions and reviews its potential risks and
business opportunities in terms of sustainable development,

so as to formulate corresponding policies and measures.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BE - e RERHRSE

Main stakeholder

FERBDE BERE

Communication channel

Supplier
HEm

— Interview meeting
Tl 2t

—ER’)(EH?Q

— Site safety inspection

- B R 2R
— Telephone/email

- EEEBHE

Customer — Site safety inspection

'F - BT E2RE

— Customer satisfaction survey

- EPREERE
— Telephone/email

-Ei/ BHHE

Shareholders — Annual general meeting and other general meetings
B R - BRRBFAGREMBRRAE
- Information on websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange

- RAEBE LR ENE A EM

- Telephone/email

- EiE/ BEHE

Employees — Performance assessment

BT - BUEZ
— Training
- &3

— Employees’ activities

- BIEE

— Internal communication

- NEBEA
Government and regulatory authority — Regular reports

B REERE - BRmE

— Notice/guideline
- BE /153

Community — Community activities and investment

HE - HRIABRIRE
— Company website
- REIEE
— Telephone/email

-Ei/ BHHE

Our continuous improvement relies on your valuable
opinions on our performance and reporting method. If you
are in doubt or have any recommendations concerning this

report, you are welcome to email us at ir@taicanggas.com.

BANFEESER HTHAKENRA
RE®RITDEEREEER - B THHRS
Bt sEE - BN EREEHHIX

Zir@taicanggas.com °
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RE - HERERRSE

Materiality Assessment

In order to further identify the priorities of different issues,
in the preparation of the report, we invited key stakeholders
to take part in a questionnaire survey. Based on results
of evaluation of the following important issues, the most
concerned issues include Service safety and quality,
Protection of customers’ sensitive and privacy information
and Safe and stable gas supply. We provided disclosures in

B BB

BTE-TBHNTRBENBEIRT  HEHR
HABEHRE  RARBTSREBRNEE
BERE - RETIHEZHEFEHER &
XEINZERERELZE2AME C EPH
FREMBERAFRERZERERR - M
BEEAHRERRLE  RERMREEEE
MIERBERBENESFNE THRAKEC S

the Gas Safety, and Product and Service Quality sections of

AT AR BCR ML 1E ©

the report, so that stakeholders can understand the policies

and measures developed by the Group.

A A A A A A
High D
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g (2] ]
o
® . 8
o Middle Impact on Businesses %2 j& g 7/ 28 High%

1 Sl RIERSE (Fik - 145 - BRE) 13 HER - ARERENE

Diversity and equal opportunity (age, gender, disability, etc.) Supplier and contractor environmental assessment
2 T{ESATEER 14 BIRBUREEERYE

Workplace discrimination Environmental compliance
3 BERFETIZERD 15 Z2RBEHR

Occupational health and process safety Safe and stable gas supply
4 EIRER 16 RARLIFEN

Trainings and development Natural gas leak prevention
5  WRRHISTIMERET 17 REREERERF

Avoidance of forced and child labour Supplier selection procedure
6 HAGBREMBE 18 BILLRARE - $hR - HKRFROEARSE

Salary and employment relationship Prevention of bribery, blackmail, fraud and money laundering
7 BWEST 19 MRBZERGE

Care for employees Service safety and quality
8 ERSRMANEEREHR 20 BEFWMEERSHEE

Air pollutants and greenhouse gas emissions Customer satisfaction and complaint handling
9 EERHEK 21 BPHBUREAEEMRE

Exhaust emission Protection of customers’ sensitive and privacy information
10 JKFEEYER 22 HEMHBRYEMED

Sewage and waste management Impact on and interaction with local communities
11 RAERER 23 BRABEE

Utilization of natural resources
12 RERNZFAEELER

Contribution to national air pollution control
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Gas Safety

As a gas company, we understand that there are significant
safety risks in the industry, and that any potential equipment
hazards, system defects or work negligence may lead
to serious safety accidents. Therefore, we have always
regarded safety production as our basic task to safeguard
the health and safety of our employees and the public. We
have established strict quality control standards for gas
supply, pipeline construction and access, facility repair and

maintenance to ensure gas safety and normal gas supply.
Safety management system

We have formulated a specialised safety management
system. Through regular on-site assessments, we have
strengthened the identification of significant safety risks and
the assessment of the implementation of safety guidelines
by departments, thus reducing any hidden dangers and
monitoring hazards, and ensuring the safety of our
employees and the public. We take “Eight Noes” as our
target, and “Four Prohibitions” as our safety production

principle.
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Eight Noes Principle NER A

ERFATS .
wrias  [RAKG
No Loss Incurred

by Poor Flood
i EZYN Prevention

REEW
No Major ﬁiﬁggﬁ&

Equipment No Seve.re Injury
Accident Accident

No Death
Accident

BmRSMA L

BRZBEEN B|ANKER
No Major Traffic No Fire Accident
Accident above

the Equal
Responsibility 4 52
Level ’:;Ey/\
REER BERIEEIN

No Poisoning No EXPlosion
Accident of Accident

Many People

Four Prohibitions Principle 9 SR Al

SWEEAM

o == FER R H

FWEEARR e “pvil
%S&}?\ﬁjﬁ— ﬁ”@f@ﬂ:ﬁk;@x Xi‘J%&gq—Eyﬂ%
NEE I No Punishing

No Educating
the Person
Liable for

Accident and

Related People
Prohibited

Unclear Analysis the Person
of Accident Liable for
Cause Prohibited Accident
Prohibited
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Natural gas terminal

Natural gas terminals and transmission pipelines are
important facilities for maintaining stable gas supply, so
we must ensure the normal operation of the equipment
and handle abnormal conditions in a timely manner. To
prevent inadvertent human or animal intrusion into natural
gas terminals, we equip walls of natural gas terminals with
sensors, such that when an object enters a terminal, the
alarm will sound and automatically alert the regulating and
control center through a system, so that employees on duty
can follow up and treat the issue immediately. We regularly
inspect and maintain the alarm system to ensure that the
system functions properly.

In order to avoid accidents caused by fire, all persons
entering a terminal must wear a safety helmet and be
destaticized before entering the terminal. Safety instructions,
and instructions as to locations of hazards and escape routes
are also posted at a prominent position of the entrance
of the terminal, to enhance the safety awareness of all

personnel.
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Our experienced and qualified management personnel
lead the employees at various levels to carry out routine
safety management work, so as to ensure that all safety
management policies and safety operation rules are
implemented properly. Employees on duty at a terminal are
required to carry safety inspections according to guidelines,

so as to ensure that:

- The warehouse area, roads and firefighting access are
kept unblocked and meet transportation, evacuation

and rescue requirements;

- The flowmeters and pressure regulators are working

normally without damage;

- Portable instruments for laser remote detection of
methane are used for leak detection of pressure
regulators and pipelines;

= Instrument installation is normal, and the on-site data

are consistent with the system data;

- The facilities in areas with explosion hazard have
corresponding explosion-proof performance, and
the fire-fighting equipment is regularly inspected to
ensure that it is in good condition;

- Employees wear protective equipment and clothing as
required;

- Odorizing devices of a regulating and metering
station is in good condition, and the odorant injection
rate meets requirements, thus ensuring immediate
detection of leakage and stable gas supply
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Gas pipeline network

We actively invest resources in the maintenance of pipeline
networks and other distribution facilities to ensure that
the gas supply system is stable and reliable. Our technical
team has extensive experience. The employees in important
positions have obtained certificates issued by government
departments. They are responsible for maintaining and
improving the operational efficiency of major and urban
branch pipeline networks, natural gas distribution and
transmission stations and safety monitoring systems. We
also take corresponding preventive measures in response
to the impact of season change on gas equipment. High
temperature and less gas consumption in the summer
will lead to increased pressure on pipelines. In addition,
natural disasters such as lightning, heavy rain and typhoon
frequently occur in the summer when safety accidents
happen more easily. Continued low temperatures and
snowfall in winter may also adversely affect the operation of
gas equipment.
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Season Key measures to enhance safety work

= EE2E TENERER

Summer e

B

Winter
XF

Reinforce structures that cover outdoor
pipelines
HEEFINEBRENETINE

Step up cleaning drains to avoid rainwater
accumulation

MEBEHKR - BERKER

Enhance inspections for key equipment,
labor protection, heatstroke prevention
and cooling measures

HHEHRRE SHHE DHEREER
THETRRE

Use heat insulation tapes for pipelines
to prevent malfunction due to low
temperature

REEMERAS @ B IEREREKEE
Strengthen anti-freezing measures for
pressure regulators, metering equipment
and other related facilities

ISR FE B - R 8RR M E AR AR
IRIE 1

Increase the number of night inspections
in the terminal

HE 0PI 3k P RO 1R R AR IR 3R
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In addition, our pipeline inspection team consisting of
personnel qualified for gas business operations regularly
inspects the surroundings of the pipeline to check whether
external factors such as nearby construction projects affect
pipeline operations. The pipeline inspection team will
clearly record the findings of the inspection and arrange

treatment as quickly as possible.
Safety monitoring and emergency plan

Remaining vigilant and getting ready to respond is
indispensable, for preventing accidents or abnormal
situations from turning into major disasters. We have a
24-hour natural gas regulating and control centers where
specialised personnel continuously monitor the operation
of each natural gas terminal through a computer system.
Our personnel are also able to immediately identify unusual
conditions of a natural gas terminal, regulator stations and
pipelines through comprehensive data display and automatic
warning systems, and provide technical support and take
corresponding actions for our transmission pipelines in a
timely manner. To ensure that we can handle emergencies
as quickly as possible, we have developed contingency
plans for possible gas leakage and crisis incidents so that
employees can be aware of the proper handling procedures
in the event of an emergency.
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In 2018, we held emergency plan drills in order to ensure
that employees can effectively control an accident, prevent
deterioration, minimize the losses and hazards caused by
the accident. Meanwhile, a drill can also help improve the
staff’s emergency response ability, enable them to learn
from experience in the drill, rectify the inadequacies, and

improve the emergency plan.
Safety training and occupational safety

As the gas business is in a high-risk industry, we are
committed to providing our employees with a safe working
environment to protect their health and safety. We provide
our employees with safety education and training in
operations, technical knowledge, work safety guidelines
and etc. New employees are required to receive safety
training and pass an examination before taking up their
posts, so as to ensure that employees can perform their
duties safely. Meanwhile, we also provide employees with
protective equipment and regularly check the provision of
protective articles, in accordance with the Labour Protection
Regulations of Jiangsu Province, and the Provisions on
the Supervision and Administration of Labor Protection
Articles issued by the State Administration of Work Safety
and GBT11651-2008 Selection Rules of Labor Protection
Articles.

In addition, although the project of Dunhua Gas is
constructed by contractors, our safety and environmental
protection department will also supervise the project
with project supervision companies to ensure that the
constructors provide appropriate safety guidelines,
training and personal protective equipment for employees.
In addition, the safety and environmental protection
department has carried out safety production training for
internal employees to make good preparation for putting

Dunhua gas into operation.
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Safety production in compliance with laws and
regulations

Main laws and regulations of China granting us a franchise
for the piped natural gas business and an approval for the
safety production of the business, include the Urban Gas
Management Regulations, the Measures for Management
of Franchises for Municipal Public Utilities, the Production
Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China, Jiangsu
Gas Management Regulations, the Measures of Jianigsu
for Management of Piped Gas Franchises and the Oil
and Natural Gas Pipeline Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China. To the best knowledge of the Directors
of the Group, the Group was not subject to any major
administrative sanction or punishment due to violation of
any safety production laws or regulations in 2018.

Supplier Management

Our ability to obtain a reliable, stable and adequate supply
of natural gas is critical to our operations and development
of piped natural gas sales and transmission businesses.
We have maintained good and close relationships with
our major suppliers over the years, which is conducive
to stabilizing our business. PetroChina Company Limited
(“PetroChina”), the principal natural gas supplier of the
Group, has been in good strategic relation with the Group
for more than 10 years, and put into operation the urban
terminal which was connected with Sinopec Sichuan to
Eastern China Gas Transmission Pipeline Co., Ltd. (A
ENRERERAREEGRAA),

safeguard the sufficient gas-supply resources in areas where

in 2015, so as to further

the Group performs its main businesses.
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The raw materials for our gas pipeline construction
and connection business mainly include PE pipe, steel
pipe, valve, pipe connectors and fittings. In addition to
purchasing from domestic suppliers, we import machinery
and equipment from foreign countries (such as Germany
and the United States). In order to ensure the quality of the
purchased materials, we have formulated the Procurement
Tender Management Policy, pursuant to which a supplier
can become a qualified supplier of the Group only after
passing quality audit. Qualified suppliers are also required
to pass evaluation by the Group every year. If it is found
that suppliers violate national laws or regulations or fail to
perform their obligations under contracts, we will record
them in the list of disqualified suppliers and cease to engage
them.

For important equipment, we will carry out on-site
inspection in the supplier factory to ensure that the
production and commissioning process meets the
requirements. With regard to project, we keep a list of
qualified contractors for gas pipeline construction projects,
and only purchase from reputed suppliers, pipeline materials
which meet relevant safety standards, and subcontract the
pipeline construction and installation projects to qualified
contractors. We believe that only by managing the supply
chain in a responsible manner and ensuring a fair and
ethical procurement process, can we build long-term
cooperative relationships with strong and reliable business
partners.

We expect that during the process of business operation,
each supplier will fully comply with all applicable
environmental protection laws, rules and regulations,
mitigate the impact on the ecology and reduce the resource
consumption. In 2018, with regard to environmental
protection, occupational health and safety, moral behavior,
etc., we formulated the Social Responsibility and Business
Ethics Agreement, which is distributed to all suppliers
and clearly specifies basic requirements of the Group for
business partners.
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Our Employees

The sustainable growth of our business depends on the
continued service of our experienced and professional
staff. We promote equal opportunities and are committed
to building a diverse and inclusive work environment. We
encourage our employees to actively participate in corporate
business and develop their personal careers, so as to ensure
that employees maintain physical and mental health while

fulfilling the corporate vision and business goals.
Talent selection

We understand that a diverse and inclusive culture is an
important part of building a good working environment.
We firmly believe that every employee has its value,
should receive attention, be welcomed and accepted,
and we should give employees a sense of belonging to
the Company. In recruiting talents, we will, under the
principle of fairness, recruit employees through different
channels, without regard to gender, race, ethnicity, religion,
marital status or other factors unrelated to employees’
work ability or qualifications. We actively promote equal
opportunities, adopt a zero-tolerance policy on employment
discrimination, and strive to safeguard human rights and
equal opportunities in recruitment, remuneration and
benefits, promotion, transfer, training and dismissal, and
strictly comply with relevant employment policies and

regulations.
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Employee distribution ST MEE

Number and proportion of employees by gender

RIERIE 5D AR K L)

54, 21%

204, 79%

[0 Male 2 M Female &

Proportion of employees by age

REREI D HILLH

15, 6%

63, 24%

48, 19%
75, 29%
57, 22%
B Below 30 31 to 40 41 to 50 [ 51to 60 Over 60
305%8 A TN 31E405% 41Z508% 51&E605% 605% 3 A

Number and proportion of employees by employee category
RERLERRIE 2 B AR LI

12, 5%
14, 5%

232, 90%

Senior management I Middle management M General and technical employee

SREEE PAREEE —REEMAE
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Distribution of staff turnover

BE - e RERHRSE
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Number and proportion of employees by gender
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Number and proportion of employees by age
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Laws and regulations of the PRC in relation to employment
with the Group include the Labor Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Labor Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Regulation on the Implementation
of the Employment Contract Law of the People’s Republic
of China and the Labor Contract Regulation of Jiangsu
Province. To the best knowledge of the Directors of
the Group, the Group was not subject to any major
administrative sanction or punishment due to violation of
any employment laws or regulations in 2018.
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In order to ensure that we always comply with relevant laws
and regulations, we have formulated the Human Resources
Management Policy and the Employee Handbook, which
detail the Company’s operation principles. Meanwhile, we
will explain the contents of relevant policies and systems to
employees, emphasize the Group’s commitment to ensuring
that they are treated equally, and protect their rights and
interests by signing labor contracts. We have zero tolerance
of child labor, forced labor or illegal labor.

Remuneration and benefits

We provide our employees with competitive remuneration
and benefits to attract and retain talents. Remunerations
of our Chinese full-time employees generally include
basic salary, duty salary, performance salary, seniority pay,
subsidy and other allowances. We adopt a remuneration
system that is linked to work performance, under which we
regularly carry out performance appraisal of employees,
and give additional rewards to outstanding employees
for recognition of their work performance, with the hope
that they can continue to make efforts to contribute to the
development of the Group. In addition, we also hope to
understand the employees’ expectations for the Company
through performance appraisal, review the remuneration and
promotion opportunities for each position, so as to ensure
market competitive remuneration and benefits.
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The Group firmly believes that our employees are the core
of our business. Therefore, we aim to put the well-being of
all employees first. In addition to providing employees with
government mandated benefits (such as social security and
paid annual leave), we provide the following additional
benefits:

- Birthday vouchers for employees;
- Festival bonus for employees on Women's Day;
- Mooncake gift sets on Mid-Autumn Festival;

- Employees’ activities, including travel, Mid-Autumn
Festival dinner and annual conference;

- Living allowances for employees who receive training

in other regions;

- Fixed allowance for employees working in a desert

area.
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Trainings and Development

To ensure that our technicians and other employees keep
up with the latest technological developments, we provide
training for our technicians and other employees in the
natural gas industry. We develop employee training programs
based on corporate strategy and business requirements each
year, and employees receive relevant training according
to their positions. In 2018, due to the gas technology
business to be put into operation by Dunhua Gas in Kuqa,
Xinjiang, we organized a three-month training to ensure that
employees at all levels had sufficient knowledge for daily

operations.
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Analysis of employee training

BIFIND 2018 2017
Total training hours 17,450 1,972
Rllls

Average training hours 67.64 9.76
8BS B

Hours trained by gender

BB e BRI 2018 2017
Male 14,504 1,920
5

Female 2,946 52
Z

Hours trained by employment category

BRERENE D WEZIEH 2018 2017
Senior management 1,482 16
BAREEE

Middle management 1,779 324
PREEE

General and technical employees 14,189 1,632
—REEMAR
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Hours trained by age

RERE DN IZIRE 2018 2017
30 or below 9,212 748
305% AT

31 to 40 3,104 376
31E405%

41 to 50 3,220 464
41E505%

51 to 60 1,825 384
512 605%

Above 60 89 -
6035 A _E

Product and Service Quality

As a supplier of products and services, we continuously
improve our customer service system and optimize our
service processes so that our customers can use clean
energy safely without worry. In addition to the safety of
pipelines and facilities, we are committed to promoting
the safety management of end users and carry out on-site
special inspections to identify unsafe conditions in the use
of gas, so as to avoid accidents. If any problem or potential
hazard is found, we will immediately arrange for the
Maintenance Department to carry out treatment or provide
correction suggestions for customers. Resident customers
are usually entitled to free maintenance services, while we
provide non-resident users with free maintenance for the
first year, so as to ensure that natural gas pipelines are in
good operating condition. We actively use different channels
to publicize safety knowledge related to the use of natural
gas. In installing gas pipelines and ancillary facilities for our
customers, we will explain to the customers the Guidelines
for Natural Gas Supply Services, so that they can understand
the safety rules on gas use and methods for immediate
treatment in case of suspected leakage.
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In 2018, we handle businesses for more than 3,000
households in 19 residential quarters in Taicang City and
strengthened their knowledge of safe use of natural gas.

Customer service support and complaint management

The ability to understand and meet customers’ needs is the
key to providing quality services. We firmly believe that
only by continuing to gain the trust of our customers can we
continue to develop stably for a long time. The intelligent
systems has been introduced to our customers gradually so
that they can use smart phones to monitor their gas usage in
real time. Our 24-hour customer service call center provides
customer with service information and ensures timely
response to and handle customer feedback. In 2018, our
customer service center and online platform received a total
of 500 complaints, all of which were handled in due course,
recorded properly and followed up. We will regularly review
the reasons of previous complaints, make timely corrections,
and strive to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of
complaint handling. Meanwhile, we provide the customer
service call center with trainings in product knowledge,
service skills and complaint handling skills on a regular
basis, so that our employees have sufficient knowledge to

answer customer inquiries.
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Prevention of customer information leak

We have the responsibility to protect user information
security and actively build a customer information system to
manage customer information in a unified manner. We have
developed a set of policies and procedures to provide clear
guidance to our employees on information classification,
confidentiality measures and responsibilities. Meanwhile,
in order to ensure compliance with relevant laws and
regulations, including the Personal Information Protection
Law, we will also explain how to properly handle sensitive
confidential information of customers and companies before
new employees take up their posts.

Advertisement marketing

We mainly promote the use of piped natural gas through
publicity activities, newspaper and media advertising.
Providing our customers with adequate and correct safety
information and product labels is considered by us as an
extended responsibility in product safety management. The
Group requires that all advertising publications, product
labels and business-related information should be subject
to approval of the management of the Group, and that they
can be published only when there is assurance that the
information contained therein is correct. If the information is
found to be inaccurate or misleading, special personnel will
be responsible for correcting such information as soon as
possible, so as to safeguard the interests of stakeholders. In
2018, we did not recall any product as a result of safety and
health problems, and to the best knowledge of the Directors,
the Group did not receive any complaints in relation to
advertisement and labels inconsistent with health and safety
requirements, products and services.
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Environmental Protection and Emissions Management

Climate change is affecting the global economic
development, and results in extreme weather, which directly
or indirectly impairs the resources and operational stability
of enterprises. As the world’s second largest economy, China
has made important commitments in addressing climate
change, promoting low carbon development and energy
reform. In order to achieve the environmental protection
goal of low emission, the Group is committed to promoting
the use of clean energy, so as to assist industrial and
commercial organizations and residents in reducing air
pollutants and greenhouse gas emissions.

Our natural gas sales and transmission business mainly
involve pipeline projects, basically imposing no significant
adverse impact on the environment. Besides, a small
amount of residual natural gas will be discharged out of the
pipeline at time of pigging operation, but it does not have
significant influence on surrounding environment due to the
low output. Major Chinese laws concerning environmental
protection for the Group include the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Environmental Impact
Assessment, Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution and Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution
by Solid Waste. To the best knowledge of the Directors
of the Company, the Group was not subject to any major
administrative sanction or punishment due to violation of
any environmental laws or regulations in 2018.

Resource utilization and emissions management

Due to energy consumption, the daily operations of
the Group generate direct and indirect greenhouse gas
emissions, which mainly arise from purchased electricity
and vehicle fuels such as diesel and compressed natural gas,
which are used to maintain our daily operations. We actively
advocate the low-carbon and environmentally-friendly green
office concept, save resources in daily office work, and
implement the following series of green operation measures:
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Energy saving

J Use auto-induction lights in some offices

J Make full use of natural light and wind to reduce the

use of lights and air-conditioners

o Keep the air-conditioning temperature at 25°C
in summer and 18°C in winter, and ensure the
air-conditioners are turned off automatically when
getting off work

J Maintain the level of brightness of computer screen
between 50% and 75% and set the computer display

to shut down automatically in 10 minutes

. Post a reminder to turn off electronic devices and

lamps when not used

J Inspect equipment regularly and maintain equipment
in due course, to reduce waste of water and

electricity due to damage

o Use energy-saving and environmentally-friendly

equipment as far as possible
Water saving

o Post a notice to remind employees to turn off the tap

when finished, so as to avoid waste

J Check the water equipment carefully and carry

out repair when any problem is found, to prevent

dripping
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Paper consumption reduction B A

o Employees bring their own drinking water cup and e BT HEBHRAKN  #eEREER
avoid using disposable paper cup 7S

. Encourage employees to dry hands with handkerchief e SEETFEAFREF - B AR

to reduce paper consumption

. Try to execute paperless office automation and avoid e BERITEACP D - LB R KE D
waste of considerable office supplies NEMEREFRA
. Provide collection boxes to collect and reuse e REHKEMAKNERERE@mK

single-sided paper
Reuse and recycling O EEFRBRBLE

. Reuse office supplies, including envelopes, loose-leaf . HEFERHEN § AR BEEH X

binder, paper bag and choose alternative stationeries B - HRERERAE R A
. Set a waste battery recycling bin . REBEZES MO
U Entrust a professional environmental protection e EAFEERRA AT E W EEARK

company to recycle scrap paper regularly
Sewage management STk EIE

The sewage discharged by the Group is only domestic ANEBFTHEMAS/KEBAIESK » 4)&)5
sewage, which will be discharged to municipal sewage JKEEFHRETEBIZ/KER @ WHEL5KE
pipelines and will be treated centrally by the sewage IBREFRIE  UBREESKFEERER
treatment plant to ensure that domestic sewage meets K > T@EIRBEKTFITE - REBE W E
environmental requirements and will not adversely affect (F{a]f @ESKEUKREERE -

the environment. The Group does not have any problem in

relation to sourcing of water.
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Waste management

No significant hazardous wastes or packing materials are
generated during our business process. The solid wastes
we discharge can be mainly divided into domestic waste
and industrial waste. After collection, domestic waste
including daily waste generated in our offices and employee
dormitories will be delivered to the urban environmental
health department for centralized treatment. In terms of
industrial waste, after the natural gas is transmitted by
long-distance pipelines (steel pipes), steel pipe scrap iron
will be contained in the natural gas. Therefore, scrap iron
wastes will be generated after filtration. We have engaged
a third party to specially treat the relevant non-hazardous

waste.
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BRIE - HERERRE

Environmental footprint

Main environmental data of the Group are as follows:

RIZREN

AT RARENERRBEE

Description Unit
i By 2018 2017
BEREHNBE RE-SILiEE 85.89 501.65
Total greenhouse gas emissions tCO2e
EEGM (HE) RE-ALREE 278.17 240.95
Direct emissions (scope 1) tCOze
RIE G (SE2) RBZERES 699.77 663.61
Indirect emissions (scope 2) tCOze
R bR (BE3) 7 DBZE{REE 11.85 29.38
Indirect emissions (scope 3)* tCO2e
BERENGE (BE1) RE-ALREE 903.90 432.29
Greenhouse gas removals (scope 1) tCOze
SYHANBEREHNLE DF-8{LREE/FIK 1.02 6.05
Total greenhouse gas emissions per square meter kg COze per square meter
AR(MINOX) B 508.46 549.78
Nitric oxides (NOx) Kg
BE(¥(S0x) NI 1.40 1.06
Sulfur oxides (SOx) Kg
FRIY(PM) NI 47.39 50.50
Particulate matter (PM) Kg
mERRE TETEE 2,001.91 1,645.83
Total energy consumption Megawatt hour
REEE TETRE 994.83 943.29
Electricity purchased Megawatt hour
i TETRE 81.90 58.22
Diesel oil Megawatt hour
i TETEE 786.22 605.99
Unleaded petrol Megawatt hour
BHEAAR FETFRE 138.96 38.34
Compressed natural gas Megawatt hour
BTHRMBERRE FETRE,/ THk 0.02 0.02
Energy consumption per square meter Megawatt hour per square meter
aikE uHA 49,186.00 46,356.00
Total water consumption Cubic meter
SYTRNEKE YhxK/ FHK 0.59 0.56
Water consumption per square meter Cubic meter per square meter
BEEEMLE N 4.34 3.68
Total non-hazardous waste produced Tonne
SEHANBEEEEY NIV YRR 0.05 0.04

Non-hazardous waste per square meter

Kg per square meter

# Relevant data are emissions from air travel of employees
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Anti-corruption and Pro-honesty

The Group is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance, and corruption and fraud prevention
has always been the core philosophy of the Group’s internal
governance. The Group strives to crack down on any illegal
activities in the course of business and prohibits any form
of corruption, bribery, extortion, blackmail and money
laundering and other behaviors violating the relevant laws
and regulations including the Anti-Unfair Competition Law
of the People’s Republic of China and the Criminal Law
of the People’s Republic of China. We provide training for
employees and formulate the Anti-Fraud Management Rule,
which includes anti-fraud management, reporting policies
and fraud prevention measures, and encourage employees
to report relevant non-compliant or unethical behaviors,
and protect employees reporting the case and information
received. We require that suppliers and contractors shall
undertake to comply with the Social Responsibility and
Business Ethics Agreement, so as to ensure that they act with
an attitude consistent with that of the Group. To the best
knowledge of the Directors of the Group, the Group did not
receive complaints or punishment in relation to corruption,

bribery or other misconducts in 2018.
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Community Care

Good community relations are the foundation for the
development of an enterprise. This is especially the case for
the Group whose growth depends on the support and trust
of the community. We hope to give back to the society by
offering discounts to needy users. In 2018, under our Fee
Reduction Plan for Needy Users, we offered discounts to
over 100 users so that they can use natural gas services at
lower prices. We expect to continue to provide assistance
for more users in need in the future, so as to give back to
the society.

HERE

RIFNHBEBERELEBERNER  MAK
BeEitkE  ERABLRYEM—ED
XEFEERE - RPIFEBERARBEREDN
RERHEESE  BHEHREE - N2018F
B BANR#AFERREEERER
ZRPHETESR  HEMPIARENERE
RARARRS - RARE - RPPREERE
ZEFENERERKRE > QR4S -

We, together with the county government and Meiyuan
Community, organized 48 primary and middle school
students from the community to visit our regulating and
control center, the urban natural gas terminal and the
maintenance center on Dalian Road, Taicang City. The
technicians gave a vivid and understandable lecture to the
students on gas safety, with the hope of promoting residents’
attention to gas safety and raising the awareness of safety
risk prevention, through the “big hand holding small hand”
activity.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B R BETRE

/ Ernst & Young RKGETRIEMAN  TelE5E: +852 2846 9888
22/F, CITIC Tower ~ FAEFRANXEIH  FaxEH: +852 2868 4432
EY 1Tim Mei Avenue S {Z A E221% ey.com
571 Central, Hong Kong
To the shareholders of Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited BEHARRROBRIRARR

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 122 to 279,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion

on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matters (Continued)

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBETRE

REELZER (R)

Key audit matter

AREERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ELETERRUMNEEREEREE

Expected credit loss of trade receivables

JEW B SR BRI BB R

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate
expected credit loss for trade receivables. The
provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customers with similar loss
patterns. The provision matrix is initially based
on the Group's historical observed default rates.
The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the
historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. A considerable amount of
judgement and estimation is required in assessing
the realisation of those receivables, including
the creditworthiness, past collection history and
forward-looking information of each customer.
BEREERRGREETEEKESRANEREER
B BEXRNENAARUBBREANZ AR FAR
MEHABERE BREREESRNER BESENAE
RELEHE - BEREMBZEAREENFENE
EEEERLERAMZIER - FFHZXFEUGKIANE
ReB®2FRREHE LG BRESEPNE
B BEERREMAEEER -

The carrying value of trade receivables was
RMB77,061,000 as at 31 December 2018. We
focused on the provision for expected credit loss
of trade receivables due to the materiality of trade
receivables to the consolidated financial statements
and the high level of management judgement and
estimation involved.

R2018F12A318  ERESEFINEEERAR
%77,061,0007C - B FREREE SEFNBEREE
BB AREEE RIS R BRRM
EIREE  BSREEENSEHE RME:T -

Our audit procedures included, among others,
discussing with management on the estimation
involved in determining the amount of expected
credit loss allowance regarding to the trade
receivables and assessing the management's
processes and controls relating to the estimation of
the expected credit loss allowance.

BEENEZEFER (BT ek BEEENmI K
FRARKEZRFBHREEEERESENETE - A
KEHEERE EEEMEEBRRBMGEEENIEF &

B .

We tested the model of provision matrix prepared
by the management to calculate the expected credit
loss and checked the information included in the
provision matrix which was based on the Group's
historical observed default rates. In order to
evaluate the appropriateness of these judgements,
we verified whether the ageing analysis including
current and days past due records for groupings of
various customers which had similar loss patterns,
historical payment patterns and historical loss
data are complete and accurate. We reviewed the
forward-looking information which the Group used
to calibrate the matrix, such as the anticipation of
the customers' operation, forecast industry situation,
overall economic conditions, etc.
BEECAAERERAEUGTERMEREERNBER
TiEER BEEEABRERELEORNBEEEMERN
HER - /FERFHENREN  EFELERK
AT (BREEFRUBEER - BEMKBRARE
LEBRBENZETPARNNER KB HREEE)
EETEERE - RACEE EEERARARERN
AR (PP ELTRY  TEBERER - &
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Key audit matters (Continued)

REELZER (R)

Key audit matter

AREERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEETERRUMNEEREEREE

Related disclosures are included in note 2.4
“Impairment of financial assets”, note 3 “Significant
accounting judgements and estimates” and note 24
“Trade receivables” to the consolidated financial
statements.
HEARBEENBERGEMBRERME24 [T EES
BURHEE | - MIsE3 [ = Eg st A8 Rfbat | K24
[ E SRR -

We obtained corroborative evidence to evaluate the
appropriateness of the management’s reasonable
and supportable forecasts about future economic
conditions in the expected credit loss model.
EECDESREZE S USGEEREHRHEES
BEAPREEBEARRE IR R FFIETRR -

We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures
of trade receivables in the consolidated financial
statements.

EENTETRRESEFINGEVMBREBEENT

D e
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBETRE

REELZER (R)

Key audit matter

AREERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ELETERRUMNEEREERER

Impairment of goodwill

The carrying value of goodwill in the consolidated
financial statements amounted to RMB97,412,000
as at 31 December 2018 and was allocated to
the corresponding subsidiaries acquired as each
of these acquired subsidiaries is the only cash-
generating unit (“CGU”) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination.
R2018F12A318 » KEFMBREABENREE
BARYE9I7,412,0007T » I B 2 AL = AT U 8 0 4R B8 B
BAR WIARMEENZENBARREMKA
BHNBRBUETENNE-REELENU ([REE
HEB7]) -

In accordance with IFRSs, management of the
Group is required to at least annually perform
impairment test for goodwill. The impairment test is
largely based on management’s estimates of future
results of each CGU to which goodwill is allocated
and involves various assumptions and judgements.
REBERMBHREEN - BREEEERAELEF
ETEERENR BEARERAREE LERERE
BHOKBENSRSELBMRKRFENMGE @ I
R BT R A -

Related disclosures are included in note 2.4
“Summary of significant accounting polices”, note 3
“Significant accounting judgements and estimates”
and note 16 “Goodwill” to the consolidated
financial statements which specifically explain the
key assumptions the management used for value in
the calculations.
HEARBEENHERNGEEMBRERNE24 [ E 2S5
BERBE ]~ M3 [ =25 HE REst] k16
(28] ZEMNETFHIRABEEERFTEEERAD
R RR °

Our audit procedures included, among others,
involving our internal valuation specialists to assist
us in evaluating the assumptions and methodologies
used by management, mainly the discount rate
and the long-term growth rate beyond the five-year
period.

BEENEZEFERE (BT eR) ZIRAFEEER
BHESHEEEEMEANBREREITE - TEFHE
AR AF 2 RORBERE -

We reviewed and assessed the forecasts used with
respect to future revenues and operating results
by comparing the forecasts with the historical
performance of the respective CGU and the
business development plan.
BEEEAREARSRSELEUMNBERANRER
BRFTEVETHE - HARRWARZEEXENIERE
1TEE RS -

We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures of
goodwill in the consolidated financial statements.

BEENFHETAERNGEMBEREBENRIIE -
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Other information included in the Annual Report
The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by
the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do

S0
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Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)
The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBERE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness

of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause

the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2018
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)
We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is Siu Fung Terence Ho.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEEEkEMEZEKRER

Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12A31BIEFE

2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T ARET T AREETTT
REVENUE PN 5 1,102,805 967,267
Cost of sales $HERK R (888,039) (738,282)
Gross profit EF 214,766 228,985
Other income and gains H At U A K Uk 75 6 27,171 16,671
Selling and distribution costs $HE R D KA (11,990) (11,515)
Administrative expenses THFX (85,052) (68,672)
Impairment losses on financial and &8 MA REERE
contract assets, net B8 - FEE 902 (682)
Other expenses H s (1,382) (12,210)
Finance costs Rl E AR 8 (5,501) (6,290)
Share of profits of associates R = X B EY g A 7,099 1,911
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R A E A 7 146,013 148,198
Income tax expense PS5 < 11 (42,510) (48,058)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERA 103,503 100,140
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: DA & 75 FE4h -
Owners of the parent SARERE A 98,621 93,902
Non-controlling interests JEFE R = 4,882 6,238
103,503 100,140
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hitt 2 EEE
Other comprehensive loss that may — H{&HiI ] sEE#HTH 48
be reclassified to profit or loss in BaMEMEmEEE :
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of &G INERS = £ Y
foreign operations bE X =R 91) -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR FEH#M2HEEE -
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX HIBR B8 (91) =
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME S E2ERFHAE
FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: AR &7 HE4h
Owners of the parent BREEEF A 98,530 93,902
Non-controlling interests R R ah 4,882 6,238
103,412 100,140
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREBEREREA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EiEER2F
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT
Basic 'K
— For profit for the year (RMB) —FRmEN (ARE) 13 0.11 0.10
Diluted e
— For profit for the year (RMB) — FREHAN (AEE) 13 0.10 0.10
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B ISARR R

31 December 2018
2018%F12H31H

2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt s AR¥T R ARETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB &R 14 625,895 578,365
Prepaid land lease payments FEf LT E 0B 15 88,613 91,627
Goodwill [EES 16 97,412 97,412
Intangible assets BREE 17 99,210 96,333
Investments in associates REEE N AR E 18 141,358 70,339
Equity investments at fair value through ¥ZAF(EF AlBmEY
profit or loss A& E 19 165,190 -
Debt instrument at amortised cost R A EEST A 20 13,726 -
Deferred tax assets IRIEFBEE 21 35,169 33,470
Other non-current assets HIERFEE 26 9,833 4,622
Total non-current assets SEMBEEBER 1,276,406 972,168
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories e} 22 10,622 8,935
Amounts due from construction contract pellg284 FEE %A
customers 23 - 68,485
Trade receivables B E SR 24 77,061 70,538
Contract assets ERIEE 25 34,129 =
Prepayments, other receivables and FARHR - B YRR K
other assets HiEE 26 96,316 54,085
Amounts due from other related parties & U E {1 B8 3& 77 708 27 32,744 4,393
Financial assets at fair value through MAFEFABENERE
profit or loss 23 28 100,000 -
Available-for-sale financial assets AtHECHEE 28 - 44,690
Pledged deposits EHEITER 29 - 67,000
Cash and cash equivalents He MRS EEY 29 413,374 569,991
Total current assets mEBEELRE 764,246 888,117
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables e B Z R 30 64,008 50,107
Other payables and accruals H At RIB K fERT B 31 41,764 35,100
Advance from customers TElR X B 5RIA - 155,814
Contract liabilities ARIAERE 32 150,440 -
Amounts due to related parties JE 1~ R385 5K IE 27 12,945 445
Deferred revenue EEWA 33 882 20,204
Interest-bearing bank borrowings s RRITER 34 80,000 40,000
Tax payable e IR 24,441 24,513
Total current liabilities BB EERE 374,480 326,183
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE 389,766 561,934
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRDAEE
LIABILITIES 1,666,172 1,534,102
continued/...
&/
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBRRE
31 December 2018
2018F12H31H

2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B2 ARET R ARET T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREBEE
Contract liabilities EREE 32 89,970 =
Deferred revenue FEIEUA 33 14,094 101,871
Interest-bearing bank borrowings T RERITERK 34 78,010 50,000
Deferred tax liabilities BRI A G 21 25,296 26,347
Total non-current liabilities FERENBERRE 207,370 178,218
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,458,802 1,355,884
EQUITY Ex
Equity attributable to owners BAREAARGRER
of the parent -
Issued capital BERTBA 35 7,214 7,214
Reserves it 36 1,366,352 1,263,290
1,373,566 1,270,504
Non-controlling interests SRS 85,236 85,380
TOTAL EQUITY RS 1,458,802 1,355,884
Su Aping Zhu Yaying
&k p £ SREDZE
Director Director
EFE EZE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2018

BE2018F12A31H ILFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BRARAARSE
Special
Share Statutory reserve-  Exchange Non-
Issued Share  option  Merger  Capital reserve safety fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reseve  reserve fund fund  reserve  profits Total interests equity
B&f Bhe SHR- Ei K2R i
By RitaE f#E  SHBE KRR GERRL Z24ER  REER  REWA a3t Bi 4%
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETn ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR AR¥Tn ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
note 35 note37  note36  note36 note36
i35 by Mse  MEB6 M
At 1 January 2017 R171A1A 6,658 727,330 0,275 (74,383) 6,231 72914 - - 359746 1,105,011 41,585 1,146,596
Issue of shares 4610 %6 77974 - - - - - - - 7830 - 78330
Share issue expenses RiE R - (128) - - - - - - - 128) - (1.289)
Profit and total comprehensive ~ FERHRET
income for the year garEa = = = = = = - = 93,902 93,902 6,238 100,140
Capital contribution from non- ~ FERHER
controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - - - M40 44470
Dividends paid to non-controlling BRfFERRER
shareholders filke = - - = - = = = = = (6913)  (6,913)
Final 2016 dividend declared and EZ Rk
paid WIERFRE - - = = - = = - (528)  (25.260) - 5
Equitysetled share option ARG EERE
armangements g3 - - 19828 = = = = = - 19828 - 19828
Transfer from retained profits ~ E&ERDEF = = = = - 14716 = - (14716) = = =
At31 December 2017 and 320175128318
1 January 2018 k201851418 7214 804,019 26103 (74,343) 6,231 87,630 - - 413,650 1,270,504 85,380 1,355,884
Profit for the year EERF - - - - - - - - 9,60 98,621 4,682 103,503
Other comprehensive loss for ~ FE A2 EEIE :
the year:
Exchange differences related to S8 EHAEL)
foreign operations ELEE - - - - - - - 91) - 1) - o1
Total comprehensive income for  £E2ARHAE
the year - - - - - - - ©91) 98,621 98,530 4,682 103412
Dividends paid to non-controlling ERFEERRE
shareholders #ike - - - - - - - - - - (5,020 (5,020)
Final 2017 dividend declared and BETRRIE%
paid WI7ERERE - - - - - - - - (18058 (18,058) - (18058)
Special reserve-salely fund ERG -
RELER - - - - - - - e - - -
Equitysetted share option ~ [{EREENENE
arangements ik - - 2259 - - - - - - 2259 - 2259
Transfer from retained profits ~ EREREEH - - - - - 13,486 - - (13480) - - -
At31 December 2018 RIBENAINA T4 RIS dBESE (A3 6D 1016 243 (1 4782 1373566 85236 1456802

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves *  ZZFEIEERBREEAMBRIAXRANES
of RMB1,366,352,000 (2017: RMB1,263,290,000) in the & 8 A R #1,366,352,0007C (20174F : A

consolidated statement of financial position.

R #1,263,290,0007T) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12A31BIEFE

2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AR¥ T ARETIT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING K& IZEHREHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B B Bl Al 146,013 148,198
Adjustments for: KA
Share of profits of associates DIGHEE R EE R (7,099) (1,911)
Amortisation of prepaid TE S + 30 70 & IR
land lease payments 7 2,991 2,978
Amortisation of intangible assets B E#H 7 4,186 3,589
Impairment of trade receivables TEWE SRR E (902) 3,615
Depreciation e 7 34,063 33,158
Gain on disposal of items of property, &Y  HE N REE
plant and equipment B ek e 7 (3,601) (691)
Amortisation of deferred revenue JEFE UG A §H 33 (896) (19,723)
Equity-settled share option expenses — LAAEzs 4% & ) BEACEFI 2 37 22,590 19,828
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses HNEE (Urzs),/ E5iE (5,835) 11,696
Interest income A B WA 6 (4,242) (10,951)
Fair value gains, net: N EWEE - FEE
Equity investments at fair value AT EFT AB R
through profit or loss RE 6 (2,116) —
Financial assets at fair value BRAFEFABZN R
through profit or loss BE 6 (9,833) =
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESREE 6 - (1,963)
Interest expenses B 8 5,501 6,290
180,820 194,113
Increase in trade receivables FEUS E 5B I8 4N (5,621) (20,391)
Increase in amounts due from FEWER A RE P RIaE
construction contract customers an - (7,572)
Decrease in contract assets EREERD 16,724 -
(Increase)/Decrease in prepayments,  JEfTEUIE « H b fE Uk 7R IE
other receivables and other assets REMERE (3EN), &
o 47,419) 9,275
Increase in inventories FEHI (1,687) (522)
Increase in amounts LS i B 58 75 SRR N
due from other related parties 1,892 (2,208)
Increase in amounts due to other JE Y L A B 28 75 BRIR S N
related parties - 445
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables FERIE SERFIL N, CR
) 13,901 (15,242)
Decrease in other payables and HitpENmm L ETER
accruals N (11,666) (2,226)
Increase in advance from customers T8 ZF R IEE AN - 12,527
Increase in contract liabilities ARAEEM 32 9,675 =
Increase in deferred revenue IEFEU A IE A0 33 515 31,503
Cash generated from operations IR E ISR S 157,134 199,702
Interest received B U F 8 3,999 10,946
Tax paid [EENEE (46,038) (46,184)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM RETHABRENEF
OPERATING ACTIVITIES A 115,095 164,464
continued/...
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nV-\éiErﬁ;)ili%ﬁ
Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12318 IEFE
2018 2017
2018 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
LIk AR®T T AREFTT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RATHHBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, plant ﬁ%,\%% B N &
and equipment (80,217) (29,799)
Proceeds from disposal of items of e *«@)% Jﬁ%&%&{%lﬁ
property, plant and equipment B e 7,005 10,943
Purchase of intangible assets Eﬁé!?ﬁﬂ/ﬁF (7,063) (2,628)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W%W% - (34,122)
Capital contribution from a non- RPN TE’]?ET B A% B E
controlling shareholder of a =
subsidiary - 28,420
Loan to third party mE=FEEEX (13,726) =
Loan to associates FBE = N AR EE K (30,000) -
Capital reduction in an associate — [EH & 2 A & AN HIRL - 8,800
Investment in associates REFE R E]IAIRE (53,000) (490)
Purchase of available-for-sale BEAHEECRHEE
financial assets - (625,844)
Purchase of financial assets at fair BEIRATEFTAEBERN
value through profit or loss TREE (689,479) -
Purchase of equity investments at fair B A FEFT AEBRA
value through profit or loss PR & (163,074) -
Prepayments for a proposed BRI BTN RIE
acquisition - (1,200)
Dividends received from associates = JtBs & A B HY % &, 1,580 590
Proceeds from disposal of available- & At & 4 gt & E
for-sale financial assets PSR - 695,117
Proceeds from disposal of financial — H&&Z A F(EFABRL
assets at fair value through profit or £ EEE E TS 5B
loss 644,002 -
NET CASH FLOWS (USED IN)/FROM &&5E8 (FTfA) ~Fiig
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RERBEFHE (383,972) 49,787
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING  @EZEBFMEHEERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares AT P15 RRIE - 78,330
Share issue expenses Hx1 ?’Y‘f‘fﬁ'ﬂﬁ - (1,285)
Decrease/(Increase) in pledged BEBFFOR D (38 m)
deposits 67,000 (67,000)
Interest received from pledged deposntsEHﬂZE?fﬁ?W? X A8 - 5
Dividends paid B ATHR (23,084) (32,195)
Interest paid Eﬁﬂ (5,501) (4,998)
Repayment of interest-bearing bank  [Bi25FE ‘fﬁfﬂﬁ?}(
borrowings (80,000) (270,680)
Proceeds from interest-bearing bank 5t BURTT{E 157K IA
borrowings 148,010 264,900
NET CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN) B ¥5E81Fia (Fif) B
FINANCING ACTIVITIES TREFH 106,425 (32,923)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH & R EEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (BD) /8 R (162,452) 181,328
Cash and cash equivalents at FONRERESEED
beginning of year 569,991 400,359
Effect of exchange rate changes, net  [ER& &7 285 5,835 (11,696)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FXRHRERALEEY
END OF YEAR 413,374 569,991
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Corporate and Group Information

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 July 2013
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands.

The registered office address of the Company is Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding.

The principal business activities of the Group during
the year included the distribution and sale of piped
natural gas, operating compressed natural gas (“CNG”)
and liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) refuelling station
business, the provision of natural gas transmission,
and acting as the main contractor of construction and
connection of gas pipelines in Mainland China.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
ultimate controlling shareholders of the Company are
Mr. Su Aping (BF¥) and Ms. Zhu Yaying (KI5 ZE)
(together known as the “Controlling Shareholders”).

The shares of the Company have been listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 11 March 2015.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2018

Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 ¥ 2R B

Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12A31BIEFE

TtEREEER

el mERL R ([AAR]) R
BHESHEAEFENENTEAR2013
F7RABEREHESTMNKLAERR
BREERAA -

AN &l & it # F B ik "Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box
1350,Grand Cayman KY1-1108,
Cayman Islands °
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Corporate and Group Information

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
BHZE2018F12831HIEFE

TEREEESN ()
BEKMEQRNER

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are RNATETERBATIEEFOT -
as follows:
Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/  Percentage of equity
registration and registered share attributable to
Name business capital the Company Principal activities
LA BRA%E/ FATREML
£ AR B A RA BENEDL ITEEHK
Direct  Indirect
B b

China Suchuang Energy Co., Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Ltd. BB 10,000 7T REZR
(“Suchuang Hong Kong")

PEHERER () ARAR
(I%&1EE])

Suchuang Gas (Shanghai) PRC/ RMB300,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Co., Ltd. Mainland China AR REER
(“Suchuang Shanghai") B/ HER 300,000,0007T

FEIMR (L8) BRAR/®
(T#8I LB 1)

Taicang Natural Gas PRC/ RMB188,000,000 - 100 Distribution and sale of
Company Limited " Mainland China AR natural gas, provision of
(“Taicang Natural Gas”) HE /R E 188,000,0007T natural gas transmission,

RETARRERAR /@ main contractor of
([REXR%R]) construction and installation

of gas pipelines
RARHERAR -
RERAREIX
(FRERLRZEMRER
MERABRE

Kunshan Anda Natural Gas PRC/ RMB2,000,000 = 80 Distribution and sale of
Development Co., Ltd. '@ Mainland China ARH natural gas
(“Anda Natural Gas") E /PR 2,000,0007C RARHERAR

RURERRRERARA
(TRERHR))
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Notes to Financial Statements

MR M
Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31B IF/E

1. Corporate and Group Information 1. tEREEER (&)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) EBEMRBATSINER (8)
RABEEWBRARKFELT : (8)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
as follows: (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

Issued ordinary/

Percentage of equity

registration and registered share attributable to
Name business capital the Company Principal activities
HEMRL,/ BRTEE/ RAFRE
2R AR EE B A mRA EENED EE33 ]
Direct  Indirect
B G5

Suzhou Zhongyu Energy Development ~ PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 100 Construction and operation of
Co., Ltd. @ (“Suzhou Zhongyu”) Mainland China ARE natural gas refuelling stations

EMNPFRRERERAR/© A/ FER 10,000,0007C BRREERRRMAL,
(T&MwT)

Sichuan Guangyuan Licheng Gas Co.,  PRC/ RMB20,000,000 - 51 Operation of natural gas
Ltd.""® (“Licheng Gas") Mainland China ARE refuelling stations

mIETZRBRBRAEARC  HE/ PEAKG 20,000,0007 BERARMAI
(T2RmR))

Changshu City Suyu Natural Gas PRC/ RMB20,000,000 - 51 Distribution and sale
Transmission Co., Ltd. " Mainland China ARH of piped natural gas
(“Changshu Suyu”) A/ PEA 20,000,0007C Rk RLETERAR

FATHRERAARGEARAR"

(MB#&HR))

Xinjiang Dunhua Gas Engineering PRC/ RMB30,000,000 - 51 Promotion of technologies for
Technology Co., Ltd. "' Mainland China AR nitrogen and carbon dioxide
(*Xinjiang Dunhua” ) hE/E R 30,000,0007C ARRZELIEIT R

MERERBIRRMARAR /@
(T#EHE])
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Corporate and Group Information

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

as follows: (Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
BHZE2018F12831HIEFE

TEREEESN ()

BREWBATINER (&)
ARRTEMBARNEBNT « (B)

Place of
incorporation/

Issued ordinary/

Percentage of equity

registration and registered share attributable to
Name business capital the Company Principal activities
HEMRY,/ BRITEE/ FATREML
£ dMREEB ERERA BHENEIL FEXE
Direct  Indirect
B [k
Argus Holding Corporation ¥ United States UsD1,000 100 - Investment holding
(“Argus Holding") *H 1,000% 7T REZR
Argus Holding Corporation '
(T Argus Holding )
Argus Midwest Resources LLC ) United States UsD1,000 - 100 Upstream asset investment
(“Argus Midwest") %8 1,000%7C THEERE
Argus Midwest Resources LLC ¥/®
(T Argus Midwest])
Argus LNG LLC 9@ United States UsD1,000 = 100 LNG facility investment
(“Argus LNG”) e 1,000%7T RIERARR IR E
Argus LNG LLC 9@
(TArgus LNG))
Vulcan Resources LLC ©/7) United States usD1,000 = 60 LNG facility investment and
(“Vulcan”) e 1,000% 7T import and export
Vulcan Resources LLC 97 BRI R AR KR E RO
(TVulcan])
Argus World LNG LLC &/ United States UsD1,000 = 100 LNG facility investment and
(“Argus World") X8 1,000%7T import and export
Argus World LNG LLC ©/® RICRA R MR E REL A
(T Argus World])
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Notes to Financial Statements

MR M
Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31B IF/E

1. Corporate and Group Information
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

as follows: (Continued)

(1)

The statutory financial statements were not audited by
Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the
Ernst & Young global network.

The English names of these subsidiaries represent the
best efforts made by the management of the Company to
translate their Chinese names as they do not have official
English names registered in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC").

No audited financial statements have been prepared for
these entities for the year ended 31 December 2018,
as the entities are not subject to any statutory audit
requirements under the relevant rules and regulations in
their jurisdiction of incorporation.

During the year, the Company set up Argus Holding.
According to the articles of association, the Company
owns 100% of the voting right and has the right to
control Argus Holding. Thus, Argus Holding is considered
a subsidiary and consolidated into the Group’s financial
statements.

During the year, Argus Holding set up Argus Midwest.
According to the articles of association, Argus Holding
owns 100% of the voting right and has the right
to control Argus Midwest. Thus, Argus Midwest is
considered a subsidiary and consolidated into the
Group’s financial statements.

During the year, Argus Holding set up Argus LNG.
According to the articles of association, Argus Holding
owns 100% of the voting right and has the right to
control Argus LNG. Thus, Argus LNG is considered a
subsidiary and consolidated into the Group’s financial
statements.

During the year, Argus Holding and PEMCO LLC jointly
set up Vulcan. According to the articles of association,
Argus Holding owns 60% of the voting right and has
the right to control Vulcan. Thus, Vulcan is considered
a subsidiary and consolidated into the Group’s financial
statements.

During the year, Argus Holding set up Argus World.
According to the articles of association, Argus Holding
owns 100% of the voting right and has the right to
control Argus World. Thus, Argus World is considered a
subsidiary and consolidated into the Group’s financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had direct and
indirect interests in its subsidiaries, all of which are
private limited liability companies (or, if incorporated
outside Hong Kong, have substantially similar
characteristics to a private company incorporated in
Hong Kong).
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2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”), which comprise all standards
and interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), and International
Accounting Standards (“lASs”) and Standing
Interpretations Committee interpretations approved by
the International Accounting Standards Committee that
remain in effect, and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention except for
equity investments and wealth management products
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except

when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2018. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the

investee).
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Notes to Financial Statements

MR M
Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31B IF/E

2.1 IRBLEZ%E (48)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

134

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over

an investee, including:

REEE (F)
EARFERIMEEEINREHR
BFBRERIALURNE - ARER
AHEERHREHREREIRS
BFFEHEREERIER - 81 :

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote () HZREHZHMILEZREITE AR
holders of the investee; BRI

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be

consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.
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2.1

2.2

Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures
The Group has adopted the following new and revised
IFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.
Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions
Amendments to IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with

IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

IFRS 9
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Amendments to IFRS 15

Financial Instruments

Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers

Amendments to IAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

Annual Improvements Amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28

2014-2016 Cycle
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Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31B IF/E

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)
Except for the amendments to IFRS 2, amendments to
IFRS 4, amendments to IAS 40, IFRIC 22 and Annual
Improvements to 2014-2016 Cycle, which are not

relevant to the preparation of the Group’s financial

statements, the nature and the impact of the new and

revised IFRSs are described below:

(a)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces [AS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018, bringing together all three
aspects of the accounting for financial instruments:
classification and measurement, impairment and
hedge accounting.

The Group has recognised the transition
adjustments against the applicable opening
balances in equity at 1 January 2018. Therefore,
the comparative information was not restated and

continues to be reported under IAS 39.

Classification and measurement
The following information sets out the impacts
of adopting IFRS 9 on the statement of financial
position, including the effect of replacing IAS 39’s
incurred credit loss calculations with IFRS 9’'s
expected credit losses (“ECLs”).
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Notes to Financial Statements

MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12831HIEFE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and 22 B BRNE B REE (&)
Disclosures (Continued)
(a) (Continued) (a) (&)
Classification and measurement (Continued) SEEGEE ()
A reconciliation between the carrying amounts R2018F1A1H » BIEBHEE & 5
under IAS 39 and the balances reported under IFRS AR ZE 3957 51 & /Y BR T B L2 AR 15 B
9 as at 1 January 2018 is as follows: PR B 75 ol 45 ZE Bl S5 95 2 i /Y 45 £
ZEBRINT
IAS 39 measurement IFRS 9 measurement
BB ERERTE BRBREEN R E
Re-
Notes ~ Category ~ Amount classification ECL Amount  Category

Mt 2% 28 ENAR REGEER &8 28
RMB'OO0  RMB'00D  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARRTR  ARBTR ARETR ARETR

Financial assets (note 42) SREE (MEn)
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ A[tHELREAE AFS! 44,690 (44,690) = - N/A
To: Financial assets £ HATE
atfair value through profitor loss ~ FFABRRIEREE (i) (44,690) - -
Trade receivables EWE 5B i) L&R? 70,538 - - 70,538 AC
Financial assets included in STABEE  Hit L&R 15,262 = = 15,282 AC
prepayments, other receivables  FEMEEREA
and other assets EERSRAE
Financial assets at fair f R Tz A& FVPL* = 44,690 = 44,690 FVPL
value through profit or loss SREE
From: Available-for-sale financial ¢ : (It HESREAE (i) 44,690 = -
assets
Amounts due from other related A EE L L&R 4393 = = 4393 AC
parties
Pledged deposits BERER L&R 67,000 - - 67,000 AC
Cash and cash equivalents R RBLEEN L&R 569,991 - = 569,991 AC
771,604 - - TT18%

2018 4 | HAMKKROBAERAT 137



Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12831HIEFE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and 2 EHBENEBEHRIEE (8)
Disclosures (Continued)
(a) (Continued) (a) (&)
Classification and measurement (Continued) SEEGEE ()
IAS 39 measurement IFRS 9 measurement
L =R IR A BREEREEN SR
Re-
Notes  Category Amount  classification ECL Amount  Category

it 2% 28 ENAR RNGEER £ Vi
RMB'O00  RMB'OO0  RMB000  RMB'00O

AEETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Other assets RftEE

Contract assets AFEE (ii 50,853 = = 50,853

Total assets BEGE 822,747 = = 822,747

Financial liabilities (note 42) SHas (i)

Trade payables ERES%H AC 50,107 - - 50,107 AC

Financial liabilities included in STARMENTER AC 19,319 - - 19,319 AC

other payables and accruals EERNERER

Interest-earing bank borrowings 3T EHITREH AC 90,000 = = 90,000 AC

Due to other related parties ELtEERIE AC 445 - - 445 AC

Total liabilities aELR 159,871 - - 159,871

1 AFS: Available-for-sale financial assets ! AMEHE : At ESREE

2 L&R: Loans and receivables 2 ERNMEWFIE  BER K ERFKIE

3 AC: Financial assets or financial liabilities at 3 BN - RS BRN S R E E
amortised cost Ee@MBE

4 FVPL: Financial assets at fair value through profit or ! RATFE ARG  BRATEAAER
loss MEEE
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)
(a) (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)
Notes:

(i)

(if)

The Group has classified its wealth management
products previously classified as available-for-sale
financial assets as financial assets measured at
fair value through profit or loss as these wealth
management products did not pass the contractual
cash flow characteristics test in IFRS 9.

The gross carrying amounts of the trade receivables
and the contract assets under the column “IAS 39
measurement — Amount” represent the amounts
after adjustments for the adoption of IFRS 15 but
before the measurement of ECLs. Further details
of the adjustments for the adoption of IFRS 15 are
included in note 2.2(b) to the financial statements.

Impairment

The impact of transition on the opening

impairment allowances under IAS 39 to the ECL

allowances under IFRS 9 is not material.

Impact on reserves and retained profits

The impact of transition to IFRS 9 on reserves and

retained profits is not material.
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)

(b)

IFRS 15 and its amendments replace IAS 11
Construction Contracts, 1AS 18 Revenue and
related interpretations and it applies, with limited
exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts
IFRS 15 establishes a new
five-step model to account for revenue arising

with customers.

from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15,
revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15
provide a more structured approach for measuring
and recognising revenue. The standard also
introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation
of total revenue, information about performance
obligations, changes in contract asset and liability
account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The disclosures are
included in note 5 to the financial statements. As
a result of the application of IFRS 15, the Group
has changed the accounting policy with respect
to revenue recognition in note 2.4 to the financial

statements.

The Group has adopted IFRS 15 using the modified
retrospective method of adoption. Under this
method, the standard can be applied either to all
contracts at the date of initial application or only
to contracts that are not completed at this date.
The Group has elected to apply the standard to
contracts that are not completed as at 1 January
2018.
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and

Disclosures (Continued)

(b) (Continued)
The cumulative effect of the initial application of
IFRS 15 was recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits as at 1 January
2018. Therefore, the comparative information was
not restated and continues to be reported under
IAS 11, IAS 18 and related interpretations.

Set out below are the amounts by which each
financial statement line item was affected as at 1
January 2018 as a result of the adoption of IFRS

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
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22 B BRRNESBREE (8)

(b) (4&)

BRFE R Bl B 15 2k 5 22 B ZB 155%
R EHERREN20185F1
RA1BRBEMNEI SR FE -
At tt?ﬁﬂ]\fﬁéﬁuﬁf&iﬁfﬂﬁ
TF./T\ uﬂ'/ﬁﬁlj 11’Jﬁ T\EIIII-I—
ﬁﬂ']%%?ﬁ&*ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%ii&

T XX &5 MN2018%E1 A1 8 A4
B B B 75 3R 45 2 BI 551558 1 ¥ &
MR RZETHEEERNTZEZ S

15: i
Increase/
Notes (decrease)
Bt e ®gm, CR)
RMB’000
ARBT T
Assets BE
Amounts due from construction FERSREZFEZIAE (i) (68,485)
contract customers
Contract assets EREE (i) 50,853
Total assets BEBRR (17,632)
Increase/
Notes (decrease)
Bt ek #gm, )
RMB’000
ARETTT
Liabilities =N
Advance from customers TR P RIE (i)/(i) (155,814)
Deferred revenue PEIEWA (ii) (106,718)
Contract liabilities SRAaE (i) 230,735
Other payables and accruals HEh BN ERE A (i) 14,165
Total liabilities BERSE (17,632)
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and

Disclosures (Continued)

(b) (Continued)
Set out below are the amounts by which each
financial statement line item was affected as at
31 December 2018 and for the year ended 31
December 2018 as a result of the adoption of IFRS
15. The adoption of IFRS 15 has had no impact on
other comprehensive income or on the Group’s
operating, investing and financing cash flows. The
first column shows the amounts recorded under
IFRS 15 and the second column shows what the
amounts would have been had IFRS 15 not been

adopted:
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and 22 B BRNE B REE (&)
Disclosures (Continued)
(b) (Continued) (b) (#&)
Consolidated statement of profit or loss for the HE2018F12A31B IEFE4L4 A
year ended 31 December 2018: Bk

Amounts prepared under
Previous Increase/
Notes IFRS 15 IFRS (decrease)
REE BRI REBE
HEEER B 3E

#1535 LR #n,
BizE REEH FoElde 2 (R4)

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE  ARBTR ARETR

Revenue WA (i) 1,102,805 1,119,529 (16,724)
Cost of sales HERA (i) (888,039) (904,763) 16,724
Gross profit EF 214,766 214,766 -
Profit before tax B EL R A 146,013 146,013 =
Income tax expense FSBAS (42,510) (42,510) =
Profit for the year NEE R 103,503 103,503 =

Attributable to: AT & FEfh
Owners of the parent ISYNCIEYEIN 98,621 98,621 -
Non-controlling interests RS 4,882 4,882 -
103,503 103,503 -

Earnings per share attributable BRI EABRERE A
to ordinary equity holders of eGSR A

the parent
Basic BN
— For profit for the year — FER&E A 0.11 0.11 =
Diluted i3
— For profit for the year — FR& A 0.10 0.10 =
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and 22 St BRNBS B RIFE ()
Disclosures (Continued)
(b) (Continued) (b) (#&)
Consolidated statement of financial position as at R2018F12A31H 46 B Ak 2
31 December 2018: *=

Amounts prepared under
Previous Increase/
Notes IFRS 15 IFRS (decrease)
REE BRI REBE
HEEER B 3E

#1535 LR #n,
BizE REEH FoElde 2 (R4)

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE  ARBTR ARETR

Amounts due from construction  JEWEFZRAREPHIA (i) = 51,758 (51,758)
contract customers
Contract assets EREE (i) 34,129 = 34,129
Total assets BEERE 34,129 51,758 (17,629)
Advance from customers BWEFHIE (i)/(ii) - 161,272 (161,272)
Deferred revenue ERIA (i) 14,976 124,577 (109,601)
Contract liabilities ERARE (i) 240,010 - 240,010
Other payables and accruals HEMEAZOEREER (i) 41,764 28,530 13,234
Total liabilities BEESE 296,750 314,379 (17,629)
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)
(b) (Continued)
The nature of the adjustments as at 1 January 2018

and the reasons for the significant changes in the

statement of financial position as at 31 December

2018 and the statement of profit or loss for the

year ended 31 December 2018 are described

below:

()

Revenue from the construction and
connection of gas pipelines

Before the adoption of IFRS 15, revenue
from the construction and connections of gas
pipelines was recognised according to the
stage of completion of a contract, which was
determined by the completion of a physical
proportion of the contract work. Upon
the adoption of IFRS 15, revenue from the
construction and connections of gas pipelines
is recognised over time by measuring the
progress towards complete satisfaction of
that performance obligation using the input
method, given that the Group's performance
creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced.
The Group may not be able to reasonably
measure the progress of the construction and
connections services, but the Group expects
to recover the costs incurred in satisfying
the performance obligation. Accordingly, the
Group recognised revenue to the extent of
costs incurred, which had no impact on the

opening balance of retained profits.
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(i)

Revenue from the construction and
connection of gas pipelines (Continued)
Before the adoption of IFRS 15,

occurred for construction and connections of

the costs

gas pipelines were recognised as amounts due
from construction contract customers before
the construction and connections services
were completed, and the payments received
from customers were recognised as advance
from customers before the construction and
connections services were completed. Upon
the adoption of IFRS 15, a contract asset
is recognised when the Group performs by
transferring construction and connection
services to customers and the Group’s right
and the

advances from customers were classified

to consideration is conditional,

as contract liabilities. Accordingly, upon
adoption of IFRS 15, contract assets were
increased by RMB50,853,000, advance from
customers were decreased by RMB17,632,000
and amounts due from construction contract
customers were decreased by RMB68,485,000
as at 1 January 2018, respectively.

As at 31 December 2018, the adoption of IFRS
15 resulted in an increase in contract assets
of RMB34,129,000, decrease in advance from
customers of RMB17,629,000 and decreases
in amounts due from construction contract
customers of RMB51,758,000,
Revenue and cost of sales for the year ended
31 December 2018 were both decreased by
RMB16,724,000, which had no impact in
retained profits.

respectively.
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Notes to Financial Statements

MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
BHZE2018F12831HIEFE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and 22 B BRNE B REE (&)
Disclosures (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(ii) Consideration received from customers in

(b) (%)
(i) FBREFHE

advance

Before the adoption of IFRS 15, the Group
recognised consideration received from
customers in advance as advance from
customers and deferred revenue. Under
IFRS 15, the amount is classified as contract

liabilities and other payables and accruals.

Therefore,
15, advance from customers
decreased by RMB138,182,000, deferred
revenue amounting were decreased by
RMB106,718,000, contract liabilities were
increased by RMB230,735,000 and other
payables and accruals were increased by
RMB14,165,000, respectively, as at 1 January

upon adoption of IFRS

were

2018 in relation to the consideration received

from customers in advance.

As at 31 December 2018, the adoption of IFRS
15 resulted in a decrease in advance from
customers of RMB143,643,000, a decrease
in deferred revenue of RMB109,601,000,
an increase in contract liabilities of
RMB240,010,000 and an increase in other
payables and accruals of RMB13,234,000,
respectively.

R ANBIRR B F5 3R S5 2 RIZE 15
S2B  AEBBERERFK
EBERRABRELNEREL
WA o 1R IR B BR B 7 o 5 2 R
FI5%  Ze BB ARER
BEREMENKEREE
}Eﬁ °

S A ol s e
% B 2155 & -+ 7201841
AR ptiEKEFPKREM
T HEREFRERIAR
#138,182,0007T © & L& Y
AR > A R 106,718,000
T ARBEEMARE
230,735,0007T © EH fib & 14
HREREFAERAEMARK
14,165,0007T °

MR2018F12A31H © ] #
OB RS 2E R B1558
BYRRBEFPFERD AR
#143,643,0007T © E L& WK
AR A A R 109,601,000
T aRBEEMARE
240,010,0007T © H fh f& 1~
HEREFEREMARE
13,234,0007T °
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Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2018
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International
Financial Reporting Standards
The Group has not applied the following new and
revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business’
Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’
[FRS 16 Leases’
[FRS 17 Insurance Contracts’
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and [AS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?
Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material’
and IAS 8
Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement!
Amendments to [AS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures'
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'
Annual Improvements Amendments to [FRS 3, IFRS 11,
2015-2017 Cycle IAS 12 and IAS 23!

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but is

available for adoption
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Further information about those IFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The
amendments clarify that for an integrated set of
activities and assets to be considered a business, it
must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to
create outputs. The amendments remove the assessment
of whether market participants are capable of acquiring
the business and continue to produce outputs. Instead,
the focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired
substantive processes together significantly contribute
to the ability to create outputs. The amendments have
also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on
goods or services provided to customers, investment
income or other income from ordinary activities.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to
assess whether an acquired process is substantive and
introduce an optional fair value concentration test to
permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1
January 2020.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC 15
Operating Leases — Incentives and SIC 27 Evaluating
the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form
of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and
liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two
elective recognition exemptions for lessees — leases
of low-value assets and short-term leases. At the
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise
a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease
liability) and an asset representing the right to use
the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the
right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses unless the right-of-use
asset meets the definition of investment property in
IAS 40, or relates to a class of property, plant and
equipment to which the revaluation model is applied.
The lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect
the interest on the lease liability and reduced for the
lease payments. Lessees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expense on the lease liability
and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use
asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the
lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events,
such as change in the lease term and change in future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate used to determine those payments. Lessees will
generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement
of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use
asset. Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from the accounting under IAS 17. Lessors
will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish
between operating leases and finance leases. IFRS 16
requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive
disclosures than under IAS 17. Lessees can choose to
apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a
modified retrospective approach. The Group will adopt
IFRS 16 from 1 January 2019. The Group plans to adopt
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
the transitional provisions in IFRS 16 to recognise the
cumulative effect of initial adoption as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained earnings at 1 January
2019 and will not restate the comparatives. In addition,
the Group plans to apply the new requirements to
contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying IAS 17 and measure the lease liability at
the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the Group’s incremental borrowing
rate at the date of initial application. The right-of-use
asset will be measured at the amount of the lease
liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to the lease recognised
in the statement of financial position immediately
before the date of initial application. The Group plans
to use the exemptions allowed by the standard on lease
contracts whose lease terms end within 12 months as of
the date of initial application. During 2018, the Group
has performed a detailed assessment on the impact of
adoption of IFRS 16. The Group has estimated that the
impact of right-of-use assets, lease liabilities and the
opening balance of retained earnings are not material
at 1 January 2019.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10
and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets
that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture.
The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
previous mandatory effective date of amendments
to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed by the IASB in
December 2015 and a new mandatory effective date
will be determined after the completion of a broader
review of accounting for associates and joint ventures.
However, the amendments are available for adoption
noW.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. The amendments clarify that
materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information. A misstatement of information is material if
it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions
made by the primary users. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2020. The amendments are not expected to have any

significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to |AS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion
of IFRS 9 only includes interests in an associate or joint
venture to which the equity method is applied and
does not include long-term interests that in substance
form part of the net investment in the associate or joint
venture, to which the equity method has not been
applied. Therefore, an entity applies IFRS 9, rather than
IAS 28, including the impairment requirements under
IFRS 9, in accounting for such long-term interests.
IAS 28 is then applied to the net investment, which
includes the long-term interests, only in the context
of recognising losses of an associate or joint venture
and impairment of the net investment in the associate
or joint venture. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments on 1 January 2019. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the

Group’s financial statements.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2018

2.3 B R E 15 AR A R B R B 7 R

HER| (1K)
B2t ERIE 1R MBS ERIE
SHMIEEI A IREFTHNEEMTEE - 51
TEYIE - WA SEERTMEREE
0 RS E TR e e mA
BHREROEZAFPBRBEZEMBEHRRIE
LESATE - AIEBERBBEXN - %%
BRTAZRE  EAMEIURRE R
BREZERE - WA S BBEHERNE
REleTYEFEAFLELARE - A
EHRERBBEXN - AEEEHE A
20201 A1 8 AR R E A E R A%
EBE] - ZE BB TeEHASEN
HSRRELEAMNEATE -

R &R 2R FE285R 1S 5T A B8 BB
BB HREENFIFRNEERRERE
JERARESEANBE R RAEREE
W BTRREEE FEABEQRNA
ELEREFE—BoRAES (B
PRARERERZE) - At sTEZEK
AN EEERABRBRMBEREE
BIZE 9% (BB BR B IS 3R &5 2 R B 95%
THREZR) MIERREF%R|E28
5o BEERRME N RRAELENE
BERBENRREEREFRERED
BRAT - BEReFrERE 285 I ERAR
FIRE (RERPER) - A5EEHN
2019F 1 A1 B ERMZFBIT A ZF
BEIATEH BT B AR BB ®E
EEFREATE -



2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
IFRIC 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes
(current and deferred) when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of IAS 12
(often referred to as “uncertain tax positions”).
The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies
outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically
include requirements relating to interest and penalties
associated with uncertain tax treatments. The
interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an
entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii)
the assumptions an entity makes about the examination
of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how an
entity determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax
bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax
rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes in facts
and circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied
retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the
use of hindsight or retrospectively with the cumulative
effect of application as an adjustment to the opening
equity at the date of initial application, without the
restatement of comparative information. The Group
expects to adopt the interpretation from 1 January
2019. The interpretation is not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous

consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the Group’s share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment

losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in profit or loss. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in
the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable,
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates or joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments
in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included
as part of the Group’s investments in associates or joint

ventures.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment
at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair value
of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal

is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as

incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements

MR M
Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31B IF/E

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(Continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss

is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and
any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed
of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the

portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31B IF/E

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their

economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement as a whole:

Level T — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each

reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than deferred tax assets, inventories, construction
contract assets, financial assets and non-current assets/
a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
BHZE2018F12831HIEFE

24 TESHBEBE (8)

NFEFE (&)
RUBBRFEXRBEAFENMEE
ERAE  HREHQFEFEERRE
EEBERNREEE ARER TARF
BEERETIR

F— - ENAHMANAELAEETE
TiBHRE CREAE)

F_H - ERAEERIRRERYQF
BtEME REENZEKER
ABBHGETE

F=H - EREZIBEREQTFEAEM
B REERNREEHAZEN
BEA

AEERUBERRERNEENAGEM
B AKRBRERERKRE  REEE
BLATEAEMS SEENREZHA
BEBFIENE  EEREFENE
B RwEE -

FERMEERME

MHIRRETR - AFEEHEELETF
BREANH CEEHREE & &2
RERAEE eRMEENRFRDEE
DERFELENHEAARRIN) - A
FHEBEM A W EI SR - BE AT E
RN EEXRCELEUNEREER
HEANFENBHERAMETRS
% UHREREEETE  BRIFZEEL
BELTAM EBYNAEMEEREEM
AMBRERE  EHBERT - BIREE
FBNReELBUET I WESHE -

2018 4 | HAMBRKROBERAT

159



160

Notes to Financial Statements
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss
is credited to profit or loss in the period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

or

(b)

the party is a person or close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group.

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same

third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the

Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by

a person identified in (a);
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

(vii) a person identified in (a) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Group recognised such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are

as follows:

Buildings BF

Gas pipelines MR EE

Plant and machinery T 55 B e B

Furniture, fixtures and office R KER
equipment FNE

Motor vehicles B

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each

financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales

proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents gas station
structures, machinery, gas pipelines and other property,
plant and equipment under construction which is
stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is
not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.

6.33% to 31.67%

10.56% to 31.67%
9.50% to 23.75%
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Operating rights

Operating rights for city pipeline network are stated at
cost less any impairment losses and are amortised on
the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of

twenty-eight years.

Software copyrights

Purchased software copyrights are stated at cost less
any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of

ten years.

Intellectual property rights

Intellectual property rights for petrochemical industry
are stated at cost less any impairment losses and are
amortised on the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of eighteen years.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The finance costs of such leases are charged to the
statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on

the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Group’s business
model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined
under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out
for “Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018)” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial

assets, or both.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or

convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets

depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost
if both of the following conditions are met:

e The financial asset is held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order

to collect contractual cash flows.

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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Notes to Financial Statements

MR M
Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31B IF/E

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for
the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments
of principal and interest are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at
fair value through other comprehensive income, as
described above, debt instruments may be designated
at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition
if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

This category includes equity investments which the
Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Dividends
on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can

be measured reliably.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets, except in the case of financial

assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets

depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in other
expenses for receivables.
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Notes to Financial Statements

MR M
Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31B IF/E

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments
and debt securities. Equity investments classified
as available for sale are those which are neither
classified as held for trading nor designated as at fair
value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this
category are those which are intended to be held for
an indefinite period of time and which may be sold
in response to needs for liquidity or in response to
changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
other income, or until the investment is determined
to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or
loss in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends
earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss as other income in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition (applicable before 1 January 2018)” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over
the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined
to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

MR M
Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31B IF/E

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018
and policies under IAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)

when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred

control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to
what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018
and policies under IAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018) (Continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all
debt instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows
will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the

contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month
ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,

irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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Notes to Financial Statements

MR M
Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31B IF/E

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

General approach (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort, including

historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 180 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2018

24 TESHBEBE (8)

TREERE (BRI KREER
SFORIET 2K » H2018F181H
wREA (&)

— % ()
AEERSHREDHTHEFECRTE
WEERRBVFEREESSDEEL
e FEETE B GE - AEEeme
BTHERREAPEEENNRRES
BTARVILHERE AEEENNRR
EITHBRERERABASEABANET
WERKARKE N ESHNER - &
EREERKATEEELR -

AEERR  WAEHNNKE180XK -
ARESREEENSM - AW - &R
THERT - HARBRIMNEERBRAE
ke VSRR CIRA SLIES ¥ oN: 0NV FET)
NABEARBWBCRWERA M2 5 - B
SENMARRBELESTRMEEENENF -
HE LR EAMERE SRS RE
AMHEMBE -

FRIEWE SRR R A R EERA T
LIRS - IREHK A ENSRMEE
B—RIDEETRIE - WiR T IS

EFEI 8RR -



2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies

under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

(Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired

at the reporting date (but that are not

purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime

ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does
not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the

debtors and the economic environment.
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Notes to Financial Statements

MR M
Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31B IF/E

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (policies under
IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An
impairment exists if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are

not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet
been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest

rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been transferred to

the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to
other expenses in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

MR M
Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31B IF/E

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement

of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss
— is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment
losses on equity instruments classified as available for
sale are not reversed through the statement of profit or
loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are

recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors,
the duration or extent to which the fair value of an

investment is less than its cost.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

In the case of debt instruments classified as available
for sale, impairment is assessed based on the same
criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost.
However, the amount recorded for impairment is the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between
the amortised cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in profit or loss. Future interest income
continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying
amount of the asset using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. The interest income
is recorded as part of finance income. Impairment
losses on debt instruments are reversed through profit
or loss if the subsequent increase in fair value of the
instruments can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in

profit or loss.

Financial liabilities (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and IAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as loans and borrowings and payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
other payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank

borrowings and amounts due to other related parties.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and IAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest

rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in

finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018
and IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or

expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is

recognised in profit or loss.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2018

24 TESHBEBE (8)

cEBE (BB KRS ER EE
BT 2HE  H2018F181H £\
A URBEIBREstERSE395EET
ZBE R2018FE181H B E A)
(#8)

HiEqE
TREBENEAFEIAREN TS

18

EAREN

RN FHERIEK - 5t ERITERKEIREN
BRI EIR B R AT E - FRIFFTR
MEESTEKR - RUBERT - BT
RAMETIER - B B ERBEHER A RS
BIRBEENRETHRHER - BENER
PR

BESHRAN DB BT B R B R R R A A
BB M AT BT iR SOR (B & B A kK
AEtHE - BEREMEEHEN BT AR
B o

BRI e s (BBRMBERS
ZRZEIIRIET ZBEK » H20185F1
B1EEER  URBEBSFTEASE
395518 T Z BUK - FA20185F181H
RIEA)
ERENRBEREERIBUESE W
TR B EREREER -

A —ERARKRE EFE RN E R
BERRREERAEIREGREGRK
REXER] - BB HRABITERER
RBGHERRBRAE  UHERFAR -
EIREEREZR IR R o



2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018
and IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the

assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average method and, in the case of finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and

disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an

integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits and
assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted

as to use.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in

profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current period
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group

operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Income tax (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which

the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset

to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities
and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or

recovered.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income to match the grant on a
systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which

it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred revenue account and is released
to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the
relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a
variable amount, the amount of consideration is
estimated to which the Group will be entitled in
exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until it is highly
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable

consideration is subsequently resolved.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018) (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the Group a significant financial benefit
for more than one year, revenue recognised under the
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest method.
For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods
or services is one year or less, the transaction price is
not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing

component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.

(a) Sale of natural gas
Revenue from the sale of natural gas is recognised
at the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery
of the natural gas.

Construction and connection of gas pipelines
Revenue from the provision of construction
services is recognised over time given that the
Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created
or enhanced. As the Group may not be able to
reasonably measure the outcome of a performance
obligation, the Group expects to recover the costs
incurred in satisfying the performance obligation.
Accordingly the Group recognise revenue to the
extent of costs incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements

MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
BHZE2018F12831HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 FEEBRMUE (&)
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January WAER (B2018F1A1HREA)

2018) (Continued) (%)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) HEELAWE ()

(b) Natural gas transmission service (b) RARE &R
The Group’s provision of natural gas transmission REERBEHERRARRS - K8
service generally includes a series of distinct BRE—-RiAEPEEEARERAE
services that are substantially the same and that BEEMBEREXNEATER R -
have the same pattern of transfer to the customers. AEEEREIARBAERANEE
Revenue from transmission of natural gas is A & P B8 i 5 1Y AR 7S /Y B Bh R
recognised at the point in time when the Group o

transferred the promised service to the customer.

Revenue from other sources H A KRBT YEA

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis TH 4 U A SL B [ Eb (B A 7R 49 <F ER R R
over the lease terms. Bk o

Other income E it A

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using %IJ B ASEE TR A R AR B AL R
the effective interest method by applying the rate that R UERABemM T EREFETFHN
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts e R B AT R R IR S WA ERE
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a B ESREAERIFEANNZE -

shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying

amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ B% B U A = 12 R% B UG B Gk T8 H HRE R 4 A
right to receive payment has been established, it is N~ EARE umfﬂﬁ’jiﬁ,ﬁ:‘ﬁ%lj/\u B AN
probable that the economic benefits associated with the £E8 - BHIRESFEEER ST ERER -

dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Revenue recognition (applicable before 1
January 2018)
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and when

the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following

bases:

(a)

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

from construction contracts, on the percentage
of completion basis, as further explained in the
accounting policy for “Construction contracts

(applicable before 1 January 2018)” below;

from the rendering of services, when the services

are rendered;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the

lease terms;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset; and

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Contract assets (applicable from 1 January 2018)
A contract asset is the right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer. If the Group performs by transferring goods
or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract
asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is

conditional.

Contract liabilities (applicable from 1 January
2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods
or services to a customer for which the Group has
received a consideration (or an amount of consideration
that is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
the consideration before the Group transfers goods
or services to the customer, a contract liability is
recognised when the payment is made or the payment
is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under

the contract.

Contract costs (applicable from 1 January 2018)
Other than the costs which are capitalised as
inventories, property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a contract
with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the

following criteria are met:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can specifically
identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of
the entity that will be used in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in
the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Contract costs (applicable from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and
charged to the statement of profit or loss on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the pattern of
the revenue to which the asset related is recognised.
Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.

Construction contracts (applicable before 1
January 2018)

The balances of construction contracts represent the
net amount of construction costs incurred to date and
recognised profits (less recognised losses), less progress
billings and provision for foreseeable contract losses.

Construction contract costs are valued at actual cost,
and comprise direct materials, direct labour costs,
construction machinery costs, other direct costs and
construction overheads. For an individual contract
whose costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
(less recognised losses) exceed progress billings, the
gross amount due from customers for contract work
in inventories is presented as amounts due from
construction contract customers. For an individual
contract whose progress billings exceed costs incurred
to date plus recognised profits (less recognised losses),
the gross amount due to customers for contract work in
advance from customers is presented as advance from

customers.

The Group estimates total contract costs based on
actual circumstances for each contract. Provision for
foreseeable contract losses will be recognised in profit
or loss where total estimated contract costs exceed total

contract revenue.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments

(“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with eligible
participants is measured by reference to the fair
value at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined by an external valuer using the
Black-Scholes model, further details of which are given
in note 37 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense and other expenses, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period
in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting
period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for
a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group's
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also

service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because
non-market performance and/or service conditions
have not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or

service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as

described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute 20% to 22% of their payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance

with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Other employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefits

As stipulated by PRC regulations, subsidiaries in
Mainland China participate in a defined contribution
retirement scheme. All formal employees are entitled
to an annual pension equal to a fixed proportion of the
average basic salary amount of their last employment
at their retirement date. Subsidiaries in Mainland China
are required to make contributions to the local social
security bureau at rates of 20% to 22% of the average
basic salaries of the employees under the employment
of subsidiaries in Mainland China to whom the defined
contribution retirement plan is applicable. Subsidiaries
in Mainland China have no obligations for the payment
of pension benefits beyond the annual contributions to
the local social security bureau as set out above.

Accommodation benefits

According to the relevant PRC rules and regulations,
each of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China
is required to make contributions, which are in
proportion to the salaries and wages of the employees,
to an accommodation fund administered by the Public
Accumulation Funds Administration Centre. There are
no further obligations on the part of the subsidiaries
in Mainland China, except for the contributions to the

accommodation fund.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of

funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability
when they are proposed and declared.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is the Group’s and the Company’s
functional currency because the Group’s principal
operations are carried out in Mainland China. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. All differences are taken to
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on retranslation
of a non-monetary item is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair
value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the
item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or

loss, respectively).
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the
date of initial transaction is the date on which the
Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts
in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance

consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency of
the Company at the exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period and their profit or loss is translated
into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for

the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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3. FESTHERMET

3. Significant Accounting Judgements and

198

Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Withholding tax arising from the distribution of
dividends

The Group’s determination, as to whether to accrue
withholding taxes arising from the distribution of
dividends by certain subsidiaries according to the
relevant tax rules enacted in the jurisdictions, is
subject to judgement on the plan of the distribution of
dividends.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other

key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting

date, that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial period, are described

below.

(i)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives
and related depreciation charges for its property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. It could change significantly as
a result of technical innovations, or competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives, or it will write off or write down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold. The useful lives of
property, plant and equipment are disclosed in
note 2.4 to the financial statements.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(ii) Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables and contract assets
The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate
ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets.
The provision rates are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer segments that
have similar loss patterns according to sales type,
customer type and rating.

The provision matrix is initially based on the
Group’s historical observed default rates. The Group
will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic
conditions (i.e., gross domestic products) are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which
can lead to an increased number of defaults in the
manufacturing sector, the historical default rates
are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in

the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount
of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances
and forecast economic conditions. The Group’s
historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be
representative of customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group’s trade receivables and contract assets is
disclosed in note 24 and note 25 to the financial
statements, respectively.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences are recognised as management
considers that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary tax differences or tax losses can be
utilised. Where the expectations are different
from the original estimates, such differences will
impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and deferred tax in the periods in which such
estimates have been changed. The carrying amount
of deferred tax assets carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018 was RMB35,169,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB33,470,000), details of which are set out in

note 21 to the financial statements.

Estimation of the amortisation period of connection
fees recorded as contract liabilities and deferred
revenue

The Group receives fees from customers in advance
in exchange for the connection of gas pipelines to
the urban natural gas pipeline network. These fees
are received in advance and gradually amortised.
The Group determines the estimated amortisation
period of ten years for its revenue recognition.
This estimate is based on the Group’s historical
experience of the actual service period and the
strength of the Group’s business relationship
It could differ
significantly based on the customer’s profile,

with each individual customer.

expected term of the relationship and the strength
of the customer’s business relationship established
with the Group. Generally, amortisation is
calculated on the straight-line basis for ten years.
The carrying amount of connection fees carried in
the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2018 was RMB109,601,000
(31 December 2017: RMB106,718,000), details
of which are set out in note 32 and note 33 to the
financial statements.
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3.

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(v) Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is
impaired at least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December
2018 was RMB97,412,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB97,412,000). Further details are given in note
16.
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Segment Information
For management purposes, the Group has only one

reportable operating segment which is natural gas

operation. Since this is the only reportable operating

segment of the Group, no further operating segment

analysis thereof is presented.

Geographical information

(a)

(b)

Revenue from external customers
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Segment Information (Continued)
Information about major customers

One single customer accounted for 22.8% of the
Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017: 19.3%).

The directors have only little information about whether
a group of entities are under common control; and
therefore the assessment is made to the directors’ best
knowledge. Especially, the assessment is not made for
those entities which might solely be under the ultimate
common control of the government after taking into
account the economic integration among such entities
in the economic environment with a large number of

state-owned entities in Mainland China.
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5. Revenue 5. WA
5.1 An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as 51 ZEEHWADHESIMNT
follows:
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFIT
Revenue from contracts with customers & F & &k 1,101,385 970,123
Revenue from other sources H i 2R WA
Gross rental income e ALz 3,443 3,202
1,104,828 973,325
Less: Government surcharges B BURH N2 (2,023) (6,058)
1,102,805 967,267
Revenue from contracts with customers &5 & &
Type of goods or services Eoin 2L IR SR A
Sale of natural gas HERAR 1,011,861 844,463
Construction and connection EEREEAKXAR
of gas pipelines Bl 78,403 114,151
Transmission of natural gas R RAR 7,949 9,122
Others Hit 3,172 2,387
1,101,385 970,123
Timing of revenue recognition TR A B8 BT
Goods or services transferred KRR A B EEN
at a point in time E o R 1,022,982 855,972
Services transferred over time ¥z B R 0 2 1 AR 755 78,403 114,151
1,101,385 970,123
Revenue from other sources H 3R A A
Gross rental income e W ALazs 3,443 3,202
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Revenue (Continued)
5.1 An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as

follows: (Continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that
were included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the reporting period.

5. WA (&)

5.1

REBHOWBADHEIMT :
(&)
TRIRRBERNACRAE
KA E RERERNRATHE

2018
20184
RMB’000
ARBT

Sale of natural gas

Construction and connection of gas pipelines

HERRR
BERMEARRRE S

85,093
58,246

143,339

There is no revenue recognised from performance

obligations satisfied in previous periods.

5.2 Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance

obligations is summarised below:

Sale of natural gas

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
delivery of the natural gas and payment is
generally due within 30 to 90 days from delivery.

Construction and connection of gas pipelines
services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time
as services are rendered and short-term advances
are normally required before or during rendering
the services. The remaining percentage of payment
generally should be paid upon completion of
construction and connection and the Group
usually give the customers a credit period of 180

days.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2018

5.2

WERBEHEDS TRNBENEE
HERRUA o

BHREE
ARAEBBAEEHNE R
B

HEXAR
BHEERINRARKERK - B
BRERXMEF30E90H AR o

BRREAREBIRE

BHE TR RRERGHN —RERHER
ZERK - BIRHARTS AT AR HIE —
MBS EHBR - BEARER
K ATER 1R ST RIRR B AR
EBREEHRTEF180RMEEY -



5.

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
BHZE2018F12831HIEFE

Revenue (Continued)
5.2 Performance obligations (Continued)

5. WA (&)
5.2 BHEME ()

Rendering of natural gas transmission service

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
delivery of the promised service to the customers
and payment is generally due within 30 to 90 days
from delivery.

The transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2018 are as

follows:

FERBA XA RIRE

B AEAER A E P R G IRFS
ZRK O BERARXNEFT30E90H
MK o

H ZE2018F12A31H H B & F #4
BHEE CREKSKIBD REK)
MR SERAT :

2018
20184
RMB’000
AR®T T

Within one year
More than one year

87,386
181,397

268,783

The remaining performance obligations expected
to be recognised more than one year relate to
construction and connection of gas pipelines that
are to be satisfied within two years. All the other
remaining performance obligations are expected to
be recognised within one year.

MRS R RSB — FRRIERE
HWEEEBRMFATKORRE
BERKNEARHR - TEEMF
BHEEEBR —FAER -
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6. Other Income and Gains

6. HAWARUWEH

2018 2017
2018F 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AR¥ET T
Other income HAo g A
Bank interest income HRITAI B A 4,242 10,951
Government grants BT # Bh 1,678 2,784
Foreign exchange gain bE 5 W 5,600 =
Others At 101 282
11,621 14,017
Gains &
Gain on disposal of items of HEME - BER
property, plant and equipment ®iwE B W 3,601 691
Fair value gains, net: NFEWE - R
Equity investments at fair value BAFEFTABRRN
through profit or loss RAKE 2,116 -
Financial assets at fair value BATFEFAERN
through profit or loss BRIEE 9,833 -
Available-for-sale financial assets AN ESREE - 1,963
15,550 2,654
27,171 16,671
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Profit Before Tax 7. BR®AEIEF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBHBRF B SR &R (51
(crediting): A)
2018 2017
2018 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARETTT
Cost of inventories sold HEFEMA 856,193 695,997
Employee benefit expense (excluding EERNRAX (T8
directors’ and chief executive’s KEFoRmEBMEER
remuneration as set out in note 9): FETHAENME)
Wages and salaries TERES 27,294 23,375
Equity-settled share option expenses MRS E R IBIRIER X 21,468 19,278
Pension scheme contributions RIS TR 2,600 2,463
Social security contributions HeRBERRERRET
and accommodation benefits 2,660 2,606
Auditor's remuneration Z B & 1,950 1,800
Gain on disposal of items of HEWE - BB RREEE
property, plant and equipment (note 6) Wezs (BeE6) (3,601) (691)
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss EX (W), B8 (5,600) 13,293
Depreciation (note 14) wE (fiai4) 34,063 33,158
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TR+ E HIE
payments (note 15) BH (faE15) 2,991 2,978
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 17) B EE#H (W%1 7) 4,186 3,589
Minimum lease payment under REBLLEHENHIE
operating leases HERH 1,987 1,812
Impairment of trade receivables, W E Z BRFORE
net (note 24) R (MiE24) (902) 682
Fair value gains, net: (note 6) NFEWE - FE  (FEEe)
Equity investments at fair value BATER AERE
through profit or loss BRARE (2,116) -
Financial assets at fair value BAFEF AR
through profit or loss TREE (9,833) -
Available-for-sale financial assets AN ESRHEE - (1,963)
Bank interest income (note 6) RITHSWA (Hizt6) (4,242) (10,951)
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8. Finance Costs

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

8. WERA

BMERADFTEINGAT -

2018 2017
2018%F 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
Interest on interest-bearing AR AFABHEED
bank borrowings wholly repayable FERITRERAFE
within five years 5,292 6,156
Others H A, 209 134
5,501 6,290

9. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s

Remuneration

9. EERFETHAENME

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section
383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of

RIEETRE - BB RRMEAIFE383(1)
@)~ (b) ~ ROEARAR (REES
MEmER) ROIE2H - REFANE
EREFBITHRABNMEOT

Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is

as follows:

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Fees we 460 485

Other emoluments: Hp e
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EZEEREYA S 5,596 5,464
Equity-settled share option expenses PARE %5 45 5 Y BB AR ) 2 1,122 1,923
6,718 7,387
7,178 7,872
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Remuneration (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018,
certain directors were granted share options, in respect
of their services to the Group, under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set
out in note 37 to the financial statements. The fair value
of such options, which has been recognised in profit or
loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the
date of grant and the amount included in the financial
statements for the current year is included in the above
directors’ remuneration disclosures.

There were no emoluments paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join the Group, or upon
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss at office

during the year.
(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive

directors during the year were as follows:

2018

EERFTETBRAENME (&)

#H 220174 X&2018%F128318 I+ £
B BERARATNERETS  ETE
ERFEERNAEBRENRGERER
- EMFBERRNMBRERWNEI7H -
BRENATEREBHNNERTE
R BREBEHBBHEE - Mt AREE
MBBERTIHNSBRREELAEEHE
MIEEEA o

FAAEERERNESEEMF
B ERTSIMMARKERIMAREE
& E SRS IE R RE R E

(@) BYFHITES
REAXN T HBILIERTESH
wWEn

20185

Equity-settled
share option

Fees expenses Total

UREREEN
HE BRERX st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT AR%TR AR%Tx
Mr. Zhou Qingzu BEELE 150 41 191
Mr. He Junjie®™ AR AR AED 10 - 10
Mr. Luk Wai Keung PEfRR A 150 41 191
Mr. Zhu Tong N ik 150 - 150
460 82 542
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9. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 9. EERTETHAENENE (&)
Remuneration (Continued)
(@) Independent non-executive directors (a) BAEHITES (&)

(Continued)

2017 20175

Equity-settled
share option

Fees expenses Total
PN Fadaichss
wE  BERERX st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBTE

Mr. Zhou Qingzu BERLE 152 63 215
Mr. He Junjie® ARG EED 120 63 183
Mr. Luk Wai Keung PERos 4 152 63 215
Mr. Zhu Tong N e 61 = 61

485 189 674
There were no other emoluments payable to the RER  HEEMAESIENITESHE
independent non-executive directors during the NG (20174 : ) o

year (2017: Nil).
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9.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Remuneration (Continued)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12831HIEFE

9. EERFEITHRAENME (&)

(b) MITESBRIFHNTES

directors
Salaries,
allowances  Performance  Equity-setled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind honuses expenses  contributions Total
O ptE uEsEEn  EfS )
we  RENAE RERe  BREXH e &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AREBTT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR
2018 20185
Executive directors: HTEE:
- Mr. Su Aping - &MY EE - 1,748 - 13 - 1,991
- Ms. Zhu Yaying N - 1,186 - 249 - 1435
- Mr. Du Shaozhou - hAR%E - 1,185 - 258 - 1,443
- Ms. SuYi -HELT - 1,207 - 249 - 1,456
- 5,326 - 999 - 6,325
Non-executive directors: FYTES !
- Mr. Xu Lei -ERE - 150 - 4 - 191
- Mr. Zhuang Jianhao® — HE A - 82 - - - 82
—Mr. Jin Bo® o b e - 38 - - - 38
. 5,59 . 1,040 . 6,636
2017 0175
Executive directors: HTEE:
- Mr. Su Aping - EEEL = 1,740 - 399 - 2,139
- Ms. Zhu Yaying - RBENT - 1,180 - 402 - 1,582
- Mr. Du Shaozhou - HARLE - 1,179 - 415 - 1,504
- Ms. Su i -EEat - 1,061 - 402 - 1,463
- - 5,160 - 1,618 - 6,778
Non-executive directors: HES:
- Mr. Xu Lei -TEEE - 152 - 63 - 215
- Mr. Zhuang Jianhao® — A = 152 = 53 = 205
- 5,464 - 1,734 - 7,198

M Mr. He Junjie resigned as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 1 February
2018.

@ Mr. Zhuang Jianhao resigned as a non-executive
director of the Company on 3 September 2018.

® Mr. Jin Bo was appointed as a non-executive

director of the Company on 3 September 2018.

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration

during-the year.

o A EEEEEE R2018F2 A1 BHEAR
REBYIENITESE B -

@ HEEEEAEER2018F9A3ABHIAR
DNRIFEITEE B -

6 SR EAEMN2018FIAIHEZ T AR

REBEATES -

RER - WETLEMLZH - UBES
MELREREEFAME -
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10. Five Highest Paid Employees
The five highest paid employees during the year
included four directors (2017: four directors), details of
whose remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details
of the remuneration for the year of the remaining one

10. EEREFMES
FRN- hemayEE (BENEE
= (2017%F : HBREE)) M
R EXHIFE9 - R 82~ —%& (2017
F—F) WHEARRESTHEZTH

TOFIEHE

(2017: one) highest paid employee who is neither a AENEZSHFHEEMESHFBZET ¢
director nor chief executive of the Company are as
follows:
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥®TR AREFTT
Salaries, allowances e RMEEYHE
and benefits in kind 3,172 2,763
Equity-settled share option expenses VAT 25 45 5 A B AR A B =2 397 630
3,569 3,393
The number of non-director highest paid employees EESSEMESENMENFUTA
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is Bl A BN :
as follows:
2018 2017
2018%F 20174

Nil to RMB1,000,000

RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000
RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000
RMB2,000,001 to RMB2,500,000
RMB2,500,001 to RMB3,000,000
RMB3,000,001 to RMB3,500,000
RMB3,500,001 to RMB4,000,000
RMB4,000,001 to RMB4,500,000
RMB4,500,001 to RMB5,000,000
RMB5,000,001 to RMB5,500,000

T&E AR¥1,000,0007T

AR#1,000,001 2 AR1,500,0007T
AKR%1,500,001 L2 AK%2,000,0007T
AR%2,000,001E AR#2,500,0007C
AR#2,500,001TE AR3,000,0007T
AR®3,000,00175E AREES3,500,0007T
AR#3,500,001TE AR 4,000,0007T
AR#4,000,001E AR4,500,0007T
AE™4,500,001 & ARS5,000,0007T
AR#5,000,001 T2 ARS5,500,0007T
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10. Five Highest Paid Employees (Continued)

11.

Share options were granted to non-director and
non-chief executive highest paid employee in respect of
his services to the Group, further details of which are
included in the disclosures in note 37. The fair value
of such options, which has been recognised in profit or
loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the
date of grant and the amount included in the financial
statements for the current year is included in the above
non-director and non-chief executive highest paid

employee’s remuneration disclosures.

There were no emoluments paid by the Group to
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join the Group, or upon joining the Group, or as

compensation for loss of office during the year.

Income Tax

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis
on profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions
in which members of the Group are domiciled and
operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands, the Company is not subject to any income tax
in that jurisdiction.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Group had no assessable profits derived from or
earned in Hong Kong during the year.

The provision for Mainland China current income tax
is based on the statutory rate of 25% (2017: 25%)
of the assessable profits of the PRC subsidiaries of
the Group as determined in accordance with the
PRC Corporate Income Tax Law which was approved
and became effective on 1 January 2008 (the “New
Corporate Income Tax Law”), except for Licheng Gas, a
subsidiary operated in Sichuan Province, which is taxed
at a preferential rate of 15% because of the Western

Development Policy in Mainland China.

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
BHZE2018F12831HIEFE

10. BB BESEFMES (&)

11.

B B A BRI ML E B
IEAHRARNBREFREBBLER
1R — S EER 7 HE - ER
5B SRR A2 O RER M3 SRR A
TERBE AT - M AKFE
BIRRHSEEH A LI EF I
FETRABMBEHMES e 5
= -

FRN AEEHEALERSHFALX
MERFM - ARSI IIAREE SN
AREB R B K AERBERAE -

Frig®i

A EA ALK S AR g
KIS PR P £ R A %5 A
SENE R BRI B R EMR TSR -

RERSBHESNHRALRE  AAFH
AR L RDAER BN TRPAER -

BN FAREBEET B B8 E L IR
FERBE AN - Fk W AT BN FHAE
R

B A b B HA AT S A R D AR R R B
TEMEHE ((FREMERE] - R
2008F1A1HMLERER) AL
& A B BB A 7 A FE ER B s A LA25%
(20174 : 25%) WX ER X E -
N IR Sl )= NG IR B o eaiiS
AN+ H B AR B P 3 7 R A B B ORI
BEBHE15%MF °
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11. Income Tax (Continued)

The major components of income tax expense are as

follows:

1. FrE8 (&)

FEREXNIEBERIIMT -

2018 2017
2018%F 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
Current tax: BNEATR IR
Income tax in the PRC for the year FAPBEMAFHR 45,794 51,251
Adjustments in respect of BT HIM AR
current tax of previous periods B B R 78 B (534) 207
Deferred tax (note 21) EERIE (HEE21) (2,750) (3,400)
Total tax charge for the year FARIBES T 42,510 48,058

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries

ERAREANRE REAE DM B AR
it P4 Rl AR IR R RE A R A+ B A BR B AT
i A B B IR S BRI A R AT E RO

are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax TERY SRR T ¢
rate is as follows:
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREFT
Profit before tax B 25 A1 g A 146,013 148,198
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEMEFEZHIA 36,503 37,050
Lower tax rate for a specific entity REBEBIBREBRX (604) (650)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR XX 229 58
Tax losses not recognised ANHERTIAE R 8,662 11,842
Adjustments in respect of EREHE AN
current tax of previous periods BNERTR IR B (534) 207
Profits attributable to associates Bt 8 N ) FE AR 8 A (1,746) (449)
Total tax charge recognised B MR AR < 5 42,510 48,058

The share of tax attributable to associates amounting
to RMB2,982,000 (2017: RMB639,000) is included in
“Share of profits of associates” in profit or loss.

A e
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12.

13.

Dividends

On 29 March 2019, the board of directors of the
Company resolved to propose a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2018 of RMB0.028
per ordinary share (2017: RMB0.020), subject to the
approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
BHZE2018F12831HIEFE

12. RE

R2019%3H298 * KA AR EE €&
REFHIRZEEHE2018F12A31H IEF
ERHAKREEREBRARK0.0287T
(201749 : AR®0.02070) © HAFR
RRARTIEERRBEFAS EHER
AEE -

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMET T ARETTT
Proposed final - RMB0.028 BERHRS —
(2017: RMB0.020) per ordinary share BREBRARK0.0287T
(20174 : AR#0.0207T) 25,282 18,058

Earnings Per Share Attributable to Ordinary
Equity Holders of The Parent

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 902,924,000
(2017: 895,362,356) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share
amount is based on the profit for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the parent. The weighted
average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year, as used in the basic earnings per
share calculation, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares.

13. BAREEREFEABRGER

R

ERERZNTIBRES QAL BRER
BEABEFERENRFADETERR
0 #E - 15 £0902,924,0008% (20174 :
895,362,356/%) 5t & -

BEREERNNERIERERR TR
BAERE ARIGFERENFE - SHEE
PRAMEBRMEFARSANGAES
BRERBNOFEFADHTEBREE
M 28 A N P 15 B RN AR AETT
PrA B G LB E LRn%E
B B EERT -
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13. Earnings Per Share Attributable to Ordinary  13. B AR EEREZTEAELEER

Equity Holders of The Parent (Continued) 2R (%&)
The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per FREEA R ER R TR A T RS
share are based on: =i

2018 2017
20184 20174F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR ARETT
Earnings 27
Profit attributable to ordinary equity REEBRERRNT
holders of the parent, used in the FREIEBEERE A
basic earnings per share calculation JEAG & A 98,621 93,902
Number of shares
R7 BB
2018 2017
2018%F 20174
Shares A7
Weighted average number of ordinary F{EstEFMRERZFH
shares in issue during the year FAEEITEER
used in the basic earnings per I8
share calculation 902,924,000 895,362,356
Effect of dilution — weighted average BEEF 2 — L@ INE
number of ordinary shares: FI9E
Share options RN HE 80,000,000 57,123,934

982,924,000 952,486,290
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12831HIEFE

14. ¥ - REKRE

Furniture,
fixtures
Gas Plantand  and office Motor  Construction
Buildings pipelines  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
B %ER
Br  MREE  HRREE  BOERK nE  ERIR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARMTT ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Cost: A
At 1 January 2017 R201751 418 187,536 444,496 43,442 3,491 8,096 78,611 766,272
Additions ME 2,363 - 611 812 127 20,115 24,028
Acquisition of subsidiaries ~ WEEHBA A - - - 73 - 405 478
Transfers 44 32,486 2,461 3,150 212 - (38,309) -
Disposals HE - (13,244) - - (108) - (13,352)
At 31 December 2017 R017E12A318 Rk
and 1 January 2018 201851518 222,385 433,713 47,203 4,588 8,715 60,822 777,426
Additions AE - 59 1,416 1,357 1,729 80,436 84,997
Transfers B 2,085 22,887 3,699 - - (28,671) -
Disposals e (810) = (2,836) = = = 3,646)
At31 December 2018 R018%12A318 23660 456,639 49,482 5,945 10444 112587 858,777
Accumulated depreciation: ~ 5tHE
At 1 January 2017 1201717818 27,118 117,817 18,989 1,552 3472 = 168,948
Acquisition of subsidiaries ~ WEEHB A7 - - - 5 - - 55
Charge for the year FRAT 5,835 21,833 3,850 744 896 = 33,158
Disposals HE = (3,003) - - (97) - (3,100)
At 31 December 2017 R017E12A318 Rk
and 1 January 2018 201851518 32,953 136,647 22,839 2,351 427 - 199,061
Charge for the year ERFY 6,961 21,974 3,158 914 1,036 = 34,063
Disposals & (26) = (216) = = = (242)
At 31 December 2018 R018%128318 39,888 158,621 25,781 3,265 5307 VY]
Net cartying amount: REFE:
At 31 December 2017 R2017£12A4318 189,432 297,066 24,364 2,237 4,444 60,822 578,365
At 31 December 2018 R2018128318 183,772 298038 23701 2,680 517 12587 625,805
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14.

15.

Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
At 31 December 2018, certain of the Group’s
buildings with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB117,784,000 (2017: RMB120,893,000) were
pledged to secure interest-bearing bank borrowings
granted to the Group (note 34).

14. Y% - BMERZE (&)
MR2018%F12A8318 » AEE KM FE
#Bm ANR¥117,784,0007T (20174 ¢
AR #120,893,000T) MK TEFE
B LARTASE/ T SRITER
REER (H5E34) ©

Prepaid Land Lease Payments 15. B L A ERIE
2018 2017
2018 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥®TR ARBTTT
Cost: RS :
At beginning of year F1 105,635 101,452
Acquisition of subsidiaries Y B BT /B8 1 ) - 4,183
At end of year FR 105,635 105,635
Accumulated amortisation: EE 5
At beginning of year F7) 11,036 8,058
Amortisation during the year F A 55 2,991 2,978
At end of year FAR 14,027 11,036
Net carrying amount at end of year — FREVEREFE 91,608 94,599
Current portion, included in BNHAERMD + RIETENFRIE
prepayments, other receivables Hi WA R & &
and other assets (2,995) (2,972)
Non-current portion JEBNEAER 19 88,613 91,627

As at 31 December 2018, certain of the Group’s prepaid
land lease payments with an aggregate net carrying
amount of RMB4,126,000 (2017: RMB4,223,000) were
pledged to banks to secure the borrowings granted to
the Group (note 34).
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Notes to Financial Statements

MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12831HIEFE

16. Goodwill 16. BE
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREBFT
Cost: AN :
At 1 January R1A1EB 97,412 91,787
Acquisition of subsidiaries Y B BT /B8 2 ) - 5,625
At 31 December M12A31H 97,412 97,412
Accumulated impairment: ZFHEE :
At 1 January and at 31 December W1A1BX12A831H - -
Net book value: BRIENRE :
At 31 December MW12A31H 97,412 97,412
Impairment testing of goodwill EERERE

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is
allocated to cash-generating units (“CGUs”) that are
expected to benefit from the business combinations.
Management considers each subsidiary acquired
represents a separate CGU for the purpose of goodwill
impairment testing.

HREBEHARENHES SRS
ReEtEN ((ReELEM]) (BH
HEZBREBA ) - sLEERER
AME  BEERARESMNBARR
BUMNBEELEN -
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018FE12A31B ILFE

16. Goodwill (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)
The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of
the CGUs is as follows:

16. & (&)

BERERS ()
SEERRSELENNABOEEE
mF -

2018 2017

20184 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREBFT

Licheng Gas BRERR 51,723 51,723
Anda Natural Gas LERIRA, 40,064 40,064
Xinjiang Dunhua Fm 5,625 5,625
97,412 97,412

The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined from
value-in-use calculations. The key assumptions for the
value-in-use calculations include the discount rates,
growth rates and expected changes to selling prices
and direct costs during the year. Management estimates
discount rates ranging from 13.0% to 17.3% using
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the CGUs. Changes in selling prices and direct costs
are based on past practices and expectations of future
changes in the market. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rate
of 3%.
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MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12831HIEFE

17. Intangible Assets 17. B EE
Intellectual
Operating Software property
rights copyrights rights Total
mek Bt iR E ARER ast

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTE  ARBTL  ARETT ARBT:H

Costs: A :
At 1 January 2017 201751 A18 89,741 1,329 = 91,070
Additions NE - 2,628 = 2,628
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEH B - - 7,034 7,034
At 31 December 2017 R2017%12A31H
and 1 January 2018 K2018F1A1H 89,741 3,957 7,034 100,732
Additions NE - 6,035 1,028 7,063
At 31 December 2018 201812 A31H 89,741 9,992 8,062 107,795
Accumulated amortisation: K5t
At 1 January 2017 ®201751 8108 626 184 - 810
Provided during the year FREE 3,345 244 - 3,589
At 31 December 2017 M2017512 4318
and 1 January 2018 K2018%1H1H 3,971 428 = 4,399
Provided during the year FREE 3,724 462 = 4,186
At 31 December 2018 72018512 A31H 7,695 890 - 8,585
Net book value: HREFE :
At 31 December 2017 R2017%12A31H 85,770 3,529 7,034 96,333
At 31 December 2018 12018512 A31H 82,046 9,102 8,062 99,210
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MR M
Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12831HIEFE

18. Investments in Associates 18. REEE R AINRE

2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
Share of net assets D& EFE 120,436 70,339
Goodwill on acquisition R L6 B 7 = A ) PR 20,922 -
141,358 70,339

(@) Particulars of the associates are as follows: (a) BEEDTMEBOT :

Percentage of

FEESL
Nominal value of ~ Place of
paid-up/registered registration and Ownership
Name of company capital  operations Voting power interest  Principal activity
Bz
REER EMBRANEE SRREELE REE  ARER TEXER
Suzhou PetroChina Kunlun RMB117,650,000  PRC/Mainland 49% 49%  Sale of gas products,
Suchuang Gas Co., Ltd.* AR%  China and pipeline
("Kunlun Suchuang Gas”) 117,650,000t B /hERH construction and
HENPEREREFEIME maintenance
BRRAE ([EREEMR)) HERRER
BRREEER
Suzhou PetroChina Kunlun RMB28,000,000  PRC/Mainland 40% 40%  Manufacture and
Suchuang Natural Gas Usage AR%  China sale of compressed
Co., Ltd.* 28,000,000 HE /REMM natural gas
("Kunlun Suchuang Usage”) HERHERBRAR
#MPRREREARARAA
R ([RmEaINA])
Shanghai Zhongji Suchuang New ~ RMB50,000,000  PRC/Mainland 49% 49%  Technology
Energy Technology AR China development and
Co., Ltd.* 50,000,000t  E /HERH technology services
(“Zhongji Suchuang”) of new energy
/i‘?’f%ﬁ e R technology
A/ ([ igel]) AR B RIF % R
B R
continued/...
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ents in Associates (Continued)
culars of the associates are as follows:
tinued)

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
BHZE2018F12831HIEFE

18. REFE QR NRE (#)

(a)

B ARIMRBOT - ()

Percentage of

FiEED
Nominal value of ~ Place of
paid-up/registered  registration and Ownership
Name of company capital  operations Voting power interest  Principal activity
B4R/
NEER AMBRANEE SRREELE FR  FARRER IRXER
Xinjiang Dunhua RMB48,000,000  PRC/Mainland 9.16% 9.16%  Technology promotion
Petroleum Technology AR%  China and technology
Co., Ltd. 48,000,000t Bl /HERM services of petro-
(“Dunhua Petroleum”) */** chemical technology
i E ey LB EIRERR
BRAR ([BERM]) */+ iR
Beijing Beilun RMB25,000,000  PRC/Mainland 20% 20%  Technology promotion
Energy Science and A% China and technology
Technology Co., Ltd. 25,000,000 BB/ RERM services of new-energy

(“Beijing Beilun”) */#*

Rt
AR

*%

BERRR
na] (MR 1) #/ e

The statutory financial statements were not audited
by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network. The
English translations of these company names are
for reference only. The official names of these
companies are in Chinese.

During the year, the Group acquired 9.16% interests
of Dunhua Petroleum. According to the articles of
association, the Group owns 9.16% of the voting
right, and the Group has appointed one director
on the board of directors of Dunhua Petroleum to
participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions. Thus, Dunhua Petroleum is considered as
an associate.

During the year, the Group acquired 20% interests
of Beijing Beilun. According to the articles of
association, the Group owns 20% of the voting right
of Beijing Beilun and has significant influence on

Beijing Beilun. Thus, Beijing Beilun is considered as
an associate.

*k

technology; Gas
operational business

R MO RmERR
BARES o

EEMBRRIGREEBLOKE A=
B L KB BEREE MK E R RE
%o RERBERWNENEREHRS
o RERFMNBETRBATI

FA - ANEEIEZERRA.16%HE
#we MBESSEMY  XEEEFEE
9.16%MIRER - BAEEDEE—%
BEENMABELHESTSL2EPBERE
BRI o At - EARER S

ZINGIE

TR AKEWEIL R & H20%HE
@ RIBABSERAR  AEBHE
20%H R EERHIERILBEEEAY
2 FJit - EREEWE S HEERQ

gp = N
B o
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Notes to Financial Statements

MR M
Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31B IF/E

18. Investments in Associates (Continued)
(b) The associates had no contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

(c) The Group’s outstanding balances and transactions
with the associates during the year are disclosed in
note 27 and note 41 respectively.

(d) The Group’s investments in associates are
considered to be individually material to the
Group. The following tables illustrate the
summarised financial information of the Group’s

associates:

(b)

18. REFE QR NRE (#)

R20185F12 318 - B & A a W
mEARBE (20174 - &) o

AEBREFERNYBE N RN ARESR
HEHRERZ S0 IR 27 & i zE41
W o

REBREER Tﬂﬁ}xé?&ﬁﬁﬂ
AEE@ERMEBEKN - TREM
AREEBERRNPHENRR -

Kunlun Suchuang Gas Em&EEIMT
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETT
Non-current assets EMENE E 49,417 52,932
Current assets mENEE 99,505 77,991
Current liabilities mEaE (16,733) (8,870)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (5,047) -
Net assets BESE 127,142 122,053
Ownership interest (%) FiT 8 #ERE 25 (%) 49 49
62,300 59,806
Impact of adjustments AR E (1,658) (1,773)
Share of net assets DEBEFE 60,642 58,033

Kunlun Suchuang Gas distributed dividends to
its shareholders amounting to RMB2,990,000
in the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
RMB1,192,000). The Group’s share of the dividend
distribution amounted to RMB1,465,000 (2017:
RMB584,000).
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18. Investments in Associates (Continued)

(d)

(Continued)
Kunlun Suchuang Gas (Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12831HIEFE

18. RBEE QAR E (&)
(d) (%)
Em#eMR (&)

2018 2017

20184 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR% TR AREFT

Revenue A 107,736 89,114

Profit for the year F & A 8,314 3,639
Other comprehensive FEEAM D EWES

income for the year - -
Total comprehensive FEEEKEER

income for the year 8,314 3,639

Ownership interest (%) T B RERE 28 (%) 49 49

Share of results DG ELE 4,074 1,783

Kunlun Suchuang Usage ER&EAIF A

2018 2017

20184 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBF T

Non-current assets EmENE E 16,385 11,885

Current assets mENEE 17,993 21,406

Current liabilities mENEaE (2,852) (3,751)

Net assets BEFE 31,526 29,540

Ownership interest (%) FT 8 #ERE 25 (%) 40 40

Share of net assets DI EEFE 12,610 11,816
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Notes to Financial Statements

MR M
Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31B IF/E

18. Investments in Associates (Continued) 18. REEE RN RINIRE (58)
(d) (Continued) d) (&)
Kunlun Suchuang Usage (Continued) EmEAIRA (&)
Kunlun Suchuang Usage distributed dividends MRE E2018F12A318 IEFE -
to its shareholders amounting to RMB287,000 Emar el F B E AR VR A
in the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: 2k A R #287,0007T (20174 :
RMB14,000). The Group’s share of the dividend AR ¥14,0007T) ° NEE 515 A%
distribution amounted to RMB115,000 (2017: Bk ANKR®115,0007T (2017
RMB6,000). F : AKR¥6,0007T) °
2018 2017
2018 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET ARETT

Revenue PN 64,617 48,291
Profit for the year F & A 2,273 319
Other comprehensive FEEAM D EUWE

income for the year - —

Total comprehensive FEEEKEER

income for the year 2,273 319
Ownership interest (%) B RERE 28 (%) 40 40
Share of results D5 EE 909 128
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18. Investments in Associates (Continued)

(d)

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12831HIEFE

18. REFE QR NRE (#)

(Continued) d) (&)

Zhongji Suchuang i E Al
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETIT
Non-current assets EREEE 241 26
Current assets mENEEE 128 977
Current liabilities mEEE (8) (3)
Net assets BESE 361 1,000
Ownership interest (%) FT e HERE 2R (%) 49 49
Share of net assets DEBEFE 177 490

Zhongji Suchuang distributed non-dividends to
its shareholders in the year ended 31 December

RNE ZE2018F12A318 IEFE -
FREEI R EBRRIELRED

2018. K e
2018
20185
RMB’000
ARMET T
Revenue WA -
Loss for the year FREEE (639)
Other comprehensive income for the year FEEMEE -
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRETHEEEESE (639)
Ownership interest (%) FiT B R 52(%) 49
Share of results DIRERE (313)

Zhongji Suchuang was invested by the Group in
November 2017 during its preparatory period, and

the company began operating in 2018.

F'ﬁ?x,éfqﬂ%%@%aﬂ
FlIRIE S o

KREBMR2017F11ARNEESEH
Z A AR20184F
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MR M
Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31B IF/E

18. Investments in Associates (Continued)

18. REFE QR NRE (#)

(d) (Continued) d) (&)
Dunhua Petroleum EEFab::
Fair Value on
2018 acquisition date
WekE B &
20184 WA FE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR¥T T
Non-current assets EMBEE 326,090 337,624
Current assets MENBEE 164,400 90,203
Current liabilities mEEE (121,980) (65,534)
Non-current liabilities EREEE (14,460) (18,820)
Net assets attributable to owners B A B EEFEE 354,050 343,473
Ownership interest (%) BT RERE LS (%) 9.16 9.16
Goodwill on acquisition U g T 2E A 2 16,538 16,538
Share of net assets DIEEEFE 48,969 48,000
From the
acquisition date to
31 December 2018
BWEBEHZE
2018%12A31H
RMB'000
AR¥T T
Revenue A 140,882
Profit for the period A% A 10,579
Other comprehensive HRAN L fth 2 E U B
income for the period -
Total comprehensive HA2Eb A
income for the period 10,579
Ownership interest (%) BB RERE 25 (%) 9.16
Share of results DIHEE 969

Dunhua Petroleum distributed no dividend to

its shareholders in the year ended 31 December

2018.
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18. Investments in Associates (Continued) 18. REE N BIIRE (&)
(d) (Continued) (d) (%)
Beijing Beilun tRitm

Fair Value on
2018 acquisition date

ks B A

20184 HWAFE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AR¥F T

Non-current assets IEMBNEE 46,195 41,795
Current assets mENEEE 96,801 58,789
Current liabilities mEaE (40,149) (35,134)
Non-current liabilities EREEE (30,000) -
Non-controlling interest FEFERR M 2R 33 128
Net assets attributable to owners #&G AJE(LE EFE 72,880 65,578
Ownership interest (%) T8 #EHE 25 (%) 20 20
Goodwill on acquisition R U FE N E LR 4,384 4,384
Share of net assets DIhEEFE 18,960 17,500
From the

acquisition date to
31 December 2018

BlEERE
20185%12A31H
RMB’000
ARBT T
Revenue WA 200,959
Profit for the period B A 7,301
Other comprehensive ER P B Ath 2 W e
income for the period -
Total comprehensive BN 2 E W A5
income for the period 7,301
Ownership interest (%) Fir B HEFE 22(%) 20
Share of results DIhERE 1,460
Beijing Beilun distributed no dividend to its RE 20185128318 [F F & -
shareholders in the year ended 31 December ItmidtmAmEREREELHEE D
2018. i e
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MR M
Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31B IF/E

19.

20.

Equity Investments At Fair Value Through
Profit Or Loss

19.

BAFEFABSENRARE
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

Listed equity investments,

EHBRAKRE - HAFER

at fair value 67,904 -

Other unlisted investments, HMIE EHRAEE
at fair value B AT AR 97,286 =
165,190 -

The above equity investments at 31 December 2018
were classified as equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss as the Group has not elected
to recognize the fair value gain or loss through other
comprehensive income.

Debt Instrument At Amortised Cost

The debt instrument at amortised cost at 31 December
2018 was a loan provided by Argus Holding to the third
party company, with a period from 17 August 2018 to
17 August 2020 and the interest rate of the loan was
fixed at 5%.
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21. Deferred Tax

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities

during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets

Notes to Financial Statements
B ISR
Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12A31BIEFE

21. IEFERL B

RER  BEREEEREBEEDD

I

ELEREEE

Loss available

Impairment of Accruals  for offsetting
Deferred  financial and and  against future
revenue  contract assets provisions  taxahle profits Total
TRERR
TRRAR EiER  REREER
EZWA BENE Rt MER #it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTE  ARMTR  ARERTR  AR%TR  ARET:R
Gross deferred tax assets at 1201761 A1 BRIERRRR
1 January 2017 BELH 27,574 858 2,594 - 31,026
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to ERA/(MBRA) Bih
profit or loss during the year ERLHE (Wit11)
(note 11) 2,945 170 (671) = 2,444
Gross deferred tax assets at R017512A318 R
31 December 2017 and 201851 A1AH)
1 January 2018 ERHERELR 30,519 1,028 1,923 - 33,470
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to ERGEA/(MKA) BER
profit or loss during the year EREHE (k1)
(note 11) 625 (226) 167 1,133 1,699
At31 December 2018 #2018%128318 31,144 802 2,090 1,133 35,169

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect

of the following:

WHER AN SIAERNREEFIAEE

2018 2017

20185 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTF T

Tax losses not recognised REERH IR B 35,338 47,368
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21. Deferred Tax (Continued)
Deferred tax assets (Continued)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that
have been loss-making and they are not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available in the
foreseeable future against which the tax losses can be

21 EEBE ()
ELERBEE (&)
HRZEBRREEEEENHE R
Al - RIAHR A B R R A AI e E £ FE AR
BomAE R IBEE - MU ERZEFE
BREARTEHBEE -

utilised.
Deferred tax liabilities ELEBIBERS
Fair value
adjustments
arising from
acquisition of
subsidiaries
U ES B E A B
FEEZ
DR EFE
RMB’000
AR®T
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 1 January 2017 2017F1 A1 BHIRLEFIE & EE%E 25,544
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss FRFABRNBELERE (FE11)
during the year (note 11) (956)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEH B A 1,759
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 31 December 2017 2017F12 A31 BRELET A& B85 26,347
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss FREFFABRAETHE (1)
during the year (note 11) (1,051)
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 31 December 2018 #2018 12 A31 ARELERIE A E4 % 25,296
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21.

PP

Deferred Tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax
rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group
is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

As at 31 December 2018, no deferred tax liabilities
have been recognised for withholding taxes that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of a subsidiary of the Group
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
directors, it is not probable that this subsidiary will
distribute earnings arising from 1 January 2008 to 31
December 2018 in the foreseeable future. The aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with the
investment in the subsidiary in Mainland China for
which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
totalled approximately RMB66.6 million as at 31
December 2018 (2017: RMB54.5 million).

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
BHZE2018F12831HIEFE

21 EEBE ()

EEMREEE (8)

RIEFR BB EMETE - KRB A
MEINEREREMBIMNEEEFEIR
MR BZBRM10%TEHT - BB TER
2008F1 A1 B AR - I i# A R2007
F12A31B Z2B&MAF - 4+ HELF
HMEE BB RIERER T BB EA - B
AREZAREHBEMNBE - AKEM
5 BERAMERI0N . Al KEE
BRZEN PR AR M B A RN
2008F1 A1 HBERIMEFFTE IR
BB BANTEIS -

M2018%F 128310 » W ERAEER
AR B A b K 37 & BT BB 8 ) FE A Y SR BE
BAFEENBENNBRECHIES
B EBEERRA  ZWHBRANA R AR
KA BE 9 k20084F1 A1H £20184F
12A31HHEAEF - B2018F12AH
318 @ BIEE R E R b B A R FE R
MEREEEEEERAOARKG6.6
BET (2017F : AR¥54588T)
MAERRELERIBEEE

Inventories 22. 78
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREFIT
Construction materials ERME 8,446 7,917
Natural gas KIRE, 2,176 1,018
10,622 8,935
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Notes to Financial Statements

MR M
Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31B IF/E

23. Amounts Due From Construction Contract

Customers

23. BB EREFFFIE

24

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREFTT
Arising from construction of BERRAAREEELENER

natural gas pipelines - 68,485

Trade Receivables 24, B E 5 IR
2018 2017
2018 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFTT
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BR K 80,273 74,652
Impairment BE (3,212) (4,114)
77,061 70,538

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit except for certain new customers where BIREE A NEERFELT
EEHE180B N - AEEHHRER
JE WK T 4 R BRRE BR AR
2RI EREER AR - Bk

payment in advance is required. The average trade
credit period ranges from within 180 days. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and overdue balances are reviewed

R
=

RIEERBRRERIE

regularly and actively monitored by senior management

to minimise credit risk.

Trade receivables are unsecured and non-interest-

bearing.
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Notes to Financial Statements

MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
BHZE2018F12831HIEFE

24. Trade Receivables (Continued) 24. BIWE 5 RA (&)
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the REZAHENGRBREERE - RFEXR
end of the year, based on the invoice date and net of MWW E ZERNVERE DT T

loss allowance, is as follows:

2018 2017
2018 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFTT
Within 90 days 90B A 68,904 61,622
91 days to 180 days 91HZ=180H 847 194
181 days to 360 days 181 HZE360H 2,087 853
Over 360 days #8:8360 H 5,223 7,869
77,061 70,538

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of FENE SEERARERGEEH M T -

trade receivables are as follows:

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
At beginning of year REH] 4,114 3,432
Impairment losses, net (note 7) B EEFRE (MI5E7) (902) 682
At end of year RER 3,212 4,114
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MR M
Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31B IF/E

24. Trade Receivables (Continued)

24 EWE SR (&)

Impairment under IFRS 9 for the year ended 31
December 2018

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected
credit losses. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer with similar
loss patterns (i.e., by sales type, customer type and
rating). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and

forecasts of future economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk

exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a

B 22018512 H31H 1 F E R 1% B
BB 7 3R 2 R 5 9% Rt 1B

AEERSHRE B EF BB ERET
BEDHT - UErETEEERIE - BE
ENERZEAEREUEBEEEANER
DEAER (BMREEEE  EPE R
) MBEIREETE - ZATEHER
et = piiE SR - EEREEN KRR
LRHMASERBEEN  BRIKER
R BEAGHTEANEE R A BB R

TXHIIAEE N BEEREES AR
WE ZEFNEERRER

provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2018

7A2018%F12H31H

Past due
Less than 1to2 Over

Current 1 year years 3 years Total

Bl PME 1825 3ENE st

Expected credit loss rate  BHIEEEEE 0.1%-0.2%  1.0%-6.0% 2.4%-13.3% 12.3%-47.6%  4.0%-15.7%

Gross carrying amount  #AERMEE

(RMB’000) (AR®TT) 69,905 2,107 2,208 6,053 80,273
Expected credit losses EHEERR

(RMB'000) (ARBTT) 154 123 251 2,684 3,212
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24. Trade Receivables (Continued)

Impairment under IAS 39 for the year ended 31
December 2017

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at
31 December 2017 that were not individually nor
collectively considered to be impaired under IAS 39 is
as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
BHZE2018F12831HIEFE

24 EWE SR (&)

B 22017 12H31H 1F F E R % E
B e 2E R E 3945 Rt 1E
HZE2017F128318 RERE €t
HERIFE395 W A RIS BB EWRAR
BENERE SERNERESTOT

2017

20174

RMB’000

AREBFT

Neither past due nor impaired I 8 R SR E 49,618
Less than 90 days past due BH L P90H 13,051
Over 90 days past due #ERO0H A £ 7,869
70,538

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a large number of diversified customers for

whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to a number of independent customers that had a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company were of the opinion
that no provision for impairment under IAS 39 was
necessary in respect of these balances as there had
not been a significant change in credit quality and the

balances were still considered fully recoverable.

b 48 760 5 28R (B #O B Wk TR B K B 1
TEEDCENDBEFBR

£ 280 8B RO (B /) FE W sk IR B2 35+ SR
SERAARUTFEXDCHNBELEP
B - REBERLR  ARFAEER
7 BAREEER S ERE399 %
EFRHARRERE  RAREEEER
WENRERNES - AZFERIDKR
AREZE -
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25. Contract Assets

25. BEEE

31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
20185 20184 20174
12A31H TH1B 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARET T AR®ET T

Contract assets arising from: BREENRE

Construction and connection B kEAMREE

of gas pipelines 34,129 50,853 -
Impairment BAE - = =
34,129 50,853 =

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue
earned from the construction and connection
services as the receipt of consideration is conditional
on successful completion of construction. Upon
completion of construction and acceptance by the
customer, the amounts recognised as contract assets
are reclassified to trade receivables. The decrease in
contract assets in 2018 was the result of the decrease in
the provision of construction and connection services

at the end of the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no
allowance for expected credit losses on contract assets
was recognised. The Group’s trading terms and credit
policy with customers are disclosed in note 24 to the
financial statements.
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25. Contract Assets (Continued)

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for
contract assets as at 31 December 2018 is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
BHZE2018F12831HIEFE

25. BREE (&)

R20184F12A31H - & REEMN TR
el R AAEERMT

RMB’000
AR® TR

—FRN

Within one year

34,129

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected
credit losses. The provision rates for the measurement
of the expected credit losses of the contract assets
are based on those of the trade receivables as the
contract assets and the trade receivables are from the
same customer bases. The provision rates of contract
assets are based on days past due of trade receivables
for groupings of various customer with similar loss
patterns (i.e., by sales type, customer type and rating.)
The expected credit loss rate for contract assets is
assessed to be 0.1% to 0.2%. The calculation reflects
the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of
money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions. Based on evaluations on expected credit
loss rate and the gross carrying amount of the balances,
the directors are of the opinion that the ECL in respect

of these balances is considered immaterial.

RNEBMN SRS BEF B R EEEET
WA - U EEHEEEBE -T2
EREEEHEEBENRBRENE
WEZERNEEREE  AaREENRE
WESGEFREERNEFEE - &R
BEMBEBERDERAFGEUEBEBER
MZERTFE S BAERINEKRE SRS
HEegET EERR  BERFEIR
HE)  c EREERHEEBEBXRTG
70.1%%20.2% ° Zst B ARBRHEE
EER  EBRREENERRE RS
ABEBBATEN - BATEH RARRL
EIREEANAGEREBEIEER -
EREEHREEBEEERREHRNERR
BM2ih  EERE  ZESEHOEH
EEBBITEK -
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26. Prepayments, Other Receivables And Other

26. EIRIE - HtEWRER HAMA

Assets BE
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Prepayments TE N FRIE 56,613 26,773
Deposits b 37,168 15,452
Other receivables H fth pE U Fh18 11,168 15,282
Prepayments for the acquisition Wi B Az 4 B0 TR SR IR 1,200 1,200
106,149 58,707
Impairment allowance VRIsRE - -
106,149 58,707

Classified as: DA

Current pinEa)] 96,316 54,085
Non-current IERH 9,833 4,622
106,149 58,707
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26. Prepayments, Other Receivables And Other

Assets (Continued)

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental
deposits and deposits with suppliers. An impairment
analysis is performed at each reporting date, expected
credit losses are estimated by applying a loss rate
approach with reference to the historical loss record
of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate. The loss rate applied as at
31 December 2018 was 0.1%. Based on evaluations on
expected credit loss rate and the gross carrying amount
of the balances, the directors of the company are of
the opinion that the expected credit losses in respect of
these balances is considered immaterial.

Prepayments, other receivables and other assets are
unsecured, non-interest-bearing and have no fixed

terms of repayment.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances
relate to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default.

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
BHZE2018F12831HIEFE

26. EIRIE - HtEWRER HAMA

&= (/)
ReREMBWREFTZERERER
HERZES - AEBLL2ERTEBRL
SR FEBRFERBAREE SRS BHD
B EBEEBEELRES T - 8K
KR EE R RE D A RIS
L N FEORI R R ACE B S o 72018412
ABTBEMEREBERER01% EHRNH
EHEEEBEREHRNETDRE T
it ARRIEERA  REHEBRNTER
EEBEBIETERX -

BNFIE - Bt RIEREBEES

BT 2R NEBEEERY -

P BEEMERRIRE - EFT A LA
RERRE) & B A A BT A SR WO RCEREY
FEMRIRA R -
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27. Balances With Related Parties

28.

27. EARAE H VAR

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREBFT
Amounts due from other FE W H B 75 RUE
related parties
Kunlun Suchuang Gas EmEalfiE 94 2,622
Kunlun Suchuang Usage B m & el F A 1,241 1,110
Beijing Beilun it m 30,243 -
Suzhou Suling Automobile BRINERZE T E RS
Service 1,166 661
32,744 4,393
Amounts due to other &4 H At B 5 7RIR
related parties
Taicang Suchuang Property AEHAEHERZEBRAR
Development Co., Ltd. 445 445
Beijing Beilun Erdb s 12,500 -
12,945 445

Financial Assets At Fair Value Through Profit

28. B AP EFAEBENERMEE

Or Loss

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREBTIT
Unlisted investments, at fair value &K FTiXE&E @ AT ERT 100,000 —

Available-for-sale financial assets TFAItHELREE
Unlisted investments, at fair value K EH#ERE @ I8AF(ET - 44,690

The above unlisted investments were wealth

management products issued by banks in Mainland

China. As at 31 December 2018, they were mandatorily

classified as financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss as their contractual cash flows are not solely

payments of principal and interest.
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29. Cash And Cash Equivalents And Pledged

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
BHZE2018F12831HIEFE

29. RERAECEEYREERAERK

Deposits
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Cash and bank balances RE RIRITES 413,374 636,991
Less: Pledged short-term deposits  J& : 2 K348 EifF 3% - 67,000
Cash and cash equivalents HeMIREEEY 413,374 569,991
Denominated in RMB UARKE 351,291 385,957
Denominated in USD AZETTEHE 34,320 144,478
Denominated in HK$ LA TTEHE 27,763 39,556
413,374 569,991

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances and
pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts
of the cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits
approximate to their fair values.

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

RITR S ARTERNXRIULE)
ME - RITEBRREEREFHRIFRE
BRIFEZBOHIYEENTEAR
TR LREFEYREERFRT
FREEEE QN FERE

BEARBETHEEALA/EMBEY -
A - RIR B A COMNE B IR R BID
KMAHE  BEERNEEERE) A%
B B R R S IME RSV IRTT
BARBR AR ME -
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30. Trade Payables 30. B E SR

2018 2017

20184 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

Trade payables JET 8 5 BRK 64,008 50,107
An aging analysis of the outstanding trade payables as RBRERH NERNEEESENES

at the end of the year, based on the invoice date, is as BESHNBR RS AT IO T ¢

follows:

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
Within 90 days 90H 54,272 2,580
91 to 180 days 91HZ180H 1,128 35,285
181 to 365 days 181HZ365H 788 7,795
1 to 2 years 162246 7,188 799
Over 2 years 2FAE 632 3,648
64,008 50,107

Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are ENZBIERAETTE - —RERN80

normally settled within 180 days. HAEE °
31. Other Payables And Accruals 31. HhEN B R ESTE A

2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR¥ETT
Payroll and welfare payables ENH L RET 5,813 5,087
Accruals EstER 1,738 1,383
Other tax payables H b SR8 13,610 9,312
Other payables H b e 3118 20,603 19,318
41,764 35,100

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an HihENZIBE AT L - ¥ aH3{E

average term of three months.
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32. Contract Liabilities
Details of contract liabilities as at 31 December 2018

are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12831HIEFE

32. EEE

HZE2018F12A31B 6 RAEBEZFHIB

mF :

31 December 1 January
2018 2018
2018 20184
12A31H 1H1H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Short-term advances received V-l =) o]
from customers
Construction services EERTE 48,475 38,924
Sale of natural gas HERAR 82,334 85,093
Connection fees BAB 19,631 19,322
150,440 143,339
Long-term advances received RAITEINE F 508
from customers
Connection fees BAB 89,970 87,396
240,410 230,735

Contract liabilities include advances received from
customers to deliver construction services, sales
of natural gas and connections fees. The increase
in contract liabilities in 2018 was mainly due to
the increase in short-term advances received from
customers in relation to the provision of construction

services at the end of the year.

ERABRREARFIREEERG T8
WK - RARBEREAER 20184
ERBEEMZ T ERARFRARF
TR S R A% < 2 B TR M N -
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33. Deferred Revenue 33. IEZEW A
Government Connection
grants fees Total
B RG BEAE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREFTT AREFTT
At 1 January 2017 7201741818 16,239 94,056 110,295
Additions during the year FRRE - 31,503 31,503
Released to profit or loss BARBRR (882) (18,841) (19,723)
At 31 December 2017 and M2017F12A31B K
1 January 2018 201841 A1H 15,357 106,718 122,075
Reclassified to contract R4 BB B i s o5 ZE Al
liabilities under IFRS 15 BISREHRAEE
INEEL - (106,718) (106,718)
Additions during the year FARE 515 - 515
Released to profit or loss BABRR (896) = (896)
At 31 December 2018 F2018%12A318 14,976 - 14,976
Analysed into: BUTRIEDN :
Current mE) 882 = 882
Non-current JERH 14,094 = 14,094
14,976 - 14,976

Asset related government grants are recognised over

the expected useful lives of those gas pipeline assets of

twenty years.
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34. Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12831HIEFE

2018 2017
2018% 2017F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity ~ RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity ~ RMB'000
BERB= ERHE
(%) I8 AR%TR (%) HE ARSTR
Current k]
Bank loans - unsecured RITER - BER 5.22-8.22 2019 30,000 - - -
Bank loans — secured BIET - BEA0 - - - 435 2018 30,000
Current portion of long term  REIRTEF 2
bank loans - secured © BRI — BiEHEe 5.39 2019 50,000 5.39 2018 10,000
80,000 40,000
Non-current FEEH
Bank loans - unsecured RITE - BER 6.08 2021-2023 25,000 - - -
4.29% HK$60,500,000 60,500,000 7T(4.29%)  HIBOR*
unsecured bank loan EERRITES +2.00  2020-2021 53,010 - - -
Bank loans - secured @ RITER — AHEH - - - 5.39 2019 50,000
78,010 50,000
158,010 90,000

* The interest rate refers to Hongkong InterBank Offered

Rate.
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HZE2018FE12A31B ILFE

34. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS  34. sT BRBRITERK (&)
(CONTINUED)
2018 2017
2018 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTIT
Analysed into: BRIATEBESN
Bank loans and overdrafts repayable: EEERITEREES
Within one year or on demand —FRFIRER 80,000 40,000
In the second year FF 26,505 50,000
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F=ZEZFRF
(BEEERT) 51,505 -
158,010 90,000
Notes: Bt
The Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings are secured by REB ) F BRITERTI AR FE REREE 40
the pledges of the following assets with carrying values at the TRIRE)A T & E (R
end of the year as follows:
2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 55 ARBTT ARETTT
Pledge of assets: BHREE :
Pledged deposits BIRIRER (1) - 67,000
Prepaid land lease payments At L EFIB ) 4,126 4,223
Property, plant and equipment VI - BE MR (2) 117,784 120,893
121,910 192,116

The interest-bearing bank loan amounting to
RMB30,000,000 in 2017 was secured by Group’s pledged
deposits. The interest-bearing bank loan was repaid in
2018.

(1)

2017FWEr EHRITERARKE
30,000,000 A B & 2 EIFF
RAEIIF - 5T BIRITE R E H20184
B -

(2) The Group borrowed a long-term loan from Bank of (2) AEER2014FmFERITEARDS
China in 2014, as at 31 December 2018, the balance B R2018%F12H31H @ ER&E &R
of the loan was RMB50,000,000, which will be repaid A A R ¥50,000,0007T © #55120194F
in 2019. The loan was jointly secured by the Group’s BE  SEEERHASENHTERN LIHE
prepaid land lease payments and property, plant and ERBEURME  BERZELRE
equipment. R o

(3) Except for the 4.29% unsecured bank loan which is (3) BR4.29%HEIEPIRITEF B ITEHE

denominated in HK$, all borrowings are in RMB.
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35. Issued Capital

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12831HIEFE

35. BERITRA

Shares avi)
Nominal
Number of value of Nominal
Notes shares  HK$0.01 each value RMB
BREE HiE
(i LG 0.0187T ARH
Authorised: ZE
At 31 December 2017 and 72017412318 K&
31 December 2018 2018124318 5,000,000,000 50,000,000 39,378,500
Nominal
Number of value of Nominal
shares  HK$0.01 each value RMB
BREE =
RH# A 0.01/87T ARE
Issued and fully paid: BETRAE
At 1 January 2017 R20178F1 818 862,924,000 8,629,240 6,857,722
Issue of new shares BITHIR (i) 40,000,000 400,000 356,044
At 31 December 2017 and m2017F12A318 K%
31 December 2018 2018%12A31H 902,924,000 9,029,240 7,213,766
Note: PiiEE

On 10 March 2017, the Company completed the placing
of 40,000,000 shares at the placing price of HK$2.20 per
share for a total cash consideration, after deducting expenses
related to issue of shares, of HK$86,156,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB76,689,000).

R2017F3 8108 » KA IR A S B TR
192.207%8 7T 58 X Bt £40,000,0000% f% 17 -
RSN E (RMNBETRMDOMBERX
%) 586,156,000/ ;L (HE R H AR
76,689,0007T) °
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HZE2018FE12A31B ILFE

36. & &

36. Reserves

252

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the year are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Merger reserve
The merger reserve represents those reserve arose from
the reorganisation for the purpose of listing. Details of

AEBRFANRESEREZH TN
mAEEDREHRANZY -

Aot
A BRI R L B TR T EAME
ERRE G - AHHBHRDFER

the movements in the merger reserve are set out in the JIRNtR AR EHR
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Statutory reserve fund EERBE

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations
applicable to wholly-foreign-owned companies, certain
entities within the Group are required to allocate a
certain portion (not less than 10%), as determined
by their boards of directors, of their profit after tax in
accordance with PRC GAAP to the statutory reserve
fund (the “SRF”) until such reserve reaches 50% of the

registered capital.

The SRF is non-distributable other than in the event of
liquidation and, subject to certain restrictions set out
in the relevant PRC regulations, can be used to offset

accumulated losses or be capitalised as issued capital.

In accordance with relevant regulations and the articles
of association, a subsidiary registered in the PRC as a
domestic company is required to appropriate 10% of
its net profit (after offsetting accumulated losses from
prior years) to the statutory surplus reserve. After the
balance of such reserve reaches 50% of the entity’s
capital, any further appropriation is at the discretion
of the company. The statutory surplus reserve can be
utilised to offset accumulated losses or increase capital.
However, the balance of the statutory surplus reserve
must be maintained at a minimum of 25% of the capital
after such usages.
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36.

37.

Reserves (Continued)

Capital reserve

Capital reserve pertains to the benefit derived by the
Group from receiving related party loans with interest
rates below the market rate.

Distributable reserve

For dividend purposes, the amounts which the PRC
companies can legally distribute by way of a dividend
are determined by reference to the distributable profits
as reflected in their PRC statutory financial statements
which are prepared in accordance with PRC GAAP.
These profits differ from those that are reflected in this
report which is prepared in accordance with IFRSs.

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC,
profits after tax of the PRC companies can be
distributed as dividends after the appropriation to the

SRF as set out above.

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
of the Scheme include the directors, other employees
of the Group, consultants and advisers of the Group.
The Scheme became effective on 11 March 2015 and
the scheme mandate limited was refreshed on 12
September 2017 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that 11
March 2015 date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme
is an amount equivalent to, upon their exercise, 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue. Any further grant of share options in excess
of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a

general meeting.

36.

37.

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
BHZE2018F12831HIEFE

e (&)
RN
BT EAKBIZIER TS X
MEMB—FE@ESERMELHF

S o

B

AR IR R

B ME - PREAQF A QEARET
ANEKNEBEI2ERBIERRER
JR RV B ) R BEDA TE B 7% ik AT R BR Y
A RE M MEE o %55 A R
B % B 765 ¥R 5 22 R P s B ) AN ¥R 5 P R
B8 A T AER]

RBEFBERBE - FERARWRB RS
MER EXFrii s R EEERBEDIR
AERIREDIK °

iR ST 2
ARArEE—TBERESS ([ZE
g2l BERAREEER ZKIEL
Rl B BB HERERE LR -
ZAE A ER2NERREES A5H
HiES  AEEEMKFBHAAR - Z
sHEIE2015F3 A11 B R AR BT &I
TEBR BB 2017912 B E 57 » BRIEW
BUBSEE] - BRIKH2015F3A11H
RET10FEARFTER o

BAIREZETE AR E 2 HARTTRE
PR ARE  — &7 RAIEERA
RBIEBITZARRIRND10% ° RIER
128 A AR - RIFZBRERASEAE
RESEEN THITHRSRODBENER
AR BTN 21% AR - RO B8t
BR il 22 1 fr] EL A s AU 15 7R IR R O B
RAE L#tE -
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37. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 37. BRETE (&)

254

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of
the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of
HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject
to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general

meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, which should
not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the

relevant share options.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by
the directors, but may not be less than the highest of
(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant of such option; (ii) the average closing prices of
the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the
Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant of such option; and (iii) the
nominal value of the share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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37. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 37. BRETE (&)
The following share options were outstanding under the FRRIERZET & H ARTT 6 2 BB AR 4
Scheme during the year: N
2018 2017
2018% 20174
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise of exercise of
price options price options
hn#EF g BERE  EFH R
TEE £ 1TEE 2R
HK$ HK$
per share 000 per share 000
FRET FH  BEET Tn
At 1 January ®W1A1H 2.422 95,000 2.000 20,000
Granted during the year REABERD 2.422 - 2.535 75,000
At 31 December ®W128318 2.422 95,000 2.422 95,000
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share R|EHREARITEBRENTEER
options outstanding as at the end of the reporting TR T ¢

period are as follows:

Number of options Granted date Exercise price Exercise period
BREHAR i A A TEE TEHE
000 HK$ per share
F1n BRATT
2-28-17 to 1-28-24
20,000 1-29-16 2.000 17962 H28HZE 2441 H28H
2-28-18 to 1-23-25
20,000 1-24-17 2.280 1842 H28BE25%1H23H
5-24-18 to 5-24-21
40,000 5-25-17 2.466 185248 E2165H24H
10-24-18 to 10-24-25
15,000 10-25-17 3.060 18%F10H24B=E25%F10H24H
95,000
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37. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 37. BRAETE (&)

256

The fair value of the share options granted during
previous year was in total HK$80,201,000 (HK$0.55-
HK$1.18 each), of which the Group recognised a
share option expense of HK$26,689,309 (equivalent
to approximately RMB22,590,000) (2017:
RMB19,828,000) during the year ended 31 December
2018.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
during previous years was estimated as at the date
of grant using the Black-Scholes model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. The following table lists the
inputs to the model used:

RBEFERLBREZATEELE
80,201,000/% 7t (& %0.5585 7T £1.18
BL)  HEAREEREZE2018F12H
31H IEFEREREBRRER 26,689,309
BT (FBE R4 A R22 590,000 )
(2017%F : AR#19,828,0007T) ©

EFEN RS GEENBREN A FERER
HAHERRER R — FRAHREER
AFHE - BB RBRER LA RR K
ﬁﬁ o NRINLFERATANBAE

Share price (HK$ per share) 2.00-3.06
AR & (FRRET)

Exercise price (HK$ per share) 2.00-3.06
TEE (BRBT)

Dividend yield (%) 1.07-1.46
AR 5 (%)

Volatility (%) 33.28-39.49
R BN (%)

Risk-free interest rate (%) 1.47-2.27

A 2 B M 2K (%)
Exercise multiple

TSR

No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

At the end of reporting period, the Company had
95,000,000 share options outstanding under the
Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 95,000,000 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional issued
capital of HK$950,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB832,000) and share premium of HK$229,870,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB201,412,000) (before
issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 95,000,000 share options outstanding
under the Scheme, which represented approximately
10.5% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date.
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38. RERTREBERME

Cash Flows
Changes in liabilities arising from financing RMEETHEENAENED
activities
2018
2018%
Bank borrowings
RITER
RMB’000
ARBT T
At 1 January 2018 M20185F1H18 90,000
Changes from financing cash flows MERTRENE 68,010
At 31 December 2018 2018512 H31H 158,010

2017

20174
Bank borrowings
RITER
RMB’000
ARBTTT
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1B1H 95,780
Changes from financing cash flows MER S REMNE (5,780)
At 31 December 2017 M2017F12 A31H 90,000
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39. Operating Lease Arrangements

(a) As lessor

The Group leases certain parts of its buildings

under operating lease arrangements, with leases

negotiated for terms ranging from two to seven

years. The terms of the leases generally also

require the tenants to pay security deposits and

provide for periodic rent adjustments according to

the then prevailing market conditions.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future

minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable

operating leases with its tenants falling due as

follows:

39. KEHELH
(@) fEBHBA

AEERBEEHELZHEERE
FOETHG  HEEAHA_E=+
FAE - HERK—RIMEREPS
SNREE RRIBERTRELE
HH S HE -

AREERFEEEAFFT AR AT
LT ER2018F12A8318 7|
BiRY R R e W (R E R B A58 0
B

2018 2017

2018 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARETTT

Within one year —F R 3,459 3,412
In the second to fifth years, E_EFERF

inclusive (BIEEREMSE) 5,504 7,330

After five years HFEE 1,349 2,004

10,312 12,746
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39. Operating Lease Arrangements (Continued)
(b) As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties
and motor vehicles under operating lease
arrangements, with negotiated terms ranging from
two to three years.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases falling due as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
BHZE2018F12831HIEFE

39. KEMERH (&)
(b) EREBA

AEBRBELEEHETHHERESR
THAEWMERAE - HEHHAH

AEERETARELCEHER
201812 H31H B HI /) K 2R & (K
HEMFBERELNT

2018 2017

20184 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AR¥ET T

Within one year —FR 1,968 1,736
In the second to third years, F_RE=LF

inclusive (BHEEEWE) 213 307

2,181 2,043

40. Capital Commitments

The Group had the following capital commitments at
the end of the year:

40. EAKIE

RER » REBWBEARAFELT

2018 2017
20185 201745
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
Contracted, but not provided for: B ETHIMEAR B -
Property, plant and equipment ERN e 24,916 6,379
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41. Related Party Transactions
(a) Name and relationship

41.BERRS

(a) BRWREF

Name of related party

RES BB

Relationship with the Group
SR EERAE

Kunlun Suchuang Gas
EmEaImR

Kunlun Suchuang Usage
FEma a7 A

Beijing Beilun
st

Suchuang Group

i

3 -ES

Taicang Suchuang Dangerous Goods Transportation
Co., Ltd. (“Dangerous Goods Transportation”)
AegalehmERARAR ([BhmEH )

Suzhou Suling Automobile Service
FRN R 2 T R TS
Taicang Suchuang Property Development Co., Ltd.

(“Suchuang Property”)
AR#HEIFHERZEERAR ([#HEIFHE])
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Associate

NS

Associate

NS

Associate

NS

Company controlled by certain directors

of the Company
ARAETESEHH QA

Company controlled by certain directors

of the Company
ARBETEFZFNAR

Company controlled by certain directors

of the Company
ARRETEFEHH QA

Company controlled by certain directors

of the Company
ARRETEFZFNAR



Notes to Financial Statements

MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12831HIEFE

41. Related Party Transactions (Continued) 4. BELIRS (&)
(b) Apart from the transactions and balances disclosed (b) RFEA - BrREFFERET E 2R FT i
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group BRI 5 N EEERIN - ANE B B3
had the following material transactions with THERZSWT

related parties during the year:

2018 2017

20185 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iz AR®TR ARETR

Associates: BERT

Transmission and sale of natural gas to BREREEXAT T

Kunlun Suchuang Gas BEREelInA (i) 12,064 12,641

Kunlun Suchuang Usage Em&aITIm (i) 31,056 17,839
43,120 30,480

Purchase of natural gas from BUTRaFEXAR

Kunlun Suchuang Gas BEm#relia (i) 6,016 20,994

Rental income from KEL T2 a8 2 HA

Kunlun Suchuang Gas Em#eliR (ii) 568 642

Kunlun Suchuang Usage B m# el (ii) 448 549

1,016 1,191

Sale of fixed assets to HEEFEEET

Kunlun Suchuang Gas Em#aliR (iii)/(vii) - 10,932

Loans to EHT

Beijing Beilun tritm (viii) 30,000 -

Loans interest from KEMU T REIBEHFIE

Beijing Beilun brdtm (viii) 243 -

Others: Hith :

Rental income from KEL T2 a]##H 2 HA

Suchuang Group YIS (i) 330 330

Purchase of goods from B U TR a] 4 Bn

Suzhou Suling Automobile Service FNEE TR (iv) 680 605

Sale of natural gas to I TR RIS EX AR

Suzhou Suling Automobile Service FNEZE T E R (i) 2,057 -

Purchase of properties from BU TR aIFREYF

Suchuang Property #ElE M E (V)/(vii) - DA

Motor vehicle rental service provided by B T2\ Alfet TE I E/RFE

Dangerous Goods Transportation ERmEh (vi) 560 556
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41. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b) Apart from the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group
had the following material transactions with
related parties during the year: (Continued)

Notes:

(i) The above transactions were conducted in
accordance with the terms and conditions mutually
agreed by both parties.

(i) Rental income represents considerations received
for the rental of office premises to the Group’s
associates and fellow subsidiary. The directors
confirmed that the annual rentals payable under the
relevant rent agreements had been agreed by all
parties.

(iii) The Group entered into an agreement with Kunlun
Suchuang Gas to transfer certain fixed assets of 7
natural gas pipelines in total located in Taicang in
2017. The consideration was determined and agreed
by the two parties by reference to the market value.
There was no such transaction in this year.

(iv) The Directors considered that motor vehicle fuels
are provided by Suzhou Suling Automobile Service
on normal commercial terms.

(v) The Group entered into an agreement with
Suchuang Property to purchase certain properties
located in Taicang. The consideration was
determined and agreed by the two parties by
reference to the market value.

(vi) The Group entered into agreements with Dangerous
Goods Transportation to rent certain motor vehicles.
The directors confirmed that the annual rentals
payable under the relevant agreements had been
agreed by both parties.

(vii) The directors confirmed that these related party
transactions were one-off transactions and have
been terminated already.

(viii) The Group entered into a loan contract with Beijing
Beilun amounting to RMB30,000,000 with interest
rate of 6.5% per year. The maturity date is 31
December 2019.
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ERBEEEFIRETEREL -

(v) AEEEGEFMWER L7
BABEMNRARHNETHE -
REDHEL K2 ETERET
R IWHRE °

(vip AEEEERMEH]LHES
TRENGE - ESEAMEEH
ZRNENFERSTIEET W

E °

(vii) EERREETRXH R —RER
ZFRBERIE -

(vii) AEBEE R VBN A
AR ¥30,000,00tERKER -
FFEE65% aREHAEA
2019 12H31H °



41. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Outstanding balances with related parties:
Details of the Group’s balances with other related
parties at the end of the year are disclosed in note
27 to the financial statements.

Compensation of key management personnel
of the Group

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
BHZE2018F12831HIEFE

4. BEFRS (&)

(c)

BERAEL R EEARR
R ER B B HL At BB 5 I F R A R Y
HIE BRI RARME27

(d) AEENEEZEEE ASHHRMH

2018 2017

2018%F 201745

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTTT

Basic salaries and other benefits EXH & REMER] 5,490 6,647

Pension scheme contributions RIKSEEIHR 64 59

Equity-settled share option expenses  LA%Ezx 45 & A BB AR 7 2 679 1,081
Total compensation paid to key ENEEEEEAR

management personnel B 2 Bl 40 =R 6,233 7,787

Further details of directors’” emoluments are

included in note 9 to the financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items
(b)(ii), (b)(iv), and (b)(vi) above also constitute
continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, which are
exempted from the disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As Kunlun
Suchuang Gas and Kunlun Suchuang Usage are not
connected entities according to the Listing Rules,
the related party transactions in respect of items
(b)(i), (b)(ii) and b(iii) do not constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

BERESHFMNF B HIIR T
A9 °

£ X(b)(ii) + (b)(iv) K (b)(vi)IR ) 8
BHRSIER EHHRBE14AE
RENFEBER S  HEHRE
ST EMRAFI4ATH THORER
E o REBEBLETRA - EREHEIMR
KEmERAIN AL IR EE R
It (b)(i) ~ (b)(ii) K2 (b)(iii) IR Y 22
FRDIERLETRAUEI4AER
ENFERERS °

o
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42. Financial Instruments By Category 42. BEHETNEMTE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of FeMITAERRINHRE R REEN
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting N

period are as follows:

2018 20185

Financial assets EMEE

Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

EAVEG ARENEREE

Designated Financial
as such assets at
upon initial Held for amortised
recognition trading cost Total
R REHAAR
EEALER BEEE JIRNEREE H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTR ARETR ARETR
Equity investments at fair value BN FEE AR
through profit or loss RAZE 165,190 = - 165,190
Debt instrument at amortised cost REERAGTENERIA - - 13,726 13,726
Trade receivables EUE HER = = 77,061 77,061
Financial assets included in STARNFA - EfoEUGE
prepayments, other receivables REMEENSREE
and other assets - - 11,168 11,168
Amounts due from other related parties  [EWCE A1 BE 7 708 - - 32,744 32,744
Financial assets at fair value BATE ABRA
through profit or loss TREE - 100,000 - 100,000
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEEEY = = 413,374 413,374
165,190 100,000 548,073 813,263
Financial liabilities tREesE
Financial liabilities
measured at
amortised cost
REBHRATTE
Hema s
RMB’000
AR¥ET T
Trade payables JERTE R 64,008
Financial liabilities included in ST AE At T FIA &
other payables and accruals EAERNESRAE 20,603
Amounts due to other related parties P A1 5L fth B 38 75 KR 12,945
Interest-bearing bank borrowings HBERITER
(including current and non-current portions) (B 35BN EA K2 JEBNEFEE 25 ) 158,010
255,566
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(Continued)

42. Financial Instruments By Category 42.

The table below is an analysis of the carrying amounts

of financial instruments by category as at the end of the

year: (Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
BHZE2018F12831HIEFE

rERESHNERTH (&B)

TRINFERZERE DN EBRTADN
FREEDH - (&)

2017 20174
Financial assets TREE
Available-for-
Loans and  sale financial
receivables assets Total
Exk A E
e W 308 CREE FE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT ARETT
Trade and bills receivables JEWE SR R = 70,538 - 70,538
Financial assets included in ST ATER SRR
prepayments, other receivables H fth R U 5RIE Je
and other assets HWEENEREE 15,282 = 15,282
Amounts due from FE WL At A 3E 77 5B
other related parties 4,393 = 4,393
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESREE - 44,690 44,690
Pledged deposit [REEREHECE A 67,000 - 67,000
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIBELEEY 569,991 = 569,991
727,204 44,690 771,894
Financial liabilities cEas
Financial liabilities
measured at
amortised cost
R SHK ARG 2
et B E
RMB’000
ARET T
Trade payables JERTE SRR 50,107
Financial liabilities included in T AE AT FIA K&
other payables and accruals EAERANERARE 19,319
Amounts due to other related parties JFE 1< EL 4th B8 38 5 FRIE 445
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTRERITER
(including current and non-current portions) (B ¥EBNEA N FERNEA R 53 ) 90,000
159,871
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43. Fair Value And Fair Value Hierarchy Of 43. EMIT AR FERAFEER
Financial Instruments
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's AEBERITAZREERATE (R
financial instruments, other than those with carrying HEEEAFESERE 2RI ARK
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are SN EHNET ¢
as follows:
Carrying amounts Fair values
REE DVE
2018 2017 2018 2017
20185 20176 20185 20176
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR

Financial assets TREE
Equity investments BATEFA

at fair value through profit or loss BarnBRARE 165,190 - 165,190 -
Debt instruments at amortised cost RBHNATIRNEBIA 13,726 = 13,710 -
Financial assets BATESABER

at fair value through profit or loss TREE 100,000 - 100,000 -
Available-for-sale financial assets EHESREE - 44,690 - 44,690

278,916 44,690 278,900 44,690

Financial liabilities SREE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTRIRITER

(non-current portion) (GENEIES) 78,010 50,000 77,481 49,974
Management has assessed that the fair values of SB[ R2018F12 8318 - B4
cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade RIE4A=EY  DIEEES  BEKE S
receivables, amounts due from other related parties, BEZ - EWEMEESZIE  ENES
trade payables, amounts due to other related parties, R . ENHAMREESZIE - S AFER
financial assets included in prepayments, other H1E - B ENSIE R B EEN SR
receivables and other assets and financial liabilities BE -HFAEMENZELESERNY
included in other payables and accruals approximate SRAENATLEELERMEMEE =
to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term EhRZET ERNEERNT|E -

maturities of these instruments as at 31 December
2018.
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43. Fair Value And Fair Value Hierarchy Of

Financial Instruments (Continued)

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance manager reports directly to the
chief financial officer and the audit committee. At each
reporting date, the finance department analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.
The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief
financial officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of debt instruments at amortised cost
and the non-current portion of interest-bearing bank
borrowings have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s own
non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank
borrowings as at 31 December 2018 was assessed to be
insignificant.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on
quoted market prices. The fair value of unlisted equity
investments was determined by reference to the latest
market price of transactions.

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which
represent wealth management products issued by
banks in Mainland China. The Group has estimated
the fair value of these unlisted investments by using
a discounted cash flow valuation model based on the
market interest rates of instruments with similar terms

and risks.

Notes to Financial Statements
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43. TRTEAFERAFEER

(%)
AEBUEHFIRPBELERE B E
BErem T AR VFEFENBERNME
Fr o SR FIE R MM AR MERZE
BegweE NERERY - MBI
eI ANBEEHYEEHETE
AONEZHASE - (AEHMBEESE
AL -

TREERABNAFEAZIARE
BRXZTENRXS THARZEEA
B MIFRESBERIFE - BEFTHER
FEKERA TIAERRR :

RS AT BRI ER T A RET BIRTT
EROIENADH A FEBRBRAK
FEERBREFGIHAEENIA
IR E A AR EFFEERIKFERE
B AR EHE - B2018F128318 » K
EEAGNFBRITEEENRERTTE
BIWTERK -

EHRAIRE 2 A FEERTIHRE -
FLETBRARE Z R FETIEZE&H

RHMGERMETE

ARERE NI ETRE (ERERN
RORTHEMER) - ARESHA
RE ST R A ERR R RERE
Ei TAMTEFIEEH RS LR
BEOATHE -
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43. Fair Value And Fair Value Hierarchy Of 43. EMITERAFERAFEER
Financial Instruments (Continued) (%)
Fair value hierarchy NERHR
The following tables illustrate the fair value TRETAEECRIANATEFE
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial B
instruments:
Assets measured at fair value: B FEGENEE -
As at 31 December 2018 EZE2018%12A31H

Fair value measurement using
RATSIBENDPEE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BAT BEAFRA
ERTERE BEAAE BERAE Total
(B—-%) (B=#) (B=4) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET R ARETT ARETR
Equity investments BATE ARRA
at fair value through profit or loss RIS 67,904 97,286 - 165,190
Financial assets BATEHAERN
at fair value through profit or loss TRHEE - 100,000 - 100,000
67,904 197,286 - 265,190
As at 31 December 2017 HE2017F12A31H
Fair value measurement using
RRATHSENATLENE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BAT EY |
ERTERE BEAAE BERAE Total
(B-%) (B=#) (B=8R) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETRT AR¥TR  AR¥Tx
Available-for-sale financial assets RHESHEE - 44,690 - 44,690
Liabilities measured at fair value: EAFEFIEMNERE -
The Group did not have any financial liabilities REBRFRY BEMRATFEFEDN
measured at fair value at the end of the year (2017: TSRIBE (20174F : &) -
Nil).
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43. Fair Value And Fair Value Hierarchy Of
Financial Instruments (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Assets for which fair values are disclosed:

As at 31 December 2018

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F 128318 ILF/E

43. EMITEAFERAFEEER
(&)
NEEEBR (8)

HZE2018%12H31H

Fair value measurement using

RATHIEENAYETE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
EXW EXAT
ERMERE - EL DN - EC PN Total
(%-#) (E=#) (B=8) @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET R ARET
Debt instrument at amortised cost RE R AT R ERTA - 13,710 - 13,710

As at 31 December 2017

H=2017%12A31H

The Group did not have any financial assets for which B Z2017F12H318 » NEE I &%

fair values are disclosed as at 31 December 2017.

BEFREREAFENESREE -
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Notes to Financial Statements

MR M
Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31B IF/E

43. Fair Value And Fair Value Hierarchy Of

Financial Instruments (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:

As at 31 December 2018

43. TRTEAFERAFEER

(%)

NRERER ()
ERELFEMRIE -

HZE2018%12H31H

Fair value measurement using

RATHIEENAYETE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active ohservable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BAT EXFT
BRTERE BREAE BEAAE Total
(B-R) (B=R) (B=8) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBT TR ARBT R ARBTR
Interest-bearing bank borrowings iERITEE
(non-current portion) (FERAEH) - 77,481 - 77,481
As at 31 December 2017 BZE2017%12A31H
Fair value measurement using
RATHREANATENE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
VNG| EXFT
ERHERE BREaAfE BREAE Total
(E-R) (B=R) (5=8) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T ARET T ARET
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STERTEE
(non-current portion) (FEBDERED 7)) - 49,974 - 49,974

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited
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44. Financial Risk Management Objectives And

Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly
include cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits
and interest-bearing bank borrowings. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade and bills
receivables and trade payables, which arise directly

from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group does not
hold or issue derivative financial instruments either for
hedging or for trading purposes. The board reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of the risks which
are summarised below:

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long term
debt obligations with a floating interest rate.

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using
a mix of fixed and variable rate debts. The Group does
not use derivative financial instruments to hedge its
interest rate risk. At 31 December 2018, approximately
35% (2017: 33%) of the Group’s interest-bearing bank
borrowings bore interest at fixed rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit after
tax (through the impact on floating rate borrowings)
and the Group’s equity.

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
BHZE2018F12831HIEFE

4. MHEEAREENERERBE

AEENETRERMTATIZEEREN
BEeFEY BEMER - FERRITHE
K HAZSeMIANTEENER
AEENKEE2EEES - ARBTEAR
EBREEREENRKE SRR RE
BARBNESEREEREMERE
ENAE -

AEESBTAMSMNEZRRSZF
REE - INERR - EERRNMREE
TREKR - AEBEYERGRETELSY
HAEERAENITEESR TR -EFS
REFRZTEESHEROBE - B
AR

A= E b
AEBEHOHSHNREBE LT E R
AEEIZFHMNRFBNRMEHRL
B -

RNEBEMBER BFEREE R EE
BREHWAXEBEMEKR - KK
B 34 AT A © R T A ¥ EF R
[2 B - B2018F12H31H » AEE L
35% (20174 : 33%) MURT B ERITE K
ZEE R EETE o

TRINERBRMAZERZ @R T
MBI  AEERBERZN (BZEE
EEELENTE) RAKEREEF X
BEAEERBNERE
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Notes to Financial Statements

MR M
Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31B IF/E

44. Financial Risk Management Objectives And
Policies (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)
With all other variables held constant, the Group’s
profit after tax and equity are affected through the
impact on floating rate borrowings as follows:

BRRAREENERERBER (&)

M=Ebg (&)
EMBHEMAZRRERTENER
T EF¥RBEELANFEMBYAKE
RIBRIR RIS I S A ER VR BN T

Increase/(decrease) in profit
after tax and equity*

BRBBBFIRREE M, ORD) *

2018 2017

2018 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTT ARETT

Increase by 25 basis points HEhn25EE B (226) (144)

Decrease by 25 basis points 25 (B E B 226 144
*  Excluding retained profits * NEERBRT

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland China
and the majority of transactions are conducted in
RMB. Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
denominated in RMB. The Group has not hedged its
foreign exchange rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the year to a reasonably possible change in
the US$ exchange rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit after tax and equity.

SNES [ B

AEBENRBLR P BEAM - 8N
RHHNARBHET - RKEBOAEED
BEEMBBENTUARKEIIE - AEEW
S SR HHNESTE SRR ©

TRINREMERMBAIZRZER T2
MBI » AR B ER TR 8 ) e BRAE R
FRUXTERSEAIRERB O
J_g o

Increase/(decrease) in
profit after tax and equity
BREEBR R REE M, ORD)

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTT

RMB/US$ ARY En
Strengthened 5% FHE5%
Weakened 5% B2 185%

2,024 7,224
(2,024) (7,224)
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44. Financial Risk Management Objectives And

Policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis;
therefore, the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31
December 2018

The table below shows the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the
Group’s credit policy, which is mainly based on past
due information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December 2018. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial
assets and the exposure to credit risk for the financial
guarantee contracts.

44.

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
BHZE2018F12831HIEFE

BRRAREENERERBER (&)

FERERE

AEEERFERAREEVENS =
TETR S - RBAKENEEK - B
BREREERIETIINEPLARB
EERERFE  FAEE - - K
SEEREERREEHRNER  BH

PiTED S SR AR BB I R EBK ©

R20184F12H31H .2 &5 & Bz 5B R F
A5 H
TRETERASEEERENEEE
=NEeEERR  ZEEHRRETER
KRBT B A E R (BRIEEFREINK A K
LHEN A ESEMER) KR2018F12
A31BEMERSHDE - 23RS
MEEMARETEN;VSERS HEX
ZEERRE &= EREE

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12188
BEEEHE FRERSEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3  approach
&1 &2 B&3  EELE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT AR%ET:
Debt instrument at amortised cost RERRATENEEIA
~ Not yet past due — HAEES 13,726 - - - 13,726
Trade receivables* el B ZiRn = = = 77,061 77,061
Contact assets* ARBE = = = 34,129 34,129
Amounts due from other related parties ~ EUE M BEHFE
- Not yet past due — WARBH 32,744 - - - 32,744
Financial assets included in prepayments, FAFEFE - it felizd
other receivables and other assets FEMEENSHARE
— Normal** = MEE 11,618 - - - 11,618
Cash and cash equivalents Re AL ZEY
~ Not yet past due — WABH 413,374 - - - 413374
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Notes to Financial Statements

MR M
Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31B IF/E

44. Financial Risk Management Objectives And

Policies (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31

December 2018 (Continued)

* For trade receivables and contract assets to which the
Group applies the simplified approach for impairment,
information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in
note 24 and 25 to the financial statements, respectively.

**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets is
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due
and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial
assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2017

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, amounts
due from other related parties and other receivables,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these

instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
counterparty. There are no significant concentrations of
credit risk within the Group as the customer bases of
the Group’s trade receivables are widely dispersed in

different sectors and industries.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
are disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers
the maturity of both its financial instruments and
financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected

cash flows from operations.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2018
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Notes to Financial Statements

MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
BHZE2018F12831HIEFE

44. Financial Risk Management Objectives And 4. BBEBEENBFERBER (&)
Policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) MENE & Bk (E)

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between AEBENEFREBEMRITERLIE
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use REMBEETRIE  EESIFEMHER
of bank borrowings and amounts due to other related BRM @R E - 1IN AEER

ETRITRENBESZA -

parties. In addition, banking facilities have been put in
place for contingency purposes.

RER » AEBRIEFTHARREIRN KA

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities

as at the end of the year, based on the contractual TRIBEINHEMENT -
undiscounted payments, was as follows:
On Within Within
demand 1 year 2 to 5 years Total
BRER 1£R 255 At
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 31 December 2018 720185124318
Trade payables EHESER - 64,008 - 64,008
Financial liabilities included in other s AHEMZIE R
payables and accruals B EANERARE 20,603 - - 20,603
Amount due to other related parties FEREMEE R FUE 445 12,500 - 12,945
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITER - 81,312 88,604 169,916
21,048 157,820 88,604 267,472
On Within Within
demand 1 year 2to 5 years Total
BEX (3 2E5%FR )
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 31 December 2017 20175124318
Trade payables EHEZER = 50,107 = 50,107
Financial liabilities included in other st AEfENTZIER
payables and accruals A ERNEHERE 19,319 - - 19,319
Amounts due to other related parties JERTE M EF TR 445 = 445
Interest-bearing bank borrowings S RBTER - 43,913 50,768 94,681
19,764 94,020 50,768 164,552
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Notes to Financial Statements

MR M
Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31B IF/E

44. Financial Risk Management Objectives And 44. M EBEBENEERBR (&)

276

Policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amount included above for financial guarantee
contracts is the maximum amount the Group could be
required to settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at
the end of the year, the Group considers that it is more
likely than not that no amount will be payable under

the arrangement.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the

year.

The Group monitors capital using a net debt to equity
ratio, which is net debt divided by capital. The Group’s
net debt consists of interest-bearing bank borrowings,

less cash and cash equivalents. Capital represents total

equity.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2018
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44.

45.

Financial Risk Management Objectives And
Policies (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

At the end of the year, the Group’s strategy was to
maintain the net debt to equity ratio at a healthy capital
level in order to support its businesses. The principal
strategies adopted by the Group include, but are not
limited to, reviewing future cash flow requirements and
the ability to meet debt repayment schedules when they
fall due, maintaining a reasonable level of available
banking facilities and adjusting investment plans and
financing plans, if necessary, to ensure that the Group
has a reasonable level of capital to support its business.
The net debt to equity ratios at the end of the years are

as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
BHZE2018F12831HIEFE

4. HEERBEENEERBEE (&)

E€EE (#)

RER  AEBERBER BB L E
I REFRIBRANEAKTE - AH
HEREE - AEEMRANERRR
B (BARR) I RRRERER
KA R B 75 B B b 4k B B SR BV BE 7
RHRBRITHREEFTNEEKF - XA
BEEFEIRBMETE (MARE) - K
BARAEEAFHSEKFNERIFHFH
EFEE - RERNFEHH LR
W

2018 2017

20184 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFIT

Interest-bearing bank borrowings T RERITIER 158,010 90,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B IRE MBS EFEY (413,374) (569,991)
Net debt FETS (255,364) (479,991)
Total equity P R 1,458,802 1,355,884
Net debt to equity ratio FERE RS X N/A* N/A*
NE A+ ENEER

E The Group’s balance of cash and cash equivalents
exceeded the interest-bearing bank borrowings, as such,
no gearing ratio was presented.

Events After The Reporting Period
No significant events took place after the reporting
period.

*  AEENRELBSEBMEHRBET
BHRITER  ARXR2INEERBL

CBREMREER

WEMRY MEAERMEAREIR -

2018 4 | HAMBRKROBERAT

277



Notes to Financial Statements

MR M
Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12831HIEFE

46. Statement Of Financial Position Of The
Company

Information about the statement of financial position

46. 25 7] B9 B AR R R

ARARBERRNUBARKRBEE

of the Company at the end of the reporting period is as B
follows:
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEREBEE
Property, plant and equipment e N 29 38
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR E 2,008 2,008
Total non-current assets EREEERTE 2,037 2,046
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 30,239 198,029
Prepayments, deposits BNFIE ek
and other receivables A g Wk I8 2,490 3,680
Amounts due from subsidiaries i NG 737,647 537,460
Total current assets MENEEMER 770,376 739,169
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables H At & 5 IR 1,956 1,950
Total current liabilities mENBERR 1,956 1,950
NET CURRENT ASSETS BRBEE 768,420 737,219
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRBAE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 770,457 739,265
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREEME
Interest-bearing bank borrowings T EIRITER 53,010 -
Total non-current liabilities ERE B ERRE 53,010 =
Net assets FEE 717,447 739,265
EQUITY s
Issued capital BEEITHRA 7,214 7,214
Reserves (note) s (BfsE) 710,233 732,051
Total equity et 717,447 739,265
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46. Statement Of Financial Position Of The

47.

Company (Continued)

Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS HR R M
Year ended 31 December 2018
BHZE2018F12831HIEFE

46. A AT MM BT ER (&)

GEE
AATGRBRRLT :

Retained
Share profits/
Share option Capital (accumulated Total
premium reserve reserve losses) equity
REEF
ROEE BRERE B (RiER) ERBE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTL ARETR ARETT ARETT ARBTR
At 1 January 2017 20171418 727,330 6,275 932 (28,248) 706,289
Loss for the year FEER - - - (45,473) (45,473)
Issue of shares BITRGD 77,974 = = = 77,974
Share issue expenses BROBTHRX (1,285) = = = (1,285)
Dividends declared and paid EERRKERE - = = (25,282) (25,282)
Equity-settled AEREER
share option arrangements AL = 19,828 = = 19,828
At 31 December 2017 and R20174612A318 K
1 January 2018 201841 41AH 804,019 26,103 932 (99,003) 732,051
Loss for the year FEER = = = (26,350) (26,350)
Dividends declared and paid EERRKERS - - - (18,058) (18,058)
Equity-settled IR H
share option arrangements EREL = 22,590 = = 22,590
At 31 December 2018 R2018%E12A318 804,019 48,693 932 (143,411) 710,233

The Company’s capital surplus represents the excess
of the fair value of the shares of the Company over
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefor.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of the
share options granted which are yet to be exercised.
Please refer to note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements for details. The amount will either be
transferred to the share premium account when the
related options are exercised, or be transferred to
retained profits should the related options expire or be
forfeited.

Approval of the Financial Statements
The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2019.

47.

ARBERRBEARRRD A FEEE
HARRBREBRAEREARATEMEITH
BROEENEE

B AR G 8 2 HE B 4 4 (B P R T (RO
RAES BN A TE - HEHLBERAEH
BRI o 575 BRI IT e -
ZECERHBERGEEE  Z50
B M B E o e B R R R
7 o

B 76 SR 3k BV L O
SRR ELEEZMN201943 298
HE A M AR B A o
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Financial Summary

PR

RESULTS 4

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
20185 20174 20165 2015% 201445

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTE ARBTR ARETRT ARETRT

(Restated)
(s

Revenue WA 1,102,805 967,267 740,895 795,625 785,592
Cost of sales HEMKA (888,039) (738,282) (531,554) (595,220) (595,566
Gross profit EF 214,766 228,985 209,341 200,405 190,026
Other income and gains LR OGS 27,171 16,671 22,419 33,222 9,959
Selling and distribution costs HERDHEKA (11,990) (11,515) (10,459) (4,016) (4,788)
Administrative expenses THRAX (85,052) (68,672) (48,288) (40,077) (27,183)
Impairment losses on financial ¢ BEERAREE
and contract assets, net ZREERFE 902 (682) = = =
Other expenses HipY (1,382) (12,210) (1,309) (3,055) (1)
Finance costs AEKAK (5,501) (6,290) (4,524) (5,817) (19,023)
Associates YN 7,099 1,911 1,543 4,677 4,948
Profit before tax BRB AR R 146,013 148,198 168,723 185,339 153,938
Income tax expense FrEfE Y (42,510) (48,058) (44,906) (46,700) (37,578)
Profit for the year FERR 103,503 100,140 123,817 138,639 116,360
Profit for the year WT&F Bl
attributable to: FEERA
Owners of the parent SYNIE YN 98,621 93,902 120,681 138,639 116,360
Non-controlling interests R 4,882 6,238 3,136 - -

103,503 100,140 123,817 138,639 116,360
ASSET, LIABILITIES AND & BER
TOTAL EQUITY ERER
Total assets BELES 2,040,652 1,860,285 1,659,640 1,365,070 967,274
Total liabilities It (581,850) 504,401 513,044 434,920 506,004
Total equity BB 1,458,802 1,355,884 1,146,596 930,150 461,270
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